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Disclaimer:

This document contains statements about expected future events and financials of MedPlus Health
Services Limited, which are forwardlooking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require
the Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties.
There is a significant risk that the assumptions, predictions, and other forward-looking
statements may not prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on forward-looking statements as several factors could cause assumptions,

actual future results and events to differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements. Accordingly, this document is subject to the

disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications

and risk factors referred to in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this Annual Report.
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Accelerating with
Passion. Delivering with
Purpose.

MedPlus Health Services Limited, known as
MedPlus, has emerged as a prominent player
in India’s retail pharmaceutical sector since its
establishment in 2006. With a mission to provide
authentic medicines and enhance value through
technology-driven supply chain efficiencies,

MedPlus offers a  diverse

range of products spanning
pharmaceuticals, wellness items,
and fast-moving consumer goods.

Recognizing the challenge of counterfeit drugs,
MedPlus seized the opportunity to establish an
organized retail model that sources directly from
manufacturers, ensuring authenticity and quality.
The company’s growth journey has been marked
by strategic expansion across states and territories,
enabled by a cluster-based approach that fosters
brand visibility and replicable growth. This
expansion aligns with the company’s commitment
to offering convenience and building lasting
customer relationships, thus driving progress in
India’s pharmaceutical landscape.
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MedPlus at a Glance

MedPlus Health Services Limited, commonly known as MedPlus, stands as a prominent
entity in India’s retail pharmaceutical landscape. Since its inception in 2006, the company
embarked on a mission to establish a retail pharmaceutical brand that not only provides
authentic medicines but also enhances value for its customers through technology-driven
supply chain efficiencies. The company’s product portfolio spans across diverse categories,
encompassing pharmaceuticals, wellness items, and fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG).
This comprehensive range includes essential items such as medications, vitamins, medical
devices, home and personal care products, toiletries, baby care essentials, soaps, detergents,
as well as sanitizers, among various others.

Opportunities:

MedPlus recognized the national
issue of counterfeit drugs and
medications as a chance to make
a positive impact. To tackle these
concerns and provide reassurance
to the people of India, MedPlus
embarked on its journey as an
organized retail entity. The primary
goal was to establish a streamlined
process where medicines and
various products could be sourced
directly from manufacturers and
efficiently delivered to customers
in their local communities. This
approach was carefully designed
to offer customers maximum
value while addressing the
genuine worries surrounding the
authenticity of drugs. In addition to
combating the issue of counterfeit
drugs, MedPlus ensured that the
medications it provided were
stored under optimal conditions,
further enhancing the quality and
safety of the products available to
its customers.

Growth:

MedPlus Has started in 2006 with
48 stores in Hyderabad, Now
MedPlus is offering its services in
7 states and one union territory
through 3,882 stores which are
spread across Telangana, Andhra
Pradesh, Karnataka, Tamil Nadu,
West Bengal, Maharashtra, Orissa
and Puducherry. Medplus employs
a data analytics driven cluster-
based expand store network. The
cluster-based approach to store
network expansion is also driven
by our understanding of the
catchment demographics, market
dynamics, and our ability to support
store expansion with back-end
infrastructure, such as warehouses
and distribution centres. This
approach and understanding allow
us to:

o Create brand visibility
within the cities where we
operate, through focused

implementation of marketing
and advertising initiatives,

e Increase our market share in the
cities where we operate,

« Replicate our growth model
in adjacent underserved cities
and towns, as we develop our
presence in those clusters

« Generate cost efficiencies due
to operating leverage achieved

in our supply chain and
inventory management.
Our  cluster-based  expansion

approach and replicable store roll-
out strategy have allowed us to
achieve and maintain attractive
and healthy store level economics

Progess:

MedPlus has consistently
pursued  continuous  growth
by embracing contemporary

business methodologies, refining
processes, and nurturing a positive
organizational  culture.  These
efforts harmoniously converge
to empower us in expanding our
market presence and reinforcing
a stronger brand recognition.
Our unwavering commitment
extends towards amplifying our
customer outreach across both
physical store locations and digital
platforms, where our primary focus
remains on offering ‘convenience’
as a fundamental customer-centric
principle. This strategic approach
not only aids in broadening our
customer base but also fosters
a lasting connection that keeps
customers engaged within our
ecosystem.



Our
Potential in
Numbers

Marked presence of
17 years with 3,882

Physical stores

Second largest
Pharma retailer in the country
w.r.t. store strength

Wider geographical
presence in 7 states and
1 Union territory covering

552 cities

Empowered with

44K+ skuUs across
pharma and non-pharma
segment with 10 regional
warehouses and 21K+
employee strength
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MedPlus’
Presence across
India

Maharashtra
Karnataka
Tamil Nadu
Talangana
Andhra Pradesh
Orissa

West Bengal
Puducherry

640+ Private Label

Products covered under
pharma category including
Chronic, Acute, OTC & Other
Pharmaceutical products

262+ Private Label

Products covered in non-
pharma segment including
packaged food, baked goods,
dry goods, cleaning products,
cosmetics and toiletries

The first entity in the
country to introduce an
omni-channel presence
with Digital and
Neighbourhood stores

Diagnostic Services
Launched Diagnostic Services
with 3 Full service centres, 4 level
2 centres, 100+ collection centres
and One central Path lab.




Chairman’s
Message

" \ Since inception in
2006, your company
has been dedicated to
providing medicines
and related products
guided by three core
principles: the provision
of genuine products,
ensuring superior storage
conditions, and offering
unparalleled convenience,
all  while maintaining
competitive pricing.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED 4




Dear Shareholders,

As we reflect on the past seventeen
years, we can proudly acknowledge
the strides we have taken in
delivering value to all stakeholders.
Our reach now extends to over
552 cities across Telangana,
Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Tamil
Nadu, West Bengal, Orissa, and
Maharashtra.

While our success story in the
pharmaceutical  retail  sector
continues to unfold, we recognize
the potential of exploring new
horizons in the adjacent market of
diagnostics. Many of our customers
are individuals with  chronic
conditions  requiring  regular
diagnostic tests. In response to
their needs, we have initiated a pilot
projectin Hyderabad.Thisendeavor
includes the establishment of
three integrated radiology centers,
four low-end radiology centers, a
central laboratory, and over 100
collection centers. The results
of this pilot phase have met our
expectations and reinforced our
belief in the value of expanding
into the diagnostics sector.

The Indian retail pharmacy market
is projected to experience a robust
compound annual growth rate
(CAGR) of around 9% between
FY20 and FY25, reaching a value
of USD 36 billion by FY25. Notably,
the penetration of organized
pharmacy services is expected to
rise to approximately 19.6% by
FY25, a significant increase from
the 10% recorded in FY20. This
anticipated growth outpaces that
of other retail formats, including
food, jewelry, and footwear.
Despite the rise of online
pharmacies with their attractive
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discounts, your company
continues to flourish profitably.
Our success is attributed to our
innovative approach, leveraging
both an omni-channel presence
and a tiered discounting structure
within the expanding organized
retail pharmacy landscape.

During the financial year:

o Weregistered 345,575. 8 million
revenue from operations in
2022- 23, recording a 20.6%
growth as compared to the
previous year's revenue of
337,792.8 million

e Our EBITDA stood at %3,117.5
million in 2022-23, compared to
the previous year when it stood
at 33,037.3 million

As we navigate the future, we
remain committed to our core
values, the pursuit of excellence,
and our mission of enhancing
healthcare  accessibility  and
affordability. Through our
unwavering dedication, we are
poised to continue making a
positive impact on the lives of
countless individuals and the
larger healthcare ecosystem.

I am truly touched and thankful to
each and every individual who has
entrusted us with their well-being.
Serving as your companion on this
transformative journey toward
improved health and wellness is a
privilege that | deeply cherish.

To the distinguished members
of our Board, | want to express
my profound gratitude for their
enduring trust and unwavering
support. Your guidance has been

MedPlust

the cornerstone of our progress,
and your belief in our mission has
been instrumental in propelling us
forward.

| extend my heartfelt appreciation
to our esteemed shareholders,
whose unwavering faith in our
vision has been a driving force
behind our accomplishments.
Your confidence empowers us to
push the boundaries of healthcare
delivery and set new benchmarks
for excellence.

My gratitude knows no bounds for
my MedPlus , whose unwavering
support provides us with the
confidence to boldly venture into
uncharted territories of healthcare
services. Together, we have
cultivated an environment of unity
and warmth that defines us. This
unity fuels our determination to
make a lasting, positive impact on
the lives of countless individuals.

In embracing the challenges and
opportunities that lie ahead, let
us stand united, bound by our
shared vision and the unwavering
support that has brought us this
far. With a heart full of gratitude,
| look forward to the continued
journey of elevating healthcare
and enriching lives together.

Thanks,

Gangadi Madhukar Reddy
Chairman, MD & CEO



Lucrative Pharma
Industry

Operating Context

The pharmaceutical market in India is highly fragmented,
posing challenges for both distribution and retail. With a
vast number of distributors and retailers, many struggle due
to limited working capital and storage space. Unorganized
pharmacies, often under 500 sq. ft, can't hold many
products. The fragmented distributor base compounds this
issue, leading to poor availability of pharmaceuticals. The
prevalence of counterfeit drugs adds to health risks. Poor
digitization and quality issues persist in healthcare services.
Therising of organized players able to address these concerns
by leveraging the scale and technology.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED 6



With the rise of digitalization and
increased consumer exposure to
information, organized pharmacy
chains have gained significant
traction in urban and semi-urban
regions. These chains have effectively
integrated modern business
practices such as doorstep delivery,
round-the-clock services, and other
offerings, thereby enhancing the
overall customer experience.

./\ Key Growth Drivers

Enhancements

medical

mfrastructure, increasing  per
capita income, and higher

adoption of health insurance
are driving the growth of the
domestic pharmaceutical sector.

« The prevalence of lifestyle-related
diseases is increasing due to
stressful routines and unhealthy
eating habits. This will establish
a need for regular prescription-
based medication, contributing
to the expansion of India’s retail
pharmacy sector.

o Clear and visible discounts
are also serving as significant
facilitators for organized market
participants in this industry.

Transition of
I @ Business Practice

In the pharmaceutical
sector, there is a noticeable trend
among consumers to  prefer
organized players over other options.
This shift is primarily attributed to the
improved accessibility of medicines
and the assurance of promised
prescription fill rates offered by these
organized entities.

One key advantage of organized
players in the pharmaceutical
industry is their ability to address
concerns related to the authenticity
and quality of medicines. They

@ Corporate Overview

achieve this by directly consolidating
purchases from  manufacturers,
thereby establishing a transparent
and accountable supply chain. This
consolidation process ensures that
the medicines stocked by these
players are sourced directly from
trusted manufacturers, minimizing
the risk of counterfeit or substandard
products entering the market. This
step enhances consumer trust and
confidence in the medicines available
through organized retail channels.

Moreover, organized players
leverage technology to optimize
the availability of medicines and

efficiently cater to customers’
prescription needs. Through
advanced inventory management

systems and data analytics, these
players can anticipate demand
patterns, track the movement of
medicines, and maintain optimal
stock levels. This technological
integration enables them to minimize
instances of medicine shortages or
stockouts, ensuring that customers
can readily access the prescribed
medications they require.

Additionally, the utilization of
technologyenablesorganizedplayers
to streamline their operations, offer
convenient services such as online
ordering and doorstep delivery, and
enhance customer engagement. This
contributes to an overall improved
customer experience, as individuals
can easily access medicines without
facing the inconvenience of visiting
physical stores.

In summary, the pharmaceutical
sector is witnessing a shift towards
organized players due to their
superior availability of medicines,
commitment to promised
prescription fill rates, and efforts
to address authenticity and
quality concerns through direct
manufacturer  purchases.  The

integration of technology further
empowers these players to optimize
medicine availability and provide
convenient  services, ultimately
benefiting both the industry and its
customers.

\,5" MedPlus’ Take
"‘ MedPlus commands

a leadership position
in the Indian pharmacy market.
Leveraging its position, the Company
intends to expand in the untapped
regions. It applies a cluster-based
approach to drive its store network
expansion. This approach is driven
by the understanding of catchment
demographics, market dynamics, and
ability to support store expansion
with back-end infrastructure, such as
warehouses and distribution centres.
This supports the Company in
increasing market share in the cities
where it operates and replicate the
same in adjacent areas or clusters to
retain its leadership position.

Furthermore, to keep up with the
industry trends and practices,
MedPlus has adapted an omni-
channel approach to serve its
customers better. With this, the
customers can fetch their medicines
by visiting MedPlus stores as well
as by putting an order through the
dedicated mobile application or
website.

Additionally, the Company is also
venturing into the pathology
diagnostic laboratory  testing
business which will be broadly
functioning from the next year
onwards. This will give an extra
edge over the traditional business
practices and enable MedPlus to put
forward a complete set of services
in terms of healthcare and widen its
perspective in terms of revenue and
market presence.
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Levers of Growth

Our growth pillars are built on our strong foundations that ensure a sustainable
growth of the enterprise in the long-run. We have identified five pillars of
growth which will help us achieving our goals in the future while preparing us
today so that we drive ourselves in the right path.

Deeper than wider

MedPlus is capitalizing on the
transformation within India’s
pharmaceutical retail sector, shifting
from unorganized to organized.
With a focus on Tier 2 and beyond
locations, the company has
strategically expanded its presence.
This approach entails opening
50% of its stores in these areas,
leveraging the trend of increasing
consumer familiarity with organized
retail and the improved availability
of medicines. MedPlus is utilizing
a proven technology framework,
allowing efficient replication across
different cities. This not only optimizes
operational processes and inventory
management but also enhances
customer engagement through
digital channels. By standardizing its
technology deployment, MedPlus
achieves economies of scale,
reducing the incremental cost of
expansion. This strategy ensures
efficient setup and smoother
operations in new locations while
also reinforcing their position in
existing clusters. In this way, MedPlus
is effectively navigating the evolving
landscape of the pharmaceutical
market and broadening its customer
reach with operational effectiveness.

Increasing  the

label share

private

By capitalizing on its scale, MedPlus
is effectively expanding its product
range in both the pharmaceutical
and FMCG categories, providing
customers with high-quality
offerings at optimal value. The
company is actively increasing the
sale of private label products, which
in turn generates higher gross
margins. This strategic approach aims
to enhance the proportion of private
label products in MedPlus's offerings.

Given the substantial purchasing
capacity at its disposal, MedPlus
is well-positioned to introduce
a broader range of private label
products. This shift towards greater
private label participation  will
manifest through the introduction
of FMCG items under private
labels within the nutrition and
wellness sector. Moreover, the
expansion will encompass private
label  pharmaceutical  products,
particularly tailored to sub-chronic
and chronic medical conditions.

This strategic evolution not only
diversifies the product mix but
also enables MedPlus to curate an
improved selection of products for
its customers.

Boosting Revenue and
Expanding Customer
Engagement

Our strategic neighborhood

presence uniquely positions us to tap
into this advantage by introducing
an extended array of products in
closely related categories such as
Wellness and FMCG. This strategic
move allows us to seamlessly serve as
a convenient refill hub for our valued
customers’ immediate requirements.
For instance, items like infant food
and supplements can be made easily
accessible, ensuring our customers
receive top-notch value for their
needs.

By strategically leveraging our local
presence, we're not only enhancing
our revenue streams but also
deepening our connection with
customers through a diversified
range of offerings. This approach
aligns with our commitment to
being a reliable destination where
customers can fulfill their diverse
requirements conveniently and cost-
effectively.

E
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An integral element of our ongoing

expansion strategy involves
enhancing our supply chain
frameworkandbolsteringoperational
efficiency through targeted

infrastructure  enhancements. By
investing in the automation of our
warehouses, we are poised to unlock
heightened operational efficacy
and cost-effectiveness. Additionally,
our direct procurement approach
from pharmaceutical manufacturers
will play a pivotal role in realizing
elevated gross margins.

These combined initiatives
synergistically contribute to an
improved  profitability  outlook,

serving as a solid foundation for our
future ventures and undertakings.
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Leveraging the
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Pharmacy Platform

By leveraging pharmacy networkand customer base MedPlus offering comprehensive
diagnostic services to its customers. This move aims to provide accessible and varied
medical examinations, tests, and screenings, enhancing the healthcare experience.
By integrating diagnostics into its network, MedPlus aims to create a seamless and
convenient healthcare ecosystem for customers, complementing its pharmaceutical
offerings. This expansion aligns with MedPlus’s commitment to holistic healthcare
solutions and streamlining the healthcare journey for customers.

Value Proposition

Expanding its reach into major
urban centers including Hyderabad,
Chennai, Bangalore, Kolkata,
Pune, Nagpur, and Bhubaneswar,
MedPlus is actively endeavoring
to extend diagnostic services to its
customer base. This strategic move
aligns with MedPlus’s commitment
to  comprehensive  healthcare
accessibility.

By establishing a broader and
more extensive presence in these
prominent  cities, MedPlus is

strategically positioned to provide
a wider range of diagnostic services
to customers. These services
encompass various medical
examinations, tests, and screenings
that cater to a spectrum of health
concerns. This expansion is designed
to empower customers with easier
access to timely and accurate medical
diagnostics, enhancing their overall
healthcare experience.

Moreover, this initiative aligns
with MedPlus's mission to offer
holistic healthcare solutions by
complementing its pharmaceutical

11

offerings with essential diagnostic
services. By integrating these services
into its existing network, MedPlus
aims to create a seamless and
convenient healthcare ecosystem for
customers. Ultimately, this expansion
allows customers to access vital
diagnostic support within the familiar
and trusted MedPlus environment,
streamlining their healthcare journey
and ensuring a more comprehensive
approach to their well-being.
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PAT

(% in millions)

947.16
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The Board of Directors

Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy
Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy is one of the Promoters of the Company and has been a Director since the
incorporation of MedPlus. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Medicine and Surgery from the Sri Venkateswara
University and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.

Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani
Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani holds a Bachelors degree in Commerce from Shri Ram College of Commerce and an MBA
from Faculty of Management Studies, Delhi University. She is a Chevening Gurukul scholar from the London
School of Economics. She has held customer-facing roles for over thirty years in P&L Management, Marketing
and Sales largely in Pfizer,Dabur and Asian Paints.Ms. Mirchandani has served on twelve diverse boards and
is currently a Non-Executive Independent Director on the boards of Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals
Limited, Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited and Piem Hotels Limited.

Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf is a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He
holds a Post-Graduate Diploma in Management from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad. He is
currently the Managing Director of Warburg Pincus India Private Limited and has been associated with them
from more than 15 years. He is involved in the firm’s Investment Advisory activities in India and evaluates
opportunities in Real estate, Industrial, and Consumer sectors in India.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED 14
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The Board of Directors

Mr. Madhavan Ganesan
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Madhavan Ganesan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the Birla Institute of Technology & Science,
Pilani and a Post-Graduate Diploma in Management from the Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta. He
was previously associated with Reliance Retail, SPI Technologies, Wipro Limited, Spectramind, Tata Information
Systems Limited and Tata Industries Limited. He has over 34 years of experience in various companies in the
Retail, Technology and the Industrial sectors.

Mr. Atul Gupta
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Atul Gupta holds a bachelor’s degree in technology from the Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay and a
master’s degree in business administration from the Walter A. Haas School of Business, University of California,
Berkeley. He is employed as an investment partner at Premji Invest and leads investments in technology
enabled sectors including consumer-tech, health-tech, fin-tech and enterprise tech. He has more than 14 years
of experience in the investment industry.

Mr. Murali Sivaraman
Non-Executive Independent Director

i,

Mr. Murali Sivaraman is a Chairman/Independent Director in multiple listed Boards and is also an advisor to
Private Equity. After more than three decades of global leadership roles based out of Singapore, Shanghai,
Toronto, London and Delhi, he is now based in Mumbai, India focusing on enterprise value and governance via
multiple Board and Advisory roles. Recent Global Roles: President for Growth Markets: Philips Lighting - Signify
(Singapore) and CEO Global Domestic Appliance - Royal Philips (Shanghai) - Scale US$ 1.5 to 2 BN, Managing
Director - Philips India. Current board / advisory roles include Huhtamaki India, Bharat Forge, ICICI Lombard
General Insurance, Medplus Health Services, Hamilton Houseware (Milton), Private Equity advisory for Branded
Consumer Durables - Advent International India - Eureka Forbes. Mr. Sivaraman is a qualified Chartered
Accountant, Cost & Works Accountant, MBA from IIM Ahmedabad and has done Advanced Management
Program from Harvard Business School.
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The Management Team

Sl dhd

Mr. Cherukupalli Mr. Surendranath Mr. Sujit Kumar Mahato  Mr. Chetan Dikshit
Bhaskar Reddy Mantena Chief Financial Officer Chief Strategy Officer

Chief Operating Officer Chief Operating Officer,
MedPlus Mart

Mr. Lakshman Mr. Kandasamy Mr. Venugopal Mr. Manoj Kumar

Kandarpa Head of Supply Chain Siripuram Srivastava

Chief Retail Officer Chief Technology Officer Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED 16
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that Seventeenth Annual
General Meeting ('17th AGM’) of MedPlus Health
Services Limited (‘the Company’) will be held on Friday,
September 29, 2023 at 15:30 Hrs (IST), through
Video Conferencing (“VC”")/ Other Audio-Visual Means
(“OAVM") facility to transact the following businesses-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Standalone & Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

. To appointa Director in place of Mr. Atul Gupta,
non-executive Director of the Company, who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

. Appointment of M/s. BSR and Co, Chartered
Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) and pursuant
to the recommendations of the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. BSR
and Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration
No 128510W), be and is hereby appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the a term of
five consecutive years, who shall hold office from the
conclusion of ensuing 17th Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of the 22nd Annual General
Meeting of the company to be held in the year 2028,
on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed by
the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do
all acts, deeds and things as may be considered
necessary, proper, expedient, to give effect to this
Resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Alteration in Articles of Association of the
Company - Insertion of Article 102 A for
Nomination Rights of Promoters

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without

modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section
14 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof)
(“theAct”), Regulation 31B of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015, and other applicable provisions of the Act
and the Articles of Association (“AOA”) of the
Company,approval of shareholders be and is hereby
accorded to alter the present AOA of the Company by
insertion of Article 102A in relation to the nomination
rights of the Promoters (as defined in AOA to mean
Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy, Agilemed Investments
Private Limited and Lone Furrow Investments Private
Limited) as Article 102A in the AOA of the Company,
and wherein Article 102A be read as under:

102 A: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in these Articles, the Board of the Company
shall at all times be constituted in compliance with
applicable Law including the provisions of the Act
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Promoters jointly holding at
least 10% (ten percent) of the Share Capital on a Fully
Diluted Basis, shall at all times, be entitled to nominate
01 (one) person for appointment as Director on the
Board (the “Promoter Nominees”)as a wholetime/
executive director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all
acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary,
proper, expedientto give effect to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
For MedPlus Health Services Limited

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Srivastava

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. FCS 7460

Registered Office:

H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,
Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road,
Moosapet, Kukatpally,

Hyderabad - 500037, Telangana

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023



The proceedings of the 17th AGM shall be deemed to be
conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at H.
No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1, Opp: IDPL Railway
Siding Road, Moosapet, Kukatpally, Hyderabad - 500037,
Telangana, India which shall be the deemed venue of
the AGM.

Notes:

1.

In continuation of Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(“"MCA") General Circular No. 14/2020 and
17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020
respectively, in relation to “Clarification on
passing of ordinary and special resolutions by
companies under the Companies Act, 2013, and
the rules made thereunder on account of the
threat posed by Covid-19”, General Circular No.
20/2020, dated May 5, 2020, the MCA has vide
General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28,
2022 in relation to “Clarification on holding of
Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM")" (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”) and SEBI vide its circular dated
May 12,2020 in relation to “Additional relaxation
in relation to compliance with certain provisions
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 - Covid-19
pandemic” and circular dated January 15, 2021,
and January 5, 2023 (“SEBI Circulars”), permitted
the holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM,
without the physical presence of the Members
at a common venue. Accordingly, in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”), MCA Circulars and SEBI
Circulars, the 17th AGM of the Company is
scheduled to be held through VC/OAVM on
Friday, September 29,2023, at 15:30 hrs (IST).
This notice of 17th AGM (“Notice”) is approved
by Board of directors on August 7, 2023.

KFin Technologies Limited, Registrar & Transfer
Agent of the Company, (earlier known as
KFintech Private Limited) (“KFintech”) shall be
providing facility for voting through remote
e-voting, for participation in the AGM through
VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM.
The procedure for participating in the meeting
through VC/OAVM is explained at Note No.23
below.

Pursuant to the above-mentioned MCA
Circulars, physical attendance of the
Members is not required at the AGM,
and attendance of the Members through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the
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purpose of reckoning the quorum
under section 103 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

PURSUANT TO THE SECTION 105 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON
HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM
IS BEING HELD THROUGH VC/OAVM PURSUANT
TO THE APPLICABLE MCA AND SEBI CIRCULARS,
PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN
DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY
FORAPPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS
WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THE AGM AND
HENCETHE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP
ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

Members of the Company under the category
of Institutional Shareholders are encouraged to
attend and participate in the AGM through VC/
OAVM and vote thereat. Corporate/Institutional
Members are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/
OAVM on their behalf and cast their votes through
remote e-voting or at the AGM. Corporate/
Institutional Members intending to authorize
their representatives to participate and vote at
the Meeting are requested to send a certified
copy of the Board resolution/authorization letter
to the Scrutiniser at e-mail ID rashida@rna-cs.
com with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.
com and to the Company at cs@medplusindia.
com, authorising its representative(s) to attend
and vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the
Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act.

In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2
on General Meetings issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read
with Clarification/Guidance on applicability of
Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 dated 15thApril,
2020 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the
AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the
Registered Office of the Company which shall be
the deemed venue of the AGM. Since the AGM
will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is
not annexed to this Notice.

As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.ll of the
General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020,
the matter of Special Business as appearing
under Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice,
are considered to be unavoidable by the
Board and hence, form part of this Notice.
The Explanatory Statement as required under
section 102 of the Act, with respect to Item No.
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10.

4, is annexed hereto. Pursuant to Section 152 of
the Act, Mr. Atul Gupta, non-executive director
retire by rotation at this AGM. The brief profile
including nature of his expertise, functional
areas, names of the companies in which he
holds directorships, membership/chairmanships
of Board Committees and shareholding in the
Company as stipulated under Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued
by ICSl are forming part of the Notice as annexure
A and appended to this Notice.

Copies of the existing Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association will
be available for inspection by shareholders
during business hours at the registered office
of the Company for 21 days before the Annual
General Meeting and can also be viewed on the
Company’s website at www.medplusindia.com.

M/s. B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 13th Annual
General Meeting held on Tuesday, 30th October,
2018. Pursuant to the Notification issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 7thMay, 2018
amending section 139 of the Act and the Rules
framed thereunder, the mandatory requirement
for ratification of appointment of Auditors by the
Members at every Annual General Meeting has
been omitted, and hence the Company is not
proposing an item on ratification of appointment
of Auditors at this AGM.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and
Register of Contracts or arrangements in which
directors are interested maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant
documents referred to in this Notice of AGM
and explanatory statement, will be available
electronically for inspection by the members
during the AGM. All documents referred to in
the Notice will also be available for electronic
inspection without any fee by the members from
the date of circulation of this Notice up to the
date of AGM, i.e., September 29, 2023. Members
seeking to inspect such documents can send an
email to cs@medplusindia.com.

The Company'’s Registrar and Transfer Agents for
its Share Registry Work (Physical and Electronic)
is KFin Technologies Limited having their office at
Selenium, Tower-B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachibowli,

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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12.

13.

14.

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad,
Telangana - 500032.

NOMINATION: Members can avail of the facility
of nomination in respect of shares held by them
in physical form pursuant to the provisions
of section 72 of the Act. Members desiring to
avail of this facility may send their nomination
in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled in
to KFintech at the abovementioned address.
Members holding shares in electronic form may
contact their respective Depository Participants
for availing this facility.

TRANSFER OF SHARES PERMITTED IN
DEMAT FORM ONLY: As per Regulation 40 of
the Listing Regulations, as amended securities
of listed companies can be transferred only
in dematerialised form with effect from
1st April, 2019, except in case of transmission
or transposition of securities. In view of the
above and to eliminate risk associated with
physical shares and to avail various benefits
of dematerialisation, Members are advised to
dematerialise their shares held in physical form.

Members are accordingly requested to get in
touch with any Depository Participant having
registration with SEBI to open a Demat account
or alternatively, contact the nearest branch
of KFintech to seek guidance in the demat
procedure. Members may also visit web site of
depositories viz. National Securities Depository
Limited viz. https://nsdl.co.in/faqs/fag.php or
Central Depository Services (India) Limited
viz. https://www.cdslindia.com/investors/
open-demat.html for further understanding of
the demat procedure. Members may also refer
to Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) on
Company’s website www.medplusindia.com.

ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF NOTICE AND
ANNUAL REPORT: In accordance with the MCA
General Circular No. 20/2020dated 5th May,
2020 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020, in view
of the prevailing situation and owing to the
difficulties involved in dispatching physical
copies of the financial statements (including
Board’s Report, Auditor’'s Report or other
documents required to be attached therewith)
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023
pursuant to section 136 of the Act and Notice
calling the 17th AGM pursuant to section 101 of
the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder,
such statements including the Notice of AGM
are being sent only in electronic mode to those
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered



15.

16.

17.

18.

with the Company/ KFintech or the Depository
Participant(s). In case of the shares held jointly
by two or more persons, the Notice shall be given
to the person whose name appears first as per
the record of the Depository or the Company,
as the case may be. The Company will not be
dispatching physical copies of such statements
and Notice of AGM to any Member.

Members are requested to register/update
their email addresses, in respect of electronic
holdings with the Depository through the
concerned Depository Participants and in respect
of physical holdings with KFintech by following
due procedure.

A copy of the Notice of this AGM along with
Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-2023
is available on the website of the Company at
www.medplusindia.com, website of the Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Company
are listed i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively and on the
website of KFintech at https://evoting.kfintech.com.

Members are requested to:

. intimate to KFintech, changes, if any, in their
registered addresses at an early date, in case
of Shares held in physical form;

. intimate to the respective Depository
Participant, changes, if any, in their registered
addresses at an early date, in case of Shares
held in dematerialised form;

«  quote their folio numbers/Client ID/DP ID in
all correspondence;

- consolidate their holdings into one folio in
case they hold Shares under multiple folios
in the identical order of names; and

«  register their PAN with their Depository
Participants, in case of Shares held in
dematerialised form and KFintech/
Company, in case of Shares held in physical
form, as directed by SEBI.

SCRUTINISER FOR E-VOTING: Ms. Rashida
Adenwala, Practicing Company Secretary
(Membership No. FCS 4020) has been appointed
as the Scrutiniser to scrutinise the e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

SUBMISSION OF QUESTIONS/QUERIES PRIOR
TO AGM:

For ease of conduct of AGM, members who
wish to ask questions/express their views on the
items of the businesses to be transacted at the
meeting are requested to write to the Company’s

21
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investor email-id ir@medplusindia.com,/cs@
medplusindia.com at least 72 hours before the
time fixed for the AGM i.e. by 4:00 PM (IST) on
27th September 2023, mentioning their name,
demat account no./folio number, email ID, mobile
number etc. The queries may be raised precisely
and in brief to enable the Company to answer
the same suitably depending on the availability
of time at the AGM.

Alternatively, Members holding shares as on the
cut-off datei.e. September 22, 2023, may also visit
https://emeetings.kfintech.comand click on the
tab "Post Your Queries” and post their queries/
views/questions in the window provided, by
mentioning their name, demat account number/
folio number, email ID and mobile number.
The window shall be closed 72hours before
the time fixed for the AGM by 4:00 PM (IST) on
27th September 2023.

Members can also post their questions during
AGM through the "Ask A Question” tab, which is
available in the VC/OAVM facility as well as in the
one way live webcast facility.

The Company will, at the AGM, endeavour to
address the queries received till 4:00 PM (IST)
on 27th September 2023 from those Members
who have sent queries from their registered email
IDs. Please note that Members’ questions will be
answered only if they continue to hold shares as
on the cut-off date.

SPEAKER REGISTRATION BEFORE AGM:
Members of the Company, holding shares as on
the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September 2023 and
who would like to speak or express their views
or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as speakers by visiting https://
emeetings.kfintech.com and clicking on
“Speaker Registration” during the period from
25th September 2023(10:00 AM IST) up to
27th September 2023 (4:00 PM IST). Those
Members who have registered themselves as a
speaker will only be allowed to speak/express
their views/ask questions during the AGM.
The Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of speakers depending on the availability
of time at the AGM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS ATTENDING
THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

a) ATTENDING THE AGM: Members will be
provided with a facility to attend the AGM
through video conferencing platform
provided by KFintech. Members are
requested to login at https://emeetings.
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kfintech.com and click on the "Video
Conference” tab to join the Meeting by
using the remote e-voting credentials.

b) Please note that Members who do not have
the User ID and Password for e-voting or
have forgotten the User ID and Password
may retrieve the same by following the
instructions provided in Note No. 22.

c) Members may join the Meeting through
Laptops, Smartphones, Tablets or iPads for
better experience. Further, Members will be
required to use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.
Members will need the latest version of
Chrome, Safari, Internet Explorer 11, MS
Edge or Firefox. Please note that participants
connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets
or through Laptops connecting via mobile
hotspot may experience Audio/Video
loss due to fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use
stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate
any glitches. Members are encouraged
to join the Meeting through Laptops with
latest version of Google Chrome for better
experience.

d) Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 30 minutes before the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting
by following the procedure mentioned at
Note No. 23 (a) and (b) in the Notice, and
this mode will be available throughout the
proceedings of the AGM.

e) In case of any query and/or help, in respect
of attending AGM through VC/OAVM
mode, Members may refer to the Help &
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and
‘AGM VC/OAVM' user manual available at
the download Section of https://evoting.
kfintech.com or contact at ir@medplusindia.
com/cs@medplusindia.com, or Sri Sai
Karthik Tikkisetti, Manager - Corporate
Registry, KFintech at Selenium, Tower B,
Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana -
500 032 or at the email ID evoting@kfintech.
com or on phone No.: 040-6716 1500 or call
KFintech'’s toll free No.: 1800-3454-001 for
any further clarifications.

22, PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

In compliance with the provisions of section 108
of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
as amended and the provisions of Regulation 44
of the Listing Regulations, Members are provided

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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with the facility to cast their vote electronically,
through the e-voting services provided by
KFintech on all resolutions set forth in this Notice,
through remote e-voting.

Members are requested to note that the Company
is providing facility for remote e-voting and the
business may be transacted through electronic
voting system. It is hereby clarified that it is
not mandatory for a Member to vote using the
remote e-voting facility. A Member may avail of
the facility at his/her/its discretion, as per the
instructions provided herein:

Instructions:

a) Member will receive an e-mail from
KFintech [for Members whose e-mail IDs are
registered with the Company/ Depository
Participant(s)] which includes details of
E-Voting Event Number (“EVEN”), USER ID
and password:

i.  Launch internet browser by typing the
URL: https:// evoting.kfintech.com.

ii.  Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID
and password). In case of physical folio,
User ID will be EVEN followed by folio
number. In case of Demat account,
User ID will be your DP ID and Client ID.
However, if you are already registered
with KFintech for e-voting, you can
login by using your existing User ID and
password for casting your vote.

iii. After entering these
appropriately, click on “LOGIN".

details

iv.  You will now reach password change
Menu wherein you are required to
mandatorily change your password.
The new password shall comprise of
minimum 8 characters with at least one
upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z),
one numeric value (0-9) and a special
character (@,#,5, etc.). The system will
prompt you to change your password
and update your contact details like
mobile number, email ID etc. on first
login. You may also enter a secret
question and answer of your choice
to retrieve your password in case you
forget it. It is strongly recommended
that you do not share your password
with any other person and that you
take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

v.  You need to login again with the new
credentials.



vi. On successful login, the system will
prompt you to select the “EVENT” i.e.
MedPlus Health Services Limited.

On the voting page, enter the number
of shares (which represents the number
of votes) as on the cut-off date under
“FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you
may partially enter any number in
“FOR” and partially “AGAINST” but the
total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken
together shall not exceed your total
shareholding as on the cut-off date. You
may also choose the option ABSTAIN.
If the Member does not indicate either
“FOR” or "AGAINST" it will be treated as
“ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not
be counted under either head.

Vii.

viii. Voting has to be done for each item of
the notice separately. In case you do not
desire to cast your vote on any specific

item, it will be treated as abstained.

ix. Members holding multiple folios/
demat accounts shall vote separately
for each folio/demat account.

X.  You may then cast your vote by
selecting an appropriate option and
click on“Submit”.

xi. Aconfirmationboxwillbedisplayed.Click
“OK"to confirm else“CANCEL"to modify.
Onceyouhavevoted ontheresolution(s),
you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

xii. Corporate/Institutional Members

(i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI

etc.) are required to send scanned

certified true copy (PDF Format) of
the Board Resolution/Authority Letter
etc., duly authorising their authorized
representative(s) to attend the AGM
through VC/ OAVM on its behalf and to
vote through remote e-voting to the

Scrutiniser at her e-mail ID rashida@

rna-cs.com with a copy marked to

evoting@kfintech.com and to the

Company at cs@medplusindia.com.

It should reach the Scrutiniser and
the Company by email not later than
September 28, 2023 (05:00 PM IST). In
case if the authorized representative
attends the Meeting, the above mentioned
documents shall be submitted before the
commencement of AGM.

In case e-mail ID of a Member is not
registered with the Company/ Depository
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Participant(s), then such Member is

requested to register/update their e-mail

addresses with the Depository Participant

(in case of Shares held in dematerialised

form) and inform KFintech at the email ID

evoting@kfintech.com (in case of Shares

held in physical form):

i.  Upon registration, Member will receive
an e-mail from KFintech which includes
details of E-Voting Event Number
(EVEN), USER ID and password.

ii. Please follow all steps from Note. No.
22(a) (i) to (xii) above to cast your vote
by electronic means.

23. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

a)

In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect
of voting by electronic means, Members may
refer to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions
(FAQs) and E-voting user manual available at the
download section of https://evoting.kfintech.
com or contact at investors@medplusindia.
com, or Corporate Registry, KFin Technologies
Limited, Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad, Telangana - 500 032 or at the email
ID evoting@kfintech.com or call KFintech'’s toll
free No.: 1800-309 4001 454-001 for any further
clarifications.

You can also update your mobile number
and e-mail ID in the user profile details of the
folio which may be used for sending future
communication(s).

The remote e-voting period commences on
September 26, 2023 (09:00 AM IST) and ends on
September 28, 2023 (05:00 PM IST). During this
period, Members of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialised form,
as on the cut-off date September 22, 2023 (3:30
PM IST) may cast their votes electronically. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled for
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution(s)
is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off
date should treat this Notice for information
purposes only.

The voting rights of Members shall be in
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on September 22,
2023, being the cut-off date. Members are eligible
to cast vote only if they are holding shares as on
that date.
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f)

24.

In case a person has become a Member of the
Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but
on or before the cut-off date for E-Voting, i.e.
September 22, 2023, he/she/it may obtain the
User ID and Password in the manner as mentioned
below:

i. If the mobile number of the Member is
registered against Folio No./DP ID Client
ID, the Member may send SMS: MYEPWD
<space> Folio No. or DP ID Client ID to +91
9212993399. In case of physical holding,
prefix Folio No. with EVEN.

Example for NSDL: MYEPWD <SPACE>
IN12345612345678

Example for CDSL: MYEPWD <SPACE>
1402345612345678

Example for Physical: MYEPWD <SPACE>
XXXX1234567890 (XXXX being EVEN)

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of
the Member is registered against Folio
No./DP ID Client ID, then on the home
page of https://evoting.kfintech.com, the
member may click “Forgot Password” and
enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to
generate a password.

iii. Member may call KFintech's toll free number
1800-3094-001.

iv. Member may send an e-mail request to
evoting@kfintech.com.
KFintech shall send User ID and Password to
those new Members whose e-mail IDs are
available.

VOTING AT THE AGM:

The procedure for e-voting during the AGM is
same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting since the Meeting is being held
through VC/OAVM.

The e-voting window shall be activated upon
instructions of the Chairman of the Meeting
during the AGM.

E-voting during the AGM is integrated with the
VC/OAVM platform and no separate login is
required for the same.

Only those Members/ Shareholders, who will
be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not cast their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to vote through e-voting system in
the AGM.
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Members who have already cast their votes by
remote e-voting are eligible to attend the Meeting
through VC/ OAVM; however, these Members are
not entitled to cast their vote again during the
Meeting. A Member can opt for only single mode
of voting i.e. through Remote e-voting or voting
through VC/OAVM mode during the AGM.

The results shall be declared not later than
forty-eight hours from conclusion of the Meeting.
The results declared along with the Scrutiniser’s
Report will be placed on the website of the
Company at https://www.medplusindia.com and
the website of KFin: https://evoting.kfintech.com
immediately after the results are declared and
will simultaneously be forwarded to BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
where Equity Shares of the Company are listed
and shall be displayed at the Registered Office as
well as at the Corporate Office of the Company.

PROCEDURE FOR REGISTERING THE EMAIL
ADDRESSES AND OBTAINING THE AGM
NOTICE AND E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS BY
THE MEMBERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE
NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES
(IN CASE OF MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN
DEMAT FORM) OR WITH KFINTECH (IN CASE
OF MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL
FORM):

a. Those Members who have not yet registered
their email addresses are requested to get
their email addresses registered by following
the procedure given below:

i. ~ Members holding shares in demat form
can get their email ID registered by
contacting their respective Depository
Participant.

ii. Members holding shares in physical
form may register their email address
and mobile number with KFin
Technologies Private Limited by sending
the prescribed ISR form as per the
SEBI circular date November 03, 2021
(SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
CIR/2021/655) The required ISR forms
can be obtained by following the link:
https://ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/
isc/default.aspx

The Members may also visit the website of
the Company www.medplusindia.com and
click on the “email registration” and follow
the registration process as guided thereafter.

Please note that in case of shareholding in
dematerialised form, the updation of email
address will be temporary only upto AGM.



After successful updation of the email
address, KFintech will email a copy of this
AGM Notice along with the e-voting user
ID and password. In case of any queries,
Members are requested to write to KFintech.

Those Members who have already registered
their email addresses are requested to keep
their email addresses validated/updated
with their DPs/ KFintech to enable serving
of notices/documents/ Annual Reports and
other communications electronically to their
email address in future.

26. KPRISM - Mobile service application by
KFintech:

Members are requested to note that KFintech
has launched a mobile application —KPRISM and a
websitehttps://kprism.kfintech.comforonlineservice
to Shareholders.

Members can download the mobile application,
register themselves (one time) for availing host
of services viz., view of consolidated portfolio
serviced by KFin, requests for change of address,
change/update Bank Mandate. Through the
Mobile application, Members can download
Annual Reports, standard forms and keep track
of upcoming General Meetings. The mobile
application is available for download from
Android Play Store. Members may alternatively

Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special
Business pursuant to section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013

ITEM NO. 3

The Company has received the consent from
M/s. BSR and Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm's
Registration No 128510W), for their appointment
as Statutory Auditors and have issued a certificate
confirming that their appointment, if made, will be
within the limits prescribed under the provisions of
Section 139 of the Act. M/s. BSR and Co, Chartered
Accountants have confirmed that they are eligible
for the proposed appointment under the Act, the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and the rules
or regulations made thereunder. As confirmed to
the Audit Committee and stated in their report on
financial statements, the Auditors have reported their
independence from the Company and its subsidiaries
according to the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') and the
ethical requirements relevant to audit.

Based on the recommendations of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors, it is hereby
proposed to appoint M/s. BSR and Co, Chartered
Accountants (Firm's Registration No 128510W) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five
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@ Notice

visit the link https://kprism.kfintech.com/app/ to
download the mobile application.

27. Webcast:

Your Company will be providing the facility of live
webcast of proceedings of AGM. Members who
are entitled to participate in the AGM can view
the proceeding of AGM by logging on the website
of KFintechat https://emeetings.kfintech.com
using their secure login credentials. Members
are encouraged to use this facility of webcast.
During the live webcast of AGM, Members may
post their queries in the message box provided
on the screen.

By Order of the Board
For MedPlus Health Services Limited

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Srivastava

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. FCS 7460

Registered Office:

H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,
Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road,
Moosapet, Kukatpally,

Hyderabad - 500037, Telangana

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023

consecutive years, to hold office from the ensuing
17th AGM till the conclusion of the 22nd AGM of the
Company. Besides the audit services, the Company
would also obtain certifications from the statutory
auditors under various statutory regulations and
certifications required by clients, banks, statutory
authorities and audit related services as required
from time to time, for which they will be remunerated
separately as mutually agreed by the Board of Directors/
Audit Committee and the Statutory Auditors of the
Company.The Board of Directors in consultation with
the Audit Committee may alter and vary the terms and
conditions of appointment, including remuneration
and manner of payment thereof in such manner and
to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the
Statutory Auditors.

Brief Profile of M/s. BSR and Co. Chartered
Accountant

B S R and Co ('the firm') was constituted on 01
September 2007 as a partnership firm having
firm Registration No. as 128510W. The registered
office of the firm is at 14th Floor, Central B Wing
and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Centre,
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai-
400063. B S R and Co is a member entity of BS R &
Affiliates, a network registered with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. BS R and Co is
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registered in Mumbai, Gurgaon, Bangalore and
Hyderabad. B S R and Co together with its member
firms has around 4000+ staff and 200+ Partners. B S
R member firms audits various companies listed on
stock exchanges in India including companies in the
Retail Sector.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item
No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members by
way of an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company or their relatives are interested or
concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

ITEM NO. 4

Being the key stakeholders of the Company, the
promoters bring out significant alignment with the
Company'’s core values and vision. The Company
can leverage their expertise and insights in its
decision-making process by granting nomination
rights on the board which would substantially align
their interests with those of the Company’s long-term
growth and profitability. The Company hereby
proposes to give nomination rights on its board jointly
to the promoters, namely Mr. Gangadi Madhukar

Reddy, Agilemed Investments Private Limited and
Lone Furrow Investments Private Limited, of the
Company.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 7,
2023 has approved and recommends the alteration
of Articles for approval by the Members, through
insertion of Article 102A, under Sub Article of 102
(‘Number of Directors’) in the AOA.

The consent of the Members is being sought by way
of Special Resolution as set out at Agenda Item No.
4 of the accompanying Notice. Except Mr. Gangadi
Madhukar Reddy, and his relatives, none of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
are, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in this resolution.

By Order of the Board
For MedPlus Health Services Limited

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Srivastava

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. FCS 7460

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023

ANNEXURE A: Profile of Director

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the details
of the Director proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is as given below:

Name of Director

Mr. Atul Gupta

Date of Birth; Age

Date of Appointment

Terms and conditions of appointment
Qualification

Nature of expertise in specific functional areas

Remuneration Last Drawn

Remuneration to be Drawn

No of Board Meeting attended during FY 22-23
Shareholding in the Company

Relationship with other Directors and KMPs
Directorships held in other Companies

Chairperson/membership held in other
Companies

Listed Entities from which the person has
resigned in the past 3 years

October 28, 1971; 52 Years

February 06, 2021

Nominee Director in terms of the Pl Opportunities Fund |

Bachelor's degree from technology from the Indian Institute of
Technology, Bombay and a master's degree in business administration
from the Walter A. Haas School of Business, University of California,
Berkeley.

He is employed as an investment partner at Premji Invest and leads
investments in technology enabled sectors including consumer-tech,
health-tech, fin-tech and enterprise tech. He has more than 14 years of
experience in the investment industry.

Nil

Nil

Refer Corporate Governance Report of the Annual report.

0.01% (22,914 shares)

Not related to any director/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
« Amagi Media Labs Private Limited

« Merittrac services Private Limited

« Lenskart Solutions Private Limited

« Koye Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

« Globalbees Brands Private Limited

« Brainbees Solutions Private Limited

« Manash Lifestyle Private Limited

« Next SCM Solutions Private Limited

Nil

NA

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS

Indian Economy

The previous financial year started with runaway
inflation, anxiety of worldwide recession, aggressive
monetary policy tightening, and soaring commodity
prices that threatened to push the world economy
into a tailspin. However, by the end of thatvolatile
period, almost all the major economies adjusted to
the new situation, and consumer confidence and
spending rebounded, even though the world is not
out of the woods yet.

Meanwhile, the latest MoSPI (Ministry of Statistics and
Programme Implementation) data suggests that the
Indian economy grew by 6.1% in the March quarter
of FY23 pulling the annual GDP number to 7.2%, 200
bps, higher than earlier estimates.

The Government of India’s capex continues to be a
key growth driver as the GFCF (Gross Fixed Capital
Formation) grew by 11.4% in the financial year.

The overall growth pattern remains broad-based,

with sectors such as construction and agriculture
witnessing better-than-expected growth.Moreover,

RURAL-INFLATION HIGHEST IN NINE YEARS

Rural Inflation Rate of Inflation
M Rural @ Urban

y-0-y%
at 6.8% in
FY23 vs 6.4%
in Urban areas

Rural inflation
higher than
urban for first

time since FY18 FY23 IFY22 [FY21 IFY20 IFY19 | FY18 I FY17 1FY16 | FY15

FOOD AND CLOTHING
INFLATION HIGHER IN

NINE STATES HAVE
HIGHER INFLATION THAN
NATIONAL AVERAGE

Seven states | Telangana

RURAL AREAS
Food and clothing inflation

0.3% point higher in rural areas haﬂve an " ha;]s highest
. . inflation o inflation at
Clothing and | Services and Infla :
footwear fuelinflation °Ver7% 8.6%in FY23
inflation 0.5% | is stil higherin Six states had lower inflation
more than urban centres rate than 6% in FY23
urban Inflation rate %
M Rural @ Urban Telangana
Food and
beverages
Clothing and
footwear
Fuel and

light
Miscellaneous

Consumer Food
Price Index

Rajasthjan

(Source: MoSPI, RBI, ET analysis)
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strong manufacturing growth was evident in the last
quarter of the financial year.

Private final consumption showed a healthy growth
of 7.5% last fiscal, touching almost the pre-pandemic
trend.But it was mostly urban in nature, whereas rural
consumption remained weak owing to highrural
inflation of 6.8% against 6.4% in urban centers in FY23.

By the end of the last financial year inflation dropped
significantly because of a cumulative repo rate hike of
250 bpsasit fell within the periphery of RBI's tolerable
limit.

Outlook:Most global and Indian agencies have
projected the Indian economy to grow between
6-6.5% in FY24. A recent pickup in investment
(government and private) in manufacturing and
infrastructure may augur well for the Indian economy
which may be looking at a multi-year growth cycle.

But variables like geopolitical fragmentation, weak
global demand, persistent inflation and resultant
monetary tightening by RBI, and high borrowing
costs may cause a decline in growth and a reduction
in investments as well.

India's GDP is experiencing a strong rebound
Real GDP (seasonally adj, level values)

@ No-Covid growth @ Actual GDP
INR billion

44,000
42,000
40,000
38,000
36,000
34,000
32,000
30,000
28,000

Pre-Covid
level

Second wave

000
Q@ Q3 04‘01 Q2 Q3 04‘01 Q2 @ 04‘01 Q Q3 04‘01 Q2 @3

(Source: Center for Monitoring Indian Economy; Deloitte research)
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https://www.livemint.com/economy/bright-spot-
in-global-economy-indias-gdp-has-touched-3-
75-trillion-mark-in-2023-says-nirmala-sit
haraman-11686564064530.html#:~:text=Recent%20
government®%20data®%20revealed®%?20
that,geopolitical%20conflicts%20and%20global%20
headwinds.

https://www.financialexpress.com/economy/revival-in-
private-consumption-still-some-time-away/3109540/

https://www.livemint.com/economy/
rbi-mpc-meeting-governor-shaktikanta-das-
announces-monetary-policy-rate-inflation-growth-
of-india-fy2024-11691639852238.html

https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/
economy/indicators/rural-inflation-higher-in-
fy23-heres-the-data/articleshow/99540354.
cms?from=mdr

Indian Pharmacy Retail Industry

Previously being traditional brick-and-mortar
medicine shops, Indian pharmacies were a completely
unorganized subset of the Indian pharma industry. But
with the introduction of organized retail in the Indian
market and the advent of technology, organized
pharmacy chains have started cropping up in the
country.Today, it commands a significant presence in
most urban and semi-urban centres in India.

Compared to the older neighbourhood pharmacies,
modern retail pharmacy chains have attractive
displays with completely digitized work models
selling 100% reliable goods. Additionally, they also
provide value-added services to the customers like
home delivery of medicine, etc.

They have mobile app support where customers can
browse the products easily where they sell healthcare
and wellness products too. Hence, these pharmacy
chains operate on hyperlocal or omnichannel business
models.

This sector is gaining traction in recent years primarily
due to the deep discounts and convenience the
companies are offering. Several companies including
large conglomerates, leading E-commerce companies,
brick-and-mortar shops and startups have entered
this market.

E-pharmacies came into prominence during the
Covid-19 pandemic which disrupted our traditional
healthcare system but impacted online pharmacies
in a positive way. The market witnessed a huge
spike in sales during this time. These companies also
collaborated with E-payment platforms for safe and
convenient transactions.

Growth drivers:

. Today a sizable amount of the population
prefers doorstep delivery because firstly, not all
medicines are available at all locations of the
country. Secondly, it reduces the need for elderly
and sick people to actually go to a medicine shop
and buy them. Lastly, the younger generation
heavily relies on online shopping rather than
actually going to the physical store.

. Increasing smart phone and internet penetration
is also helping the E-pharmacy market to grow.
In 2023, the penetration rate of smart phones in
India reached 71% and is estimated to reach 96%
in 2040. (Source: Statista)

Growth drivers:

In 2020, the pharmacy retail market in India was
valued at ¥1,783.83 Bn and is expected to reach
33,078.46 Bn by 2026, expanding at a CAGR of 12.02%.
Owing to the growing population and patient pool
as well as theaffordability of medicines, this market
has witnessed significant growth in the last few
years. Further, consumers have improved access to
medicines because of advanced medical infrastructure
and the launch of new patented drugs.

India E-Pharmacy Market

By Value, 2018-2028 (USD Million)

328.42

2,281.6

2018

2019 ' 2020 = 2021 = 2022

2023

2024 2025 ' 2026 = 2027 2028

(Source: Blueweave Consulting)

https://www.blueweaveconsulting.com/report/india-epharmacy-market

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

28



® Corporate Overview @ Statutory Reports ® Financial Statements

Megatrends

Preventive healthcare: The approach towards
health has changed since the pandemic which
marked a shift from just remedial to preventive. To
this effect, immunity-boosting drinks, food, vitamin
and several diagnostic products& packagesare getting
increasingly popular. Thus,modern healthcare sector is
working on apredict and prevent’model.This increase
in demand for better quality preventive healthcare is
driving the growth in organized retail pharmacies in
India.

Omni channel/Hyper local presence: E-pharmacies
offer extreme convenience for consumersin ordering
anddelivering products. But with an extremely diverse
consumer pool, there is a requirement for pharmacies
to offer all modes of service, physical and otherwise.
These omnichannelmodels where pharmacies can
offer a seamless experience be it an in-person, app/
website, phone delivery or other mode of service are
also pushing the growth in the industry.

Technological advancements: Retail pharmacies are
investing heavily in tools such as artificial intelligence
(Al), big data analytics and thereby improving service,
cutting costs and optimizing stock availability. The
goal here is to enhance patient access to virtual care
via mobile devices, to find the most efficient way
to share information between patients, healthcare
providers and treatment centres. As consumers
continue to prioritise their health, these pharmacies
can provide better convenience, informed advice, and
quality services to the consumers.

Opportunities

Supply-demand gap: The number of organised retail
chains in the pharma space in the country is limited.
Right now, the organised pharma retail space in India
largely has regional chains or popular standalone
outlets within cities catering to a captive market
which is a very small percentage of the overall pharma
market.

Naturally, there is still a demand and supply gap for
pharma products especially in rural and tier Il cities.
This presents an opportunity for all the organised
players to expand their network and distribution
channels through the length & breadth of the country.

The reason why, the country’s top two organized
retailers are also jumping the bandwagon to this large
pharma retail market in India which can scale up the
future of the industry.

Emergence of private-label products: Retail
pharmacy chains are also witnessing the rise of
private-label products. These products are mostly
in health, beauty and wellness categories and offer
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significant margins to the retailers compared to the
branded products.

Rising income, lifestyle, awareness & affordability:
The growth in the annual income of the population,
increasing affordability of medicines and increasing
demand for e-commerce sites will provide beneficial
opportunities for the pharmacy retail market.

Further, the rise in chronic diseases and increasing
health awarenesswith growing healthcare
expenditure, innovative marketing strategies, an
upsurge in the development of hospital-based
pharmacies and wellness stores, and a rising geriatric
population are the factors that are likely to expand the
pharmacy retail market in the future.

Threats

Trust factor:Though big companies are entering the
pharmacy retail segment, it would be difficult for some
time before the organized retail pharmacy playerscan
actually replace the neighbourhood chemist, due to
the sheer reach and size of the segment.

Increasing competition: With the growing popularity
of organized retail pharmacies, many large companies
are throwing their hat in the ring which intensifies
competition and may hamper margins and profitability
in the future.

Changing consumer preference: Indian consumers
today expect medicine shopping to be a pleasurable
experience. But this trend is more prevalent only
in urban centers where people are ready to pay a
premium price. However, things are very different in
tier 2 and beyond where traditional shops are likely to
stay longer than anticipated.

Counterfeit medicines: Because of gaps in the
distribution system and proper regulatory oversight at
each level of the logistics supply chain incidents of fake
medicines entering the system are not very uncommon
which can portray the industry in a bad light.

MedPlus’ takes

Retail chain pharmacy is considered a sunrise sector in
India that is still in its nascent stage and has tremendous
scope to grow. But pharmacy retailing is a capital-intensive
business and setting up involves scouting for strategic
locations while operating within a fixed margin regulated
as per government-stipulated prices.

So, the nature of the business dictates that only
organisations in leadership positions with strong
financial backgrounds can leverage the opportunities
in the market and still grow effortlessly. MedPlus
Health is one such organization.

Given our strong in-depth knowledge of the industry
and market dynamics, our deep understanding of
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the demographics we serve and our solid back-end  6,347.9 Million by 2029 owing to a rise in healthcare
infrastructure (warehouses, distribution channels), we  awareness, increase in preventive healthcare
are in a perfect position to grow exponentially in the  check-ups, prevalence of cancer, infectious diseases,
years to come. and also largely because of an increase in better health

Further, our vertically-integrated operations Insurance penetration.

supported by technology, omnichannel presence Company overview

and a step-up in store.ex'pansion Wi”' lead MedPlus  MedPlus is an organized pharmacy retail company with
to gain market share within the organized pharmacy  poth an online and offline presence. The Company was
retail space. established in 2006 by our Founder, Managing Director
India Diagnostic Industry and CEO ("MD & CEO") Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy
with a vision to deliver authentic quality medicine
to the customers with the aid of technology while
streamlining the inefficiencies in the supply chain.

The Indian diagnostic industry is a highly fragmented
sector largely dominated by unorganized players.
The domestic diagnostic industry is primarily a
doctor-driven market which helps local players thrive. ~ The Company operates in retail and wholesale sales,
However, with large players entering tier 2 and tier  import, distribution, manufacturing and contract
3 cities, there is an accelerated formalization of the  manufacturing of private-label pharmaceuticals,
industry. wellness and FMCG products and full-fledged
diagnostic centres only in Hyedrabad, Telangana.
The Company has nearly 4000 stores across ten states
in India with little more than 21,000 permanent
full-time employees.

The diagnostics part of the healthcare industry has
been growing at a fast pace over the past couple of
years - fuelled by the pandemic. In recent times, the
domestic market is evolving from standalone centres
to multiple diagnostic chains while continuously = MedPlus’ operations across the entire value chain are
reinventing itself. backwards-integrated and are managed in-house.
It bodes well for the Company and has made us the
second-largest pharmacy retailer chain in India in
terms of revenue.

India Diagnostics Market was valued at USD 1,928.7
Million in 2022 and is projected to reach USD

Segmental revenue (% in Million)
Particulars Seveaue

Retail 45,268.70 37,718.03
Diagnostics 305.54 74.76
Others 1.52 0.00

In FY 23, the Company witnessed significant revenue growth, Stores older than 12 months rose by15.6% over
FY 22, and Revenue from operations increased by 20.6% over FY 22.

The Company’s mature outlets (>12m) maintained solid operational performance, with 9.5% Store Level EBITDA
margin and 2.8% Store Level Operating Return on Capital Employed.

Private label share climbed from 12.7% t013.6% in FY 23, while gross margin improved from 21.1% to 21.9% in
FY 23.

As of March 31,2023, the Company had 3,822 pharmacy outlets. In FY 23, the business opened 1144 gross new
pharmacy stores, up from 747 in FY 22. This marks a new high for MedPlus and demonstrates the strength of
its supply chain and operational skills.

The Company has three full-service Diagnostic Centres and four Level-2 Diagnostic Centres and one full service
Diagnostic centre and 4 Level-2 Diagnostics centres were yet to open as on March 31,2023, and both its current
and potential clients have embraced it enthusiastically.
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Financial overview

Summarised consolidated Profit and Loss statement

Particulars

Total Income < million
Revenue from operations T million
Purchase of stock-in-trade, cost of Z million

materials consumed and changes in % of revenue

inventories (“Cost of goods sold”)

Employee benefits expense T million

% of revenue
Finance costs T million

% of revenue
Depreciation and amortisation expense % million

% of revenue
Other expenses T million

% of revenue
Total Expeneses T million

% of revenue
Profit before tax T million

% of revenue
Total Tax expense I million

% of revenue
Profit after tax < million

% of revenue

FY22 % changey-o-y
46,036.54 38,106.42 20.8%
45,575.76 37,792.79 20.6%
35,576.88 29,823.75 19.3%

78.1% 78.9% -1.1%
5,451.29 3,939.2 38.4%
12.0% 10.4% 14.8%
830.27 664.28 25.0%
1.8% 1.8% 3.6%
1,815.56 1,193.6 52.1%
4.0% 3.2% 26.1%
1,890.91 1,306.16 44.8%
4.1% 3.5% 20.0%
45,564.91 36,926.99 23.4%
100.0% 97.7% 2.3%
471.63 1,179.43 -60.0%
1.0% 3.1% -66.8%
-29.42 232.27 -112.7%
-0.1% 0.6% -110.5%
501.05 947.16 -47.1%
1.1% 2.5% -56.1%

Total income

Total income is increased by 20.8% in FY 23 compared
to FY 22. Growth has been contributed by Matured
stores and New stores.

Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations has grown by 20.6% in FY
23 compared to FY 22. Stores greater than 12 months
in age has grown by 15.6% during the same period.

Cost of goods sold

Increase in cost of goods is largely in line with the
increase in revenue from operations. Cost of goods as
% of revenue has decreased by 8 bps to 78.1% in FY
23 from 78.9% in FY 22.

Employee benefit expenses

Employee benefit expenses have increased by 38.4%
in FY 23 in comparison to FY 22. This incremental cost
is mainly driven by addition of 1144 stores in FY 23.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by 25.0%, driven by increase
in interest on lease liabilities primarily on account of
new stores added during the year FY 23.
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Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses increased
by 52.1% in FY 23 primarily due to depreciation and
amortisation of plant and equipment in new stores
and amortisation of lease asset in new stores.

Other expenses

Other expenses have been increased by 44.8% in FY
23 in comparison of FY 22, primarily driven by increase
in electricity, communication expenses and other
operational expenses primarily on account of New
stores.

Total tax expenses

Tax expenses have decreased by 112.7% in FY 23 in
comparison to FY 22 driven by deferred tax benefit
on account of increase in claim under Section 80JJAA
with increase in number of employees and reduction
in non-deductible expenses compared to FY 22.

Profit after tax

As a result, Company’s overall profit is decreased by
47.1% in FY 23 in comparison to FY 22.
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Key balance sheet items

Particulars FY2022 % change yoy

Property, plant and equipment 2,883.35 1,618.69 78.1%
Inventory 11,440.87 9,149.84 25.0%
Cash and Bank balances including fixed deposits 2,874.87 6,575.60 -56.3%
Trade payable 2,601.44 2,462.32 5.6%
Trade receivables 86.51 60.36 43.3%
Total equity (Shareholders funds/ networth) 14,905.01 14,172.53 5.2%
Borrowings - 1,426.82 -100.0%

The strength of the balance sheetin FY 23 isimproved primarily on account of increase in inventory and additions
to Property Plant and Equipment due to increase in new stores and repayment of borrowings.

Key financial ratios

Particulars

Inventory Turnover (Days)
Interest Coverage Ratio
Current Ratio

Debt Equity Ratio
Debtors Turnover (Days)
Operating Profit Margin
Net Profit Margin

Return on Net Worth

FY2023

FY2022 % change yoy

91.63 88.37 3.69%
1.57 2.78 -43.50%
3.1 292 6.44%

- 0.10 -100.00%

0.69 0.58 18.85%
2.86% 4.88% -41.45%
1.10% 2.51% -56.13%
3.45% 8.82% -60.92%

Explanation of the ratios

Inventory turnover ratio measures the efficiency with
which a Company utilises or manages its inventory.
It establishes the relationship between revenue from
operations and inventory held during the period. It
is calculated by dividing the inventory with revenue
from operations and multiplied by 365 days. Interest
Coverage Ratio measures how many times a company
can cover its current interest with its available earnings.
It is calculated by dividing earnings before interest
and tax by total finance cost. Current ratio indicates
a company’s overall liquidity position and measures
company’s ability to pay short-term obligations or
those due within one year. It is calculated by dividing
current assets by current liabilities. Debt equity ratio
is used to evaluate a Company's financial leverage.
It is @ measure of the degree to which a company is
financing its operations through debt versus owned
funds. It is calculated by dividing total borrowings by
total equity.

Debtors’'(Trade receivables) turnover ratio measures
the efficiency with which a Company utilises or
manages its debtors. It establishes the relationship
between revenue from operations and debtors held
during the period. It is calculated by dividing the
debtors with revenue from operations and multiplied
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by 365 days. Operating margin % - operating margin
measures how much profit a company makes on
a rupee of sales after paying for cost of goods sold,
employee benefits expenses, other expenses and
depreciation and amortization expenses, but before
paying finance cost and tax. Itis calculated by dividing
EBIT by revenue from operations. Net profit margin
% net profit margin measures how much net profit
a company makes on a rupee of sales It is calculated
by dividing a company’s profit after tax by its revenue
from operations. Return on Networth/ equity is a
measure of profitability of a company expressed in
percentage. It is calculated by dividing net profit by
average net worth/ total equity.

Risk Management

Risks are an unpredictable yet inevitable part of any
business operation. It may include pillage in the office
premises, losing revenue because of a sudden change in
customer preference or loss or damage due to theft or fire
and much more. These risks can't be totally eliminated
but with a proper risk management policy and mitigation
measures in place, the negative impact of the untoward
incidents can be minimised to a great degree.

Product Quality risk:

Customer dissatisfaction due to ineffective product
quality and service.
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Mitigation:

- The Company's quality team conducts rigorous
quality and safety tests to verify that all quality
requirements are met. Customer concerns are
taken seriously by the Company.

- The stores offer authentic, high-quality pharma
products and quickly moving consumer goods
at competitive rates, presenting a consistent and
unified customer experience.

Competition risk:

Being a lucrative marketplace, the organized retail
medicine chain has the potential to attract new
companies which may intensify the competition to a
much greater degree.

Mitigation:
«  MedPlus has a large portfolio of products and

services that can cater to a wide variety of
customers.

«  The Company has an omnichannel presence
through which customers can be reached
conveniently and easily.

«  The Company regularly engages in campaigning
to increase brand awareness and customer
loyalty.

Supply-chain risk:
Problems in the logistics supply chain can force our
entire operations to a standstill.

Mitigation:

+  The Company works only with suppliers across
the various states to reduce the risk of supply
chain interruptions, and also diversifies the
sourcing partners for uninterrupted supply.

«  We review our supply chain risk profile regularly.

Insufficient inventory risk:

Insufficient products in the inventory can lead to loss
of sales, missing out on cost efficiencies and increasing
customer dissatisfaction.

Mitigation:

«  MedPlus employs state-of-the-art technology
for accurate inventory forecasting to avoid
understocking and overstocking.

Internal control and adequacy
The Company has a strong internal control structure in
place for its activities and operations. It continuously
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aims to integrate all aspects of the business, from basic
operational activities to strategic support activities.
We make sure that all of our methods adhere to
established rules, practises and legal requirements.
The Company hascreated well-documented policies,
authorization and approval processes, as well as
routine audits. All financialand operational controls
across all departments, divisions, and functions are
included in the internal audit system. Our internal
audit team regularly examines the organisation’s
different operations and spots areas forimprovement.

Human resources

At MedPlus we consider our team members as our
most valuable resources who contribute towards the
long-term vision and sustenance of the Company.
We also treat all our team members equally and fairly
irrespective of their position in the organization.

In turn, all our team members are committed to acting
with compassion, integrity, honesty and high ethical
standards while developing their career aspirations
working with the Company.

As an organization, we are committed to create a
culture of providing an energetic, enabling, safe and
open work environment for all our team members. We
also focused towards recruiting talents from different
world-class institutions and nurturing& retaining
them so that they can develop cross-functional
expertise and deliver a high-quality experience for all
our customers. The details relating to developments
in human resources including number of employees
forms a part of the Business Responsibility and
Sustainability of this Annual Report.

Cautionary statement

The statements made in the Management Discussion
and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, estimates, and expectations, maybe
‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning
of applicable securities laws & regulations. Actual
results could differ from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could make a difference to the
Company’s operations include economic conditions
affecting demand, supply and price conditions in the
domestic & overseas markets in which the Company
operates, changes in the government regulations, tax
laws & other statutes & other incidental factors.

https://www.marketresearch.com/Netscribes-India-
Pvt-Ltd-v3676/Pharmacy-Retail-India-31153192/
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting here the 17th Annual Report of the Company along with the Audited
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report thereon for the financial year ended

March 31, 2023.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and

Taxation

Less: Depreciation, amortization and Impairment Expenses

Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and Taxation
Less: Finance Costs

Profit before taxation

Less Tax Expenses/(Benefit)

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income/(Benefit) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

(Z in Million)

Standalone Consolidated
213926 1,457.14 4557576  37,792.79
162.39 95.41 460.78 313.63
20438 12842 3,117.46 3,037.31
153.07 46.32 1,815.56 1,193.60
141.31 82.10 1,301.90 1,843.71
65.45 26.31 830.27 664.28
75.86 55.79 471.63 1,179.43
20.42 - (29.42) 232.27
55.44 55.79 501.05 947.16
(3.56) 1.17 3.34 18.28
51.88 56.96 504.39 965.44

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is a leading retail pharmacy Company in
India. During the FY 2022-23, on a consolidated basis,
the total income stood at ¥46,036.54 million as against
%38,106.42 million in the corresponding previous year
with a growth of 20.81%. On a standalone basis, your
Company's total income stood at ¥2,301.65 million
in the FY 2022-23 as against ¥1552.55 million in the
corresponding previous year with a growth of 48.25%.

During the year 1144 stores were added to the cluster
store network of the Company as compared to 747
stores in the corresponding previous year. As on
March 31, 2023 the Company’s total fleet of stores is
3822 (as compared to 2748 stores in the corresponding
previous year).

The Company has started its Diagnostic Centres in
the year 2021 as pilot project. During the year the
Company has performed reasonably well.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company does not propose to transfer any
amount to General Reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2023, the paid-up Equity Share
Capital of the Company is 3238.61 million, consisting
of 11,93,05,676 equity shares of 32 each. This is same
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as previous year i. e. March 31, 2022, and there has
been no change.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the
public and as such, no amount of principal or interest
was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES,
INVESTMENTS

During the year, the Company has made an investment
0f%4,671.70 million in Optival Health Solutions Private
Limited, the subsidiary of the Company. The loans,
guarantees and investments covered under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes
to the financial statements provided in this Annual
Report.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

There were no contracts, arrangements or transaction
during the year that fall under Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. As required under Companies
Act, 2013, the prescribed Form AOC-2 is appended
as Annexure-D to the Board Report. All Related Party
Transactions entered during the year were in the
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.
The Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related
Party Transactions is available on the Company’s
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website: https://www.medplusindia.com/pdf/
Policy-on-Materiality-of-and-Dealing-with-Related-
Party-Transactions.pdf

DIVIDEND

Your directors have not recommended any dividend
for the financial year 2022-23.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Dividend Distribution Policy contains the
requirements mentioned in Regulation 43A of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Listing
Regulations and the same is available on the
Company’s website on https://www.medplusindia.
com/pdf/Policy-on-Dividend-Distribution.pdf.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report is set out in this Annual Report

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries are prepared in
accordance with Section 129(3) of Companies
Act, 2013 and IND AS 110 and 111 as specified in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
along with all relevant documents and the Auditors’
Report which forms part of this Annual Report. The
Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the
Company include the financial results of its subsidiary
Companies.

BOARD POLICIES

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors
has approved and adopted the policies and the same
is provided in Annexure G of the Board’s report which
forms part of the Annual Report.

POLICYONPREVENTIONOF SEXUALHARRASMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, (POSH), the Company has
a framed a policy on Prevention and Resolution of
Sexual Harassment at workplace. The Company’s goal
has always been to create an open and safe workplace
for every employee to feel empowered, irrespective
of gender, sexual preferences, and other factors, and
contribute to the best of their abilities. Towards this,
the Company has set up the Internal Complaints
Committees (“ICC") to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment and the Company has
complied with provisions relating to the constitution
of ICC under the Act. All employees (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this Policy. The details of Complaints received,
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resolved are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report which forms part of Annual Report.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company grants share-based benefits to
eligible employees with a view to attract and retain
the best talent, encouraging employees to align
individual performances with Company objectives,
and promoting increased participation by them
in the growth of the Company. The Company is
having MedPlus Employees Stock Option and Shares
Plan-2009 (‘ESOP, 2009") and MedPlus Employees Stock
Option and Shares Plan-2021 (‘ESOP, 2021’) in line with
the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SBEB&SE Regulations).
Upon the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors,
the Members of the Company by way of Postal Ballot,
approved the extending benefits of ESOP, 2021 to the
employees of the subsidiary Companies on June 18,
2023") a statement containing details of the ESOP
grantis annexed to this Board’s Report as Annexure-B.

The company has received a certificate from
Ms. Rashida Adenwala, (C.P. NO.: 2224; M.No. 4020),
from M/S. R & A Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Hyderabad, the Secretarial Auditor of
the Company. The certificate certifies that the ‘ESOP,
2009"and ‘ESOP, 2021’ is implemented in accordance
with SEBI (Share Based Employees Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, and the resolutions
passed by the members. This certificate is available for
inspection by members in electronic mode.

SUBSIDIARIES

As on March 31, 2023, the Company is having seven
direct subsidiaries i.e. Optival Health Solutions
Private Limited (“OHSPL"), Wynclark Pharmaceuticals
Private Limited (“WPPL"), Kalyani Meditimes Private
Limited (“KMPL”), Clearancekart Private Limited
(“CPL") MHS Pharmaceuticals Private Limited,
(“MHSPPL”), Nova Sud Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(“NSPPL"), MedPlus Insurance Brokers Private Limited
('MIBPL) and five step down subsidiaries which
is Deccan Medisales Private Limited, ("“DMPL"),
Sai Sridhar Pharma Private Limited (“SSPPL"), Shri
Banashankari Pharma Private Limited (“SBPPL"),
Sidson Pharma Distributors Private Limited
(“SPDPL") and Venkata Krishna Enterprises Private
Limited (“VKEPL).

During the year the Company has incorporated a
Subsidiary Company namely MedPlus Insurance
Brokers Private Limited. None of the Companies or
otherwise were ceased to be subsidiaries, joint venture
or associate, otherwise.
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The statement containing the financial position of the
subsidiary companies forms part of this Annual Report.
The Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the
subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared the
Consolidated financial statements, which form part of
this Annual Report. The statement also provides details
of the performance and financial position of each of
the subsidiaries, along with the changes that occurred,
during the year under review. In accordance with
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited
financial statements, including the Consolidated
financial statements and related information of the
Company and audited accounts of its subsidiaries,
which forms part of this Annual Report. The Policy for
determining Material Subsidiaries is available on the
Company’s website: https://www.medplusindia.com/
uploads/content/Policy-on-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
Further, a statement containing the salient features
of the financial statements of subsidiaries in the
prescribed format AOC-1 is appended as Annexure-A
to the Board’s report. This statement also provides
details of the performance of the subsidiaries and
their overall contribution to the performance of the
company.

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS

The Board of Directors has approved the Scheme
of Amalgamation of MHS Pharmaceuticals Private
Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(Transferee Company) with MedPlus Health Services
Limited (Transferor Company) on January 9, 2023.
The Company is in the process of filing the application
to NCLT for amalgamation.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
(“IEPF”)

The Company has not declared any dividend so far.
Thus, the Company has no unclaimed dividend to
transfer to IEPF pursuant to provisions of Sections
124 and 125 of the Company’s Act, 2013 read with
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
(“IEPF Rules”) as amended from time to time. Hence,
the Company has not transferred any amount to the
said fund.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is having six Board members comprising
of Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy, Promoter, Chairman,
MD & CEO, Mr. Atul Gupta, Non-Executive Director,
Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf, Non-Executive Director,
Mr. Murali Sivaraman, Non-Executive Independent
Director, Mr. Madhavan Ganesan, Non-Executive
Independent Director, Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani,
Non-Executive Independent Director. During the
year under review, there was no change/cessation
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of any Director, including Independent Directors
of the Company. However, pursuant to provision
of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Atul Gupta will retire
by rotation as Director at the ensuing AGM and
being eligible, seek re-appointment, the Board has
recommended his re-appointment.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy, Chairman, MD & CEO,
Mr. Sujit Kumar Mahato Chief Financial Officer and
Mr. Manoj Kumar Srivastava, Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer of the Company are the
Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Company
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, Mr. Hemanth
Kundavaram, Chief Financial Officer, resigned
and relieved on June 5, 2022, and Mr. Sujit Kumar
Mahato, appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
w.e.f. November 11, 2022, and Mr. Manoj Kumar
Srivastava, appointed as the Head Company
Secretary and Complaince Officer of the Company
wef. March 30, 2023, Ms. Shilpi Keswani demiited the
office of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the Company w.e.f. March 30, 2023.

Declaration by the Directors and Independent
Directors:

The Board of Directors and the Independent Directors
contains integrity, expertise and independence to
perform their services. The brief profile of Directors
including Independent Directors is provided in
Corporate Governance Report. The Company has
received necessary declaration from each Independent
Directors under Section 149(7) of the Act confirming
that they meets the criteria of independence laid
down in the companies Act, Code for Independent
Directors and the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended
from time to time.

The Board of Directors affirms that all the Independent
Directors possess the required integrity, expertise, and
experience necessary for their appointment.

MEETING OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE

During the year under review, ten Board Meetings
were held i.e. on May 02, 2022, May 30, 2022,
June 29, 2022, August 10, 2022, September 02, 2022,
November 11, 2022, December 26, 2022, January 09,
2023, February 03, 2023 and March 30, 2023. The
details of meeting, attendance are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Annual Report. The maximum interval between
two board meeting have not exceeded 120 days, as
prescribed by the Act.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors having five committees i.e.
Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
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Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Risk Management Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. All committees
comprises of Non-Executive Independent Directors,
Executive Directors.

The recommendations made by the committees were
accepted and approved by the Board. A detailed
composition of the Board its committees are provided
in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part
of this Annual Report.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors who were inducted into
the Board attended an orientation program. The details
of the training and familiarization program held during
the year under review are provided in the corporate
governance report. All the Independent Directors
are made aware of their roles and responsibilities at
the time of appointment through a formal letter of
appointment, which also stipulates various terms
and conditions of their appointment. Details of
familiarization programme are available on the website
of the Company:https://www.medplusindia.com/
uploads/content/Medplus%20Familarisation%20
Programme%20for%20independendent%20

Directors.pdf
BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has specified the manner and criteria for effective
evaluation of performance of Board, its committees
and individual directors. As per the provisions of
Section 134(3)(p) of Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the Board conducted an evaluation of its own
performance, its Committees and Individual Directors.
The evaluation of all the directors, committees,
Chairman of the Board, and the Board as a whole,
was conducted based on the criteria and framework
adopted by the Board.

FOR

Accordingly, evaluation of the performance of the
individual directors was done based on criteria such
as attendance, participation in the deliberations,
contribution to the discussions at the board
and committee meetings, understanding of the
issues involved, ability to bring in new ideas and
initiatives, commitment to fulfill the obligations
and responsibilities of a Director, etc. The detailed
evaluation process, parameters have been explained
in the Corporate Governance report. The Policy for
formal evaluation of performance is uploaded on the
website of the Company: https://www.medplusindia.
com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Evaluation-of-

Performance.pdf
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the statutory
auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported
to the Audit Committee, under Section 143 (12) of
the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or
employees. The details of which forms part of this
Annual Report. The Company has not taken any
services from credit agencies during the year under
review.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(e)
and section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with
Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Company has formulated Nomination and
Remuneration policy to provide a framework for
remuneration of members of the Board of directors
of the Company, key managerial personnel, and other
employees of the Company which has been disclosed
in Corporate governance Report, which forms part of
Annual Report. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s
website: https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/
content/Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with
Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Annual Return as on March 31, 2023 is available in the
Company’s website https://www.medplusindia.com/

corporate.jsp
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and guidelines issued by SEBI. The Ind AS are
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter. Accounting
policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors, confirm that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
Financial Year ended March 31,2023, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanation to material departures;
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the Directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as on March 31,2023 and
of the profit of the Company for that period;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

the Directors have laid down adequate Internal
Financial Controls to be followed by the Company
and that such Internal Financial Control are
adequate and were operating effectively during
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023;

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively throughout the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and
commitments which affect the financial position of
the Company that have occurred between the end of
the financial year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of this report.

INSOLVENCY PROCEEDING

During the year under review, no application made
or any insolvency proceedings have been initiated or
pending against the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors had constituted a Risk
Management Committee to identify elements of risk in
different areas of operations and to develop policy for
actions associated to mitigate the risks. The Committee
on a timely basis informed the members of the Board
of Directors about risk assessment and minimization
procedures and in the opinion of the Committee
there was no risk that may threaten the existence
of the Company. The Company has formulated and
implemented a Risk Management policy identifying
the elements of risk, and the same is available on the
Company'’s website: https://www.medplusindia.com/
uploads/content/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
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VIGIL MECHANISM :

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules prescribed thereunder and the
SEBI Listing Regulations is implemented through
the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy to enable the
Directors, employees and all stakeholders of the
Company to report genuine concerns, to provide for
adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons
who use such mechanism and make provision for
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
Details are available in corporate governance report
which forms part of this Annual Report. The Whistle
Blower Policy of the Company is available on the
Company’s website: https://www.medplusindia.com/
uploads/content/Whistleblower-Policies.pdf

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and
detection of fraud, error-reporting mechanisms,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.
For more details, refer to the ‘Internal control and
adequacy’ section in the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, which forms part of this Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There were no significant material orders passed
by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company is having detailed CSR policy and the
same is available on Company's website. The detailed
composition of CSR Committee is provided in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
the Annual Report. During the year under review, the
Company was under no statutory requirement/no
obligation for the expenditure as required under the Act.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India from time to time,
except reported by Secretarial Auditors in their report.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The Company'’s shares are listed on BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The details
are provided in the corporate governance report
which form part of annual report
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EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO FINANCIAL'S APPROVAL
DATE

Postal Ballot

The Shareholders had passed the Special Resolutions
through postal ballot by means of e- voting on June 18,
2023.The detailed Postal Ballot results/resolution are
mentioned in the corporate governance report which
forms part of the Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ Report for Financial year
2022-2023 does not contain any qualification,
reservation, or adverse remark. The Report is enclosed
with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for Financial year
2022-23 is enclosed as Annexure C to the Board’s
report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

The Secretarial Auditor's certificate confirming
compliance with conditions of corporate governance
as stipulated under Listing Regulations, for financial
year 2022-2023 is enclosed as Annexure E to the
Board's report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

The Secretarial Auditor’s certificate on the
implementation of share-based schemes in
accordance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, will be made
available on request at the AGM, electronically.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/S. BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 116231 W/W - 1000024) who were appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company on October 30,
2018 for a term of five years is being ended on the
ensuing AGM. The Board of Directors has proposed
to appoint M/S. BSR and Co, Chartered Accountants,
(FRN: 128510W) for a first term of five consecutive
years from the conclusion of the ensuing 17th Annual
General Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion of the
22nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
to be held in the calendar year 2028 as required under
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Audit and Auditors) rules, 2014

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

M/s. R & A Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries
were appointed, to undertake the Secretarial Audit
of the Company as required under section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and in term of Regulation
24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, by the Board of
Directors on May 25, 2023 for Financial Year 2022-23.
The Secretarial Audit Report issued in Form MR-3 is
annexed to this Board'’s Report as Annexure C.
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INTERNAL AUDITORS

In terms of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 M/s. Ernst &
Young LLP is appointed as Internal auditors of the
Company for five years w.e.f. 2023-2024.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND IT'S REPORT OF
MATERIAL UNLISTED SUBSIDIARY

During the year under review, the Company is having
three material subsidiary company i.e. Optival Health
Solutions Private Limited (“OHSPL”), Sai Sridhar
Pharma Private Limited(“SSPPL"), and Venkata Krishna
Enterprises Private Limited (“VKEPL”"). The Secretarial
Audit Report for the Financial year 2022-23 pursuant to
section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 issued by M/s.
R & A Associates, the practicing company secretaries is
attached as Annexure-C to this Report.

The observation by Secretarial Auditors in their Report
and our comments are as follows:

(i) The Company has filed all the forms, except
as stated herein below, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
within the applicable due dates except in a few
cases wherein there has been slight delay.

The Company has passed the resolution of the
board for investment of funds through circulation
while pursuant to the provisions of section 179(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013, the same was to be
approved in the meeting of the Board. However,
the circulation resolution was subsequently
taken note thereof in the immediate next board
meeting.

(iii) The Company is not in compliance with the
provisions of Section 117(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of filing the resolution passed
by the Board for investments of funds with the
Registrar of Companies.

The Company, in a few of the instances, were
not in compliance with the provisions of Section
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevant rules made thereunder in respect of
circulation of draft minutes of the board and/
or committees to the Board and/or committee
members.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of Regulations 7(3) of the SEBI LODR
Regulations in respect of signing of certificate by
the Compliance officer of the Company.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of Regulations 23(2) of the SEBI
LODR Regulations in respect of obtaining
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prior approval of audit committee for the related
party transactions for the months April, 2022 to
June, 2022.

(vii) The Company, in a few of the instances, has made
intimations to the stock exchanges with a delay
under Regulations 23(9), 32(6) of SEBI LODR
Regulations and under Regulation 76(1) of SEBI
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018.

(viii) The Company was not in compliance with
Regulation 47(4) of SEBI LODR Regulations in
respect of publishing the information in the
regional language in the regional newspaper.

Board’'s Comment: The Management has assured that
corrective action has been initiated to avoid such
instances in future.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

The Company has undertaken an audit for the Financial
Year 2022-23 for all applicable compliances as per
Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations,
Circulars, Guidelines and Secretarial Standards issued
by ICSI there under.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations 2015, the Annual Secretarial
Compliance Report duly signed by Ms. Rashida
Adenwala ( FCS 4020) (CP No:2224) Founder Partner
R & A Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries has
been submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the
Companies shares are Listed.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records as specified by Central
Government and requirement of cost audit as
prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the
business activities carried out by the Company in the
FY 2022-23.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As on March 31, 2023 the Company had 22066
employees on consolidated basis. The Managing
Director and CEO of the Company has not received
any remuneration or commission from any of the
subsidiary Companies. The ratio of the remuneration
of each director to the median remuneration of
the employees of the Company and percentage of
increase in remuneration etc. along with the disclosure
in relation to the remuneration of Directors, KMPs and
employees as required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are annexed as Annexure-E to
this Report.

The statement containing particulars of employees as
required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with
Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
form part of this Report. Pursuant to Section 136(1)
of the Act, this Report is being sent to the Members
of the Company excluding the aforesaid information.
However, copy of this statement may be obtained by
the Members writing to the Company Secretary.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause (m) of Sub-Section
3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014,
the details of conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is
annexed as Annexure-F to this report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT (‘BRSR’)

As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular/
Notification and the guidelines, framework issued by
National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct
(NGRBC) read with Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI Listing
Regulations it is necessary to submit the Business
Responsibility And Sustainability Report (earlier
BRR Report).The BRSR disclosures form a part of this
Annual Report as per Annexure-L

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to transparency in all
its dealings and places high emphasis on business
ethics. A Report on Corporate Governance along
with a Certificate from M/S. R&A Associates Practicing
Company Secretaries of the Company regarding
compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company has embedded Environment, Health and
Safety Standards throughout the Organization and
across its value chain. The Company’s Environment,
Health and Safety practices confirms to applicable
local laws as well as ethical business standards.
Your Company assumes its social responsibility and
accountability towards environment and society as
a whole in conducting its business operations. Your
Company has invested and will continue to invest in
the safety of all its employees and human resource
surrounding it.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations among all units of the Company
have been harmonious and cordial. The employees
are dedicated, motivated and have shown initiative
in improving the Company’s performance. Your
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Company is committed to maintaining good industrial
relations with its employees, suppliers, customers and
regulators throughout the conduct of its business
operations. The organization’s achievements are an
outcome of efforts, dedication and perseverance
demonstrated by its workforce which comprises
people from diverse backgrounds who have shown
coordination and cooperation in their conduct.
Your Board would like to express its gratitude and
appreciation to the employees and people associated
with the Company for demonstrating high level of
commitment.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting
is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions/events on these items during
the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

Issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares) to
employees of the Company under any Scheme
save and except Employees Stock Option Schemes
(ESOS) referred to in this Report.

Significant or material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and the Company’s
operation in future.

Voting rights which are not directly exercised
by the employees in respect of shares for the
subscription/purchase of which loan was given by
the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant to
which such persons can beneficially hold shares as
envisaged under section 67(3) (c) of the Companies
Act, 2013).

. There has been no change in the nature of business
of your Company.
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6. There was no change in capital structure i.e.
authorized, issued, subscribed and Paid up capital
of the Company

DIFFERENCE IN VALUATION

During the year under review, the Company has no
borrowings, and hence the requirement of providing
details of difference between amount of the valuation
done at the time of one time settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof
is not applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your directors are grateful for the invaluable support
of the customers, investors, business associates, banks,
government agencies, vendors, franchisees and
service providers for their services and cooperation to
the Company. We place on record our appreciation for
the contribution made by our employees at all levels.
Our consistent growth was made possible by their
hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support. The
Board shall always strive to meet the expectations of
all the stakeholders, shareholders for the confidence
they have reposed in the Board of Directors. The
Directors deeply appreciate their faith and support
extended to the Company and remains thankful to
them.

For MedPlus Health Services Limited
Sd/-

Gangadi Madhukar Reddy
Chairman, MD & CEO

DIN: 00098097

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 07, 2023
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ANNEXURE B

Details of Employee Stock Options under ESOP 2009 and ESOP 2021 under Section 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on March
31,2023:

Sl
No.

Particulars

Under ESOP 2021 Under ESOP 2009

1.

w

O Nn T o

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period

. Number of Options Granted during the year
. Number of Options Vested during the year

Number of Options Exercised during the year
Number of Options Lapsed/ cancelled/ Forfeited during the year
Exercise Price

. Variation in terms of option

. the total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option
. money realized by exercise of options

. total number of options in force

employee wise details of options granted to:

(i) key managerial personnel;
«+  Sujit Kumar Mahato - Chief Financial Officer

(i) any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year
of option amounting to five percent or more of options granted
during that year
«  Mr.D. Srinivas

(iii) identified employees who were granted option, during any one year,
equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time
of grant

9,35,904 905
1,32,841 Nil
1,04,328 216

Nil 416

30,987 100

3232 &3%541.98 ¥10toX 106618
Not Applicable Not Applicable
Nil 1,91,879

Nil 71,18,93,034

10,37,748 389
10,37,748 389
95,941 N.A.

36,900 N.A.

N.A. N.A.

The details of Company’s stock option Schemes as required under Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, are available on the Company’s website: https://
www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/ESOP_Board%20report.pdf
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ANNEXURE C

FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014.

To,
The Members of
MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED,

H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,
Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, (Moosapet),
Kukatpally, Hyderabad — 500037, Telangana, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of the applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by
MedPlus Health Services Limited (hereinafter called
“the Company”). Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended March 31,
2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper
board- processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations

and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)
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We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered by the
Company with Stock Exchanges.

(iii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR
Regulations”).

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above to the extent applicable to the Company,
except the following:

a. The Company has filed all the forms, except as stated
herein below, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder within the
applicable due dates except in a few cases wherein

there has been slight delay.

(i) The Company has passed the resolution of the
board for investment of funds through circulation
pursuant to the provisions of section 179 (3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the same was to be approved
in the meeting of the Board. However, the circulation
resolution was subsequently taken note thereof in the
immediate next board meeting.

(i) The Company is not in compliance with the
provisions of Section 117 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of filing the resolution passed by the
Board for investments of funds with the Registrar of
Companies.

The Company, in a few of the instances, were not in
compliance with the provisions of Section 118 (10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules
made thereunder in respect of circulation of draft
minutes of the board and/or committees to the Board
and/or committee members.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of Regulations 7(3) of the SEBI LODR
Regulations in respect of signing of certificate by the
compliance officer of the Company.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of Regulations 23(2) of the SEBI LODR
Regulations in respect of obtaining prior approval of
audit committee the related party transactions for
the months April, 2022 to June, 2022.
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f. The Company, in a few of the instances, has made
intimations to the stock exchanges with a delay under
Regulations 23(9), 32(6) of SEBI LODR Regulations
and under Regulation 76(1) of SEBI (Depositories and
Participants) Regulations, 2018.

The Company was not in compliance with Regulation
47(4) of SEBI LODR Regulations in respect of
publishing the information in the regional language
in the regional newspaper.

vi. | further report that, as represented by the
Company, having regard to the compliance system
prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof on test-check basis, the Company has
complied with the registration requirements of
the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company:

(@) The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 and Rules

made thereunder;

(b) The Atomic Energy Act, 1962 and Rules made
thereunder;

(c) Bio-Medical Waste Management Rules, 2016; and

(d) Clinical Establishments (Registration &
Regulation) Act, 2010 and the Clinical
Establishments (Central Government) Rules
2012 and allied state legislations.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with the balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and
Woman Directors during the period under review as
stated above. There is no change in the composition of
the Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
other than those held at shorter notice for which
necessary consent has been sought at the meeting,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority of the decisions at Board and/or Committee
meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
or respective Committee of the Board, as the case
may be.
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We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the
Company had following specific events / actions
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing
on the Company’s affairs:

1. Investment of %4,671.70 million by the Company
through equity subscription in its subsidiary
company.

2. Incorporation of a wholly owned subsidiary
namely MedPlus Insurance Brokers Private Limited
by the Company with the paid up capital of ¥20.00
million.

3. Alteration of articles of association of the Company
vide resolution passed by the shareholders in their
annual general meeting held on September 26,
2022 to give effect to deletion to few of the clauses.

4. Ratification of MedPlus Employees Stock Option
and Shares Plan 2009 vide resolution passed by the
shareholders in their annual general meeting held
on September 26, 2022.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023

10

Ratification of MedPlus Employees Stock Option
and Shares Plan 2021 vide resolution passed by the
shareholders in their annual general meeting held
on September 26, 2022.

Resignation of Mr. Hemanth Kundavaram from the
post of chief financial officer of the Company with
effect from June 05, 2022.

Appointment of Mr. Sujit Kumar Mahato as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company with effect from
November 11, 2022.

Appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Srivastava as the
head company secretary and compliance officer of
the Company with effect from March 30, 2023.

Resignation of Ms. Shilpi Keswani from the post of
whole-time company secretary and compliance
officer of the Company with effect from March 30,
2023.

.The Board of Directors of the Company in its

meeting held on January 09, 2023 approved
the draft scheme of amalgamation between the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary i.e.
MHS Pharmaceuticals Private Limited and their
respective shareholders.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner

M. No: 4020

C.P.No.:2224

UDIN: FO04020E000760534

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as
“Annexure-A” and forms an integral part of this report.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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Annexure A
To,
The Members of
MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED,
H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,
Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, (Moosapet),
Kukatpally Hyderabad — 500037, Telangana, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a test basis.

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We have relied on the information provided by the Management with respect to related party transactions
for its compliance.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023 Sd/-
Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner
M. No: 4020
C.P.No.: 2224
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FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014.

To,

The Members of

OPTIVAL HEALTH SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED,
H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,

Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, (Moosapet),
Kukatpally Hyderabad — 500037, Telangana, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Optival
Health Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter called
“the Company”). Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended 31st March,
2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper
board- processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings. (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit period).

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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V.

The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit period)
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We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered by the
Company with Stock Exchanges; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

(iii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above to the extent applicable to the Company,
except the following:

a. The Company has filed all the forms as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder within the applicable due dates except

in a few cases wherein there has been slight delay.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of section 42 (4), 42 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 14(8) of the Companies
(Prospectus and allotment of Securities) Rules 2013
in respect of allotment of securities made on April 20,
2022.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of section 42 (6) of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of allotment of securities made on
January 04, 2023 and February 01, 2023.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provisions of section 42 (4) of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of allotment of securities made on
May 08, 2023.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provision of Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus
and allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 in respect
of holding of securities by the promoters in
dematerialized form before issuance of any securities
by the Company.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provision of section 203(4) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8A of Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014 in respect of filling of casual vacancy of the
office of the Company secretary, whole-time key
managerial personnel within six (06) months from
date of such vacancy. However, the Company has
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appointed Ms. Shilpi Keswani as the whole-time
company secretary of the Company w.e.f.
November 10, 2022.

The Company was not in compliance with the
provision of section 203(4) of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of filling of casual vacancy of the
office of the chief financial officer, whole-time key
managerial personnel within six (06) months from
date of such vacancy. However, the Company has
appointed Mr. Sujith Kumar Mahato as the chief
financial officer of the Company w.e.f. January 02,
2023.

vi. | further report that, as represented by the
Company, having regard to the compliance system
prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof on test-check basis, the Company has
complied with the registration requirements of
the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company except as stated below:

(@) The Drugsand Cosmetics Act, 1940 and Rules
made thereunder; and

(b) The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006.

The Company for a few of its retail stores and warehouses
do not possess requisite licenses/registrations as required
to be obtained in pursuant to the above-mentioned laws.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with the balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and
Woman Directors during the period under review as
stated above. Mr. Bhaskar Reddy Cherukupalli has
been appointed as an Additional Director designated
as Whole-time Director with effect from February 14,
2022 and regularized as Whole-time Director in Annual
General Meeting held on September 24, 2022.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
other than those held at shorter notice for which
necessary consent has been sought at the meeting,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority of the decisions at Board and/or Committee
meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
or respective Committee of the Board, as the case may
be.
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We further report that there are adequate systems 5. Appointment of Ms. Shilpi Keswani as the
and processes in the Company commensurate with whole-time company secretary of the Company
the size and operations of the Company to monitor with effect from November 10, 2022.

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

. A i f Mr. Sujit K Mah h
regulations and guidelines. 6 ppointment of Mr. Sujit Kumar Mahato as the

chief financial officer of the Company with effect
We further report that during the audit period the from January 02, 2023.

Company had following specific events / actions
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing It has been observed that the Board of Directors
on the Company’s affairs: of the Company vide board resolution dated
November 10, 2022 approved the transfer of shares
held by shareholders in physical form. However, it was
represented to us by the management of the Company
that the said transfers were not considered and the
board of directors of the Company shall rescind the
said approval of transfer of shares in their upcoming
meeting in pursuant to provisions of Rule 9A of the

only) Equity shares of 210/~ (Rupees Ten only) Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)

each to 32,10,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Two Hundred Rules, 2014 and
and Ten Crores only) divided into 21,00,00,000 Further, it has been observed that the Company
(Twenty-One Crores only) Equity shares of ¥10/-  has issued offer letters for subscription of its equity
(Rupees Ten only) each. shares prior to filing the resolution passed by the
shareholders in their extra ordinary general meeting
held on January 04, 2023. It was represented by the
Management of the Company that the Company has
emailed the aforesaid resolutions to the Registrar of
Companies because the Company was facing various
technical glitches in filing the e-form on the MCA V3
3. Allotment of 62,24,801 equity shares of face value  portal.
of 210/- each at a premium of %444/- per share
and 40,38,599 equity shares of face value of ¥10/-
each at a premium of T447/- per share by way of
preferential allotment during the period under
review.

Matter of Emphasis:

1. Alteration of Memorandum of Association of
the Company vide resolution passed in the
extra-ordinary general meeting dated April 13,
2022 in respect of increase in the authorised
share capital from 2,03,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred and Three Crores only) divided into
20,30,00,000 (Twenty Crores and Thirty Lakhs

2. Alteration of the object clause of the memorandum
of association of the Company vide resolution
passed in the annual general meeting dated
September 24, 2022 in respect of insertion of
additional sub-clauses.

Furthermore, MedPlus, the existing shareholder of

the Company, has subscribed to and been allotted

1,02,63,400 equity shares of the Company during the

financial year 2022-23. It has been observed that the

pre-existing shares were not held in dematerialized

4. Resignation of Mr. Hemanth Kundavaram fromthe  form by MedPlus which is in non-compliance with the
post of chief financial officer of the Company with  provisions of Rule 9A (3) of the Companies (Prospectus
effect from June 05, 2022. and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023 Sd/-
Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner
M. No: 4020
C.P.No.: 2224
UDIN: FO04020E000760611

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and forms an integral part of
this report.
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Annexure A
To,
The Members of
OPTIVAL HEALTH SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED,
H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,
Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, (Moosapet),
Kukatpally Hyderabad — 500037, Telangana, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We have relied up on the information provided by the Management with respect to related party transactions
for its compliance.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023 Sd/-
Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner
M. No: 4020
C.P.No.: 2224
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FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014.

To,

The Members of

SAI SRIDHAR PHARMA PRIVATE LIMITED,
Plot No: 5, First Floor, OPP: IDPL Company
Balanagar Hyderabad - 500037.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of the applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sai
Sridhar Pharma Private Limited (hereinafter called
“the Company”). Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended 31st March,
2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper
board- processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

iii. The Depositories act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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V.

Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit period)

The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit

period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
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2021; and (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit period)

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.
(Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit period)

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with Stock Exchanges; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

(iii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above to the extent applicable to the Company except
the following:

a. The Company has filed all the forms as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder within the applicable due dates except
in few cases wherein there has been slight delay.

b. The Company was not in compliance of second
proviso to the Section 149(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Qualification) Rules, 2014 in-respect of appointment
of at-least one women director. However, the
Company has appointed Ms. Udaya Lakshmi
Tadepalli, DIN: 06976534, as an additional director
on the board of the Company w.e.f 23rd May, 2023.

vi. | further report that, as represented by the
Company, having regard to the compliance system
prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023

thereof on test-check basis, the Company has
complied with the registration requirements of
the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company:

(@) The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 and Rules
made thereunder; and

(b) The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006.
We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with the balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors but the Company did not
have a woman director on the board during the period
under review as stated above. There were no changes
in the composition of the board of directors of the
Company during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
other than those held at shorter notice for which
necessary consent has been sought at the meeting,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority of the decisions at Board and/or Committee
meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
or respective Committee of the Board, as the case may
be.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period there
were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
etc. having a major bearing on the Company'’s affairs.

For R & A Associates

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner

M. No: 4020

C.P.No.: 2224

UDIN: FO04020E000761062

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and forms an integral part of

this report.
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Annexure A

To,

The Members of

SAI SRIDHAR PHARMA PRIVATE LIMITED,
Plot No: 5, First Floor, OPP: IDPL Company
Balanagar Hyderabad - 500037

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We have relied up on the information provided by the Management with respect to related party
transactions for its compliance.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023 Sd/-
Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner
M. No: 4020
C.P.No.: 2224
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FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014.

To,
The Members of

VENKATA KRISHNA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED,

H.No.1-1-650/17, Gandhi Nagar, New Bakaram
Hyderabad - 500080, Telangana, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Venkata
Krishna Enterprises Private Limited (hereinafter called
“the Company”). Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended 31st March,
2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

iii. The Depositories act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
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V.

Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit period)

The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit period)
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.
(Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit period)

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with Stock Exchanges; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

(iii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period)

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above to the extent applicable to the Company except
the following:

The Company has filed all the forms as required under
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
within the applicable due dates except in a few cases
wherein there has been slight delay.

vi. | further report that, as represented by the
Company, having regard to the compliance system
prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof on test-check basis, the Company has
complied with the registration requirements of
the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company:

(@) The Drugsand Cosmetics Act, 1940 and Rules
made thereunder; and

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023

(b) The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006.
We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with the balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Woman Directors during
the period under review as stated above. There were
no changes in the compositions of the board of
directors of the Company during the period under
review.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
other than those held at shorter notice for which
necessary consent has been sought at the meeting,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority of the decisions at Board and/or Committee
meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
or respective Committee of the Board, as the case
may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period there
were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
etc. having a major bearing on the Company'’s affairs.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner

M. No: 4020

C.P.No.: 2224

UDIN: FO04020E000760897

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as
“Annexure-A” and forms an integral part of this report.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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Annexure A

To,

The Members of

VENKATA KRISHNA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED,
H.No.1-1-650/17, Gandhi Nagar, New Bakaram
Hyderabad - 500080, Telangana, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We have relied on the information provided by the Management with respect to related party transactions
for its compliance.

For R & A Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023 Sd/-

Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner

M. No: 4020
C.P.No.: 2224
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ANNEXURE D
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arms length basis—

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2023,
which were not at arm length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arms length basis—

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arms length basis for the year ended
March 31, 2023 are as follows:

(@) Names(s) of the related party and nature of 1. Sai Sridhar Pharma Private Limited — Subsidiary of Nova Sud
relationship Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
2. Venkata Krishna Enterprises Private Limited — Subsidiary of
Nova Sud Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions  Purchase of stock-in-trade
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ On going
transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts/arrangements/ Supply of goods against Purchase Order and Payment as per
transactions including the value, if any terms mentioned in Purchase Order

(e) Date(s) of approval by the board, if any NA. Q1 ACM Meeting

(f)  Amount paid as advances if any NA

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/-
Gangadi Madhukar Reddy
Chairman, MD & CEO
DIN: 00098097
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023
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DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

(1) Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

ANNEXURE E

The remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, percentage increase in their
remuneration during the Financial Year 2022-23 and ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 are as under:

Sr. . ) ) % increas:e in‘ Ratio of rerpuneration

No Name of Director / KMP  Designation remuneration in of ?ach Director to
FY 2022-23 median remuneration

1 G Madhukar Reddy Managing Director 0% 16

2 Anish Kumar Saraf Non-Executive Director - -

3 Atul Gupta Non-Executive Director - -

4 Madhavan Ganesan Non-Executive Independent Director - 7

5 Murali Sivaraman Non-Executive Independent Director - 6

6  Hiroo Mirchandan Non-Executive Independent Director - 7

7  Hemanth Kundavaram* Chief Financial Officer 3% 41

8  Sujit Kumar Mahato** Chief Financial Officer - 54

9  Manoj Kumar Srivastava*  Head Company Secretary & - -

Compliance Officer
10  Shilpi Keswani® Company Secretary 27% 5

* upto June 5, 2022 ** wef. November 11, 2022 #wef. March 30, 2023 *upto March 30, 2023

OTHER INFORMATION:

|. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the FY 2022-23 7.43%

II. Total employees on MedPlus Company roll as on March 31, 2023
Ill. Average percentage increases already made in the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial

remuneration

928

Average percentile increase

in salaries of employee other
than managerial personnel

was 12.92% whereas Average
percentile increases in salaries of
managerial personnel was 6.58%

IV. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company It is hereby affirmed that

remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the
Company
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ANNEXURE F

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS)

RULES, 20141S

FORMING PART OF THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
i) Steps taken orimpact on conservation of energy.

ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate
sources of energy.

Capital investment on energy conservation
equipment.

Although the Company is not engaged in energy conservative
activities, however, the Company has optimized an end-to-end
supply chain that reduced of wastage of fuel and resources.

We have also taken following steps to make our organization
energy efficient:

Replacement of CFL lamps with LED lights in our retail outlets.
Controlling usage of Air Conditioners in non-occupied areas.

Reducing plastic waste: Usage of paper-bags at stores and re-
usable cloth bags at warehouse facilities.

None

None

B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i) Efforts made towards technology absorption

ii) Benefits derived from technology absorption

iii) Details of Imported technology (last 3 years)
Details of technology imported

Year of Import

Whether technology being fully absorbed

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has
not taken place and reasons thereof

iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and

development

Efforts towards minimizing turnaround time and opportunity cost
through -

A strong In-house technology team of 150+ Software engineers
working on latest open source based technology stack;

Leveraging datafication, omnichannel Integration. Unlocking
Flexibility, scalability through modular and service/ event
based architecture, Leveraging Hybrid cloud based data center
(Private and public)

Smart POS for optimizing store management, customer
experience, enabling virtual inventory through Inventory
visibility in the stores across Hubs/Warehouses in the region;
Minimizing Inventory cost and increasing inventory efficiencies
across locations; and

Cross selling and leverage single customer base across
pharmacy and diagnostic businesses. Consistent customer
experience across channels supports all touch points with
shared functionalities, such as purchase history, stock
availability, wish lists, appointment booking, customer service,
payments etc

None

Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO ( in Lakhs)

i) Foreign Exchange inflow
ii) Foreign Exchange outflow

0.24
200.18

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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ANNEXURE G
POLICIES

Your Company is committed to adhere to the highest possible standards of ethical, moral and legal business
conduct. Considering this, your Company has formulated certain policies, inter alia, in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“Insider
Trading Regulations”). The policies as mentioned below are available on the Company’s website, at https://
www.medplusindia.com/governance.jsp#code-policies. These policies are reviewed periodically and are
updated as and when needed. During the year, the Company had revised and adopted some of its Policies in
order to align the same with recent changes in Corporate Laws. A brief description of the Policies adopted by

the Company are as under:

Name of the Policy

Brief description

Summary of key
changes made to the
Policies during the year

Whistleblower Policy

Nomination and
Remuneration Policy

Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior
Management Personnel

Code of Practices
and Procedures for
Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information
Code of Conduct -
Prohibition of Insider
Trading

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Act and Listing
Regulations is implemented through the Whistle Blower Policy to
provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons
who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management(“Policy) of
the Company is formulated under the requirements of applicable
laws, including the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) 2015 amended

Regulations”).

Regulations, as (“Listing

The Policy is intended to set out criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP), Senior Management (as defined below) and other
employees of the Company, and to harmonize the aspirations of
human resources with the goals of the Company.

The Board of your Company has laid down two separate Codes
of Conduct, one for all the Board Members and the other for
Employees of the Company. This Code is the central policy
document, outlining the requirements that the employees
working for and with the Company must comply with, regardless
of their location.

This Code has been formulated to ensure prompt, timely and
adequate disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
("UPSI") which inter alia includes policy for Determination of
“Legitimate Purposes”.

The CEO/MD has, withtheapproval of Board of Directors, formulated
this Code of Conduct - Prohibition of Insider Trading (“the code”) to
regulate, monitor and report trading by its designated persons and
immediate relatives of designated persons pursuant to Regulation
9 of SEBI(prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015
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TheReportingMechanism
has been improved as
the vigilance officer has
been designated; The
definition is aligned as
per act. There was change
of Designated person to
Chairperson of the Audit
committee.

The Policy has used
generalised terms as per
applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013
The Remuneration of
Independent Directors is
revised

N.A.

N.A.

The Policy was amended

to align the policy
with the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015
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Name of the Policy

Brief description

Summary of key
changes made to the
Policies during the year

Policy on Materiality
of and Dealing

with Related Party
Transactions

Business Responsibility
Policy

Archival Policy

Policy on evaluation of
Performance

Policies on Sexual
Harassment for Women
and Male Employees

Preservation of
Documents

Policy on Board
Diversity

Dividend Distribution
Policy

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

The policy has been framed in order to regulate all the transactions
between the Company and its related parties.

The objective of this policy is to ensure a unified and common
approach to the dimensions of Business Responsibility across
MedPlus Group, act as a strategic driver that will help all Group
Companies respond to the complexities and challenges that keep
emerging and be abreast with changes in regulations.

As per the policy, the events or information which has been
disclosed by the Company to the Stock Exchanges pursuant to
Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations shall be hosted on the
website of the Company for a period of 5 years from the date of
hosting.

The Company believes in conducting its affairs in a fair and
transparent manner by adopting the highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviors in
consonance with the Company’s Code of Conduct policy for its
employees and also for the Board of Directors.

The Company has made this policy to comply with various
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The policy on Sexual Harassment for Women is for redressal of
complaints received regarding sexual harassment and compliance
of other provisions as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The
Company in its good governance have extended the same to male
employees also.

This policy is framed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on November 14, 2015 in pursuance to Regulation 9 of the SEBI
LODR Regulations, 2015, on preservation of the Records to aid
the employees in handling the Documents efficiently. It not only
covers the various aspects on preservation of the Records, but also
beneficial for the safe disposal/destruction of the Documents and
keeping a record of the same.

with the objective of classifying various documents, records and
registers for the purpose of maintenance and preservation.

The Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent, ethical and
professional work environment and this Policy aims to preserve
Documents /Records maintained by the Company either in
Physical Mode or Electronic Mode.

The Policy sets out the approach to have a diverse Board of the
Company in terms of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective
and gender in the Board, based on the applicable laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Company pursuant to SEBI Listing
Regulations

The Dividend Distribution Policy as per Regulation 43A of the
Listing Regulations, 2015 is available on the Company’s website
on https://www.medplusindia.com/pdf/Policy-on-Dividend-
Distribution.pdf.
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RPT Transaction policy
and Materiality of and
dealing with RPT merged
into one policy; The policy
is updated as per SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015
The Policy is updated as
per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

N.A.

The Policy is aligned as
per the evaluation criteria
followed during the
Financial Year 2022-23

N.A.

Aligned as per the Sexual
Harassment of Women at
Workplace  (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal)
Act.

The record of disposal
of documents clause is
added in the Policy

N.A.
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Brief description

Summary of key
changes made to the
Policies during the year

Policy on materiality

Policy on Material
Subsidiary

Terms and conditions
of appointment of
Independent Directors

Succession Planning

Risk management Policy

This policy requires the Company to make disclosure of events
or information which are material to the Company as per the
requirements of Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations

The policy is used to identify material subsidiaries of the Company
and to provide a governance framework for such material
subsidiaries.

This document is used to identify and demarcate the terms and
conditions of appointment of independent directors

The Company recognizes the importance of succession planning
to provide for continuity in the smooth functioning of the
organization. There are certain positions in the Company that are
key to its current and future growth. It is, therefore, important
that these positions are assigned to duly skilled and best
possible incumbents. It is critical to fill up such positions well in
time to avoid any leadership gap. The Company has therefore
put in place a Policy on Succession Planning for the Board and
Senior Management (hereinafter called the “Policy”) pursuant to
Regulation 17(4) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which mandates
the need for a succession policy and has listed succession planning
as key function of the Board of Directors.

A risk management policy has been framed for increasing
stakeholder value, which attempts to identify the key events / risks
impacting the business objectives of the Company and attempts
to develop risk policies and strategies to ensure timely evaluation,
reporting and monitoring of key business risks pursuant to
Section 134(3) of Companies Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI(LODR)
Regulations, 2015

N.A.

N.A.

Aligned as per Ethics for
Board of Directors and
good governance; ID's
commison added.

N.A.
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Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

The essence and philosophy of Corporate Governance is about maintaining the right balance between
economic, social, individual and community goals. At MedPlus, good corporate governance is a way of life
and the way we do our business, encompassing every day’s activities and is enshrined as a part of our way of
working. The Company is focused on enhancement of long- term value creation for all stakeholders without
compromising on integrity, societal obligations, environment and regulatory compliances. Our actions are
governed by our values and principles, which are reinforced at all levels of the organisation. These principles
have been and will continue to be our guiding force in future. However, the Company is committed to the
highest standards of business ethics and corporate governance. We believe in the highest standards of corporate
behaviour towards everyone we work with; the communities we touch and the environment we have an impact
on.This paves our way towards consistent and responsible growth which in turn creates long term value for our
stakeholders. A report on compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as prescribed under the SEBI
Listing Regulations is given here in below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
COMPOSITION:

The Board of Directors, along with its Committees, provides leadership and guidance to the management
and directs and supervises the performance of the Company, thereby enhancing stakeholders’ value. The
Board has a fiduciary duty in ensuring that the rights of all stakeholders are protected. As on March 31, 2023,
the Board comprised six directors comprising with a Managing Director and CEO (Executive Director)/"ED",
two Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors (‘'NED’), and three are Non- Executive Independent Directors
(‘NE-ID's) including one Woman Independent Director. The same is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’). The Board periodically evaluates
the need for change in its composition and size. A detailed profile of our Directors is available on our website:
https://www.medplusindia.com/corporate.jsp

DETAILS OF DIRECTORSHIP

No of Committee

No of Directorships in positions held
Name of Direc- Date of First No. of Listed Companies in other Pfjblic
Category . shares Companies?
tor Appointment held' Mem-
Total Name of Listed Cate- Chair- ber-
No Companies gory manship hip
Mr. Gangadi Promoter/  30.11.2006 1,53,50,400 - - - - -
Madhukar Reddy ED
Mr. Anish Kumar NED 06.02.2021 - 1 Kalyan Jewellers India NED - 3
Saraf Ltd
Mr. Atul Gupta NED 06.02.2021 22,914 - - - - -

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED 64
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No of Committee

No of Directorships in positions held
Name of Direc- Date of First No. of Listed Companies in other Pfjblic
Category . shares Companies?
tor Appointment held' Mem-
Total Name of Li.sted Cate- Chair: or-
No Companies gory manship i
Mr. Murali NE-ID 11.06.2021 - 3 Bharat Forge Ltd NE-ID 1 3
Sivaraman Huhtamaki India Ltd NE-ID
ICICl Lombard General NE-ID
Insurance Company Ltd
Mr. Madhavan NE-ID 11.06.2021 5000 1 Sagar Cements Ltd NE-ID 1 3
Ganesan
Ms. Hiroo NE-ID 05.07.2021 - 3 Nilkamal Ltd NE-ID 1 3
Mirchandani Tata Teleservices NE-ID
(Maharashtra) Ltd
Crompton Greaves NE-ID

Consumer Electricals Ltd

NED- Non Executive Director, ID- Non-Executive Independent

Note:

1. The Non-Executive Directors do not hold any convertible instruments in the Company.

2. In order to determine the limit of committees, only the chairmanship/membership of the Audit Committee and
the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have been taken into consideration. This approach allows for a focused
evaluation of the director’s committee roles in line with regulatory requirements. The Company remains committed to
adhering to corporate governance principles and maintaining transparency in its directorship positions and committee
memberships.

None of the Directors hold offices in more than ten public companies as prescribed under Section 165(1) of the
Act. No Director holds Directorships in more than seven listed companies. Further, none of the Non-Executive
Directors serve as Independent Director in more than seven listed companies as required under the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The Managing Director & CEO does not serve as an Independent Director in any listed company.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than Ten Committees and Chairperson of more than Five
Committees (Committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Regulation
26(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations), across all public companies in which he/she is a director. The necessary
disclosures regarding committee positions have been made by all the Directors.

Appointment and Tenure of the Directors

The Directors of the Company are appointed/re-appointed by the Shareholders upon the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors. In accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and provisions of the Act, all the Directors, except the Managing Director,
Whole Time Director and Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM’) and, if eligible, may offer their candidature for re-appointment.

The Executive Directors on the Board have been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and serve in accordance
with the terms of employment with the Company. None of the Independent Director(s) of the Company resigned
before the expiry of their tenure. The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and
tenure of Independent Directors which are consistent with the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. Any person
who becomes Director or Officer, including an employee who is acting in a managerial or supervisory capacity,
shall be covered under Directors’and Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy. The Company has provided insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors under the Directors’and Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy.

Board Meeting Procedure:

The Board Meeting is conducted at least once in every quarter to discuss the performance of the Company and
its quarterly financial results, along with other matters as may be deemed necessary by the Board. The Board also
meets to consider other business, from time to time whenever required. Agenda of the business to be transacted
at the Board Meeting along with explanatory notes thereto are drafted and circulated well in advance to the
Board of Directors of the Company. The Company always ensures that Board members are presented with all
the relevant information on vital matters affecting the working of the Company including the information as
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interalia specified under Part A of Schedule Il of Regulation 17(7) of the Listing Regulations. The gap between
two Board Meetings did not exceeded 120 days. The necessary quorum was present throughout the meeting

in all the Board Meetings.

Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors:

During the year under review, the details of Board Meeting held and attendance are given below.

Date and Attendance of the Meeting

m

N N o ~ ~ ]
Name of Directors 11 q o N 8 2 g % % =7z

o o o - - O ~ M L] (V] L -]

o m N - o~ - (o] 2 r=) 's (] c << c

 » £ 2 e 3 § = =2 § %% pgs

= = 2 £ & z o 8 ¢ = &% 8%
Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy v vV YV Y Y 100% Y
Mr. Anish Saraf v NN NN - v o A 90% Y
Mr. Atul Gupta v vV v vV - Vv v Vv v Vv 90% vV
Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani v NN NN NN VA 100% Y
Mr. Murali Sivaraman N v Y N - v Y v Y v 90% v
Mr. Madhavan Ganesan N, V N, N N, N N, N N, voo100%

Disclosure of Director’s INTER-SE Relationship: There is no inter-se relationships between the Directors.

Remuneration to Directors:

A) Criteria for Making Payment to Non-Executive Directors:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines and recommends to the Board the compensation
payable to all the Directors from time to time. Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors, the shareholders at their 16th AGM held on September 26, 2022 have
approved to pay remuneration by way of commission or otherwise to the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company. The said remuneration is in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act,
2013. The said remuneration is in addition to sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses for attending the

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees

B) Remuneration:

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Director are given below:

(X in millions)

Salary and Perquisites

Name of Director Designation Fixed Per- Retirement Commi- Sitting Total
Pay quisites Benefits ssion fees
Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy Managing Director & CEO 4.00 - - - - 4.00
Mr. Anish Saraf Non- Executive Director - - - - - -
Mr. Atul Gupta Non- Executive Director - - - - - -
Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani Non- Executive Independent Director - - - - 1.70 1.70
Mr. Madhavan Ganesan Non- Executive Independent Director - - - - 1.70 1.70
Mr. Murali Sivaraman Non- Executive Independent Director - - - - 145 145

There are no pecuniary relationship or transaction
of the non-executive director other than those
mentioned above.

The above remuneration is excluding retiral benefits
i.e leave encashment, provident fund, gratuity and
premium paid for group health insurance, as per

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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actuarial valuation and premium payments made by
the Company.

Stock Option details:
During the year under review, no options under the

Company’s ESOP plan 2009/2021 were granted to any
Executive/Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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Brief Profile of the Directors:

Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy is one of the Promoters
of your Company and has been a Director since
incorporation on November 30, 2006. He holds a
bachelor's degree in medicine and surgery from the
Sri Venkateswara University and a master's degree in
business administration from the Wharton School,
University of Pennsylvania.

Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf is a Chartered Accountant from
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He
holds a Post-Graduate Diploma in Management from
the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.
He is currently the Managing Director of Warburg
Pincus India Private Limited and has been associated
with them from more than 15 years. He is involved in
the firm’s Investment Advisory activities in India and
evaluates opportunities in Real estate, Industrial, and
Consumer sectors in India.

Mr. Atul Gupta holds a bachelor’s degree in technology
from the Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay and
a master’s degree in business administration from
the Walter A. Haas School of Business, University of
California, Berkeley. He is employed as an investment
partner at Premji Invest and leads investments in
technology enabled sectors including consumer-tech,
health-tech, fin-tech and enterprise tech. He has more
than 14 years of experience in the investment industry.

Mr. Murali Sivaraman is a Chairman/Independent
Director in multiple listed Boards and is also an advisor
to Private Equity. After more than three decades
of global leadership roles based out of Singapore,
Shanghai, Toronto, London and Delhi, he is now based
in Mumbai, India focusing on enterprise value and
governance via multiple Board and Advisory roles.
Recent Global Roles: President for Growth Markets:
Philips Lighting - Signify (Singapore) and CEO Global
Domestic Appliance - Royal Philips (Shanghai) - Scale
US$ 1.5 to 2 BN, Managing Director - Philips India.

67

Current board / advisory roles include Huhtamaki
India, Bharat Forge, ICICI Lombard General Insurance,
MedPlus Health Services, Hamilton Houseware
(Milton), Private Equity advisory for Branded Consumer
Durables - Advent International India - Eureka Forbes.
Mr. Sivaraman is a qualified Chartered Accountant,
Cost & Works Accountant, MBA from IIM Ahmedabad
and has done Advanced Management Program from
Harvard Business School.

Mr. Madhavan Ganesan holds a bachelor's degree
in engineering from the Birla Institute of Technology
& Science, Pilani and a post graduate diploma in
managementfromthe Indian Institute of Management,
Calcutta. He was previously associated with Reliance
Retail, SPI Technologies, Wipro Limited, Spectramind,
Tata Information Systems Limited and Tata Industries
Limited. He has over 34 years of experience in various
companies in the retail, technology and the industrial
sectors.

Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani holds a Bachelors degree
in Commerce from Shri Ram College of Commerce
and an MBA from Faculty of Management Studies,
Delhi University. She is a Chevening Gurukul scholar
from the London School of Economics. She has
held customer-facing roles for over thirty years in
P&L Management, Marketing and Sales largely in
Pfizer,Dabur and Asian Paints. Ms. Mirchandani has
served on twelve diverse boards and is currently a
Non-Executive Independent Director on the boards of
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Limited, Tata
Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited and Piem Hotels
Limited.

Core Skills /Expertise/competencies of the Board
of Directors:

The skill/competencies for the members of the Board
as identified by the Board of Directors of the Company
that is required in the context of Healthcare Business
are as follows:
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on background, knowledge, skills, abilities (including
their ability to exercise sound judgment), professional
experience and functional expertise, and educational
and professional background. The NRC recommends
the appointment of a candidate based on the defined
criteria and attributes. The Board, on recommendation
of the NRC and profile of the candidate, recommends
the appointment to the members of the Company,
wherever applicable, for their approval.

Succession Planning

Company believe that sound succession planning for
the Board Members and Senior Management is vital
for creating a robust future for the Company. Our
succession planning framework is well built and acts
as a hallmark of a forward-thinking, future-ready and
progressive Board. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee plays an instrumental role in development
of a diverse pipeline for succession thereby ensuring
that the Company has a strong, diverse and high
performing Board and Management Committee now
and in the future. It deliberates on various factors
including current tenure of Directors, anticipated
vacancies in key Board and Senior Management
positions, skill matrix including skill-gaps, diversity,
time-commitment and statutory requirements, etc.,
to ensure orderly succession planning.

Board Support

The Company Secretary supports the Board to ensure
that it has policies, processes, information, time and
resources it needs to function effectively and efficiently.
He is responsible for collation, review and distribution
of all papers submitted to the Board and Committees
thereof for consideration. He is also responsible for
preparation of the Agenda and convening of the
Board and Committee Meetings. He attends all the
Meetings of the Board and its Committees as Secretary
of the committee or the Board. S/He advises/assures
the Board and its Committees on compliance and
governance principles and ensures appropriate
recording of minutes of the Meetings.

Confirmation and Certification

The Company annually obtains from each Director,
details of the Board and Board Committee positions
he/she occupies in other Companies, and changes
if any, regarding their Directorships. The Company
has obtained a certificate from M/s. R & A Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, under Regulation
34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Listing
Regulations confirming that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of the Company by the SEBI and Ministry of

69

Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such authority and the
same forms part of this Integrated Annual Report.

Board Independence

Pursuant to section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16 of Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors
to provide an annual confirmation that they meet the
criteria of independence. Based on the confirmations/
disclosures received from the Directors and on
evaluation of the relationships disclosed, supported
by a certificate from M/s. R & A Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, as per the requirement of
Regulation 25(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Board
confirms, that the Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions as specified under Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations and are independent of the Management.
The Board includes three Independent Directors as on
March 31, 2023.

Director’s Induction and Familiarization Program:

The Executive Directors and Senior Management
provide an overview of operations and familiarize
the new Directors on matters related to the vision
and values of the Company. The Company provides
a Induction kit to the Directors at the time of joining
containing informative documents like Annual Report,
Memorandum & Articles of Association, Organization
Structure, Composition of Board and Committees,
Duties and terms of reference of the Committees of
the Board, Code of Ethics & Business Conduct, Code
of Conduct - Prohibition of Insider Trading, Directors
& Officers Insurance policy, contact details of the
Senior Management, etc. The Company regularly
conducts various familiarization programs for the
Independent Directors as a part of the quarterly Board
and Committee meetings. Various business cluster
heads make presentations to the Board periodically
pertaining to the Company'’s performance and future
strategy for their respective cluster. Your Board also
convenes strategy meetings from time to time to
review long term growth/plans of the Company.
The Board is regularly apprised on all regulatory and
policy changes relevant to the business by the Senior
Management and the Auditors of the Company.
The details of the familiarization programs imparted
to the Independent Directors are also available on
the website of the Company at https://
www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/
Medplus%20Familarisation%20Programme%20for%20
Independendent%20Directors.pdf

Independent Directors:

Pursuant to Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with Section 149(6) the Independent
Directors are Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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During the year under review there was no change in
the Independent Director of the Company.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Directors:

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Independent Directors have confirmed that
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties. Based on the declarations received from the
Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has
confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence
as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and that they are independent of
the management. The Independent Directors have,
in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6
of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have
enrolled themselves in the Independent Directors’
Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs ('lICA).

Meeting of Independent Directors:

During the year under review, pursuant to Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation
25(3) of the Listing Regulations, one meeting of
Independent Directors of the Company was held
on January 09, 2023.The Independent Director had
reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole
as well as that of Non-Independent Directors and the
Chairman by considering the views of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors. They also access the quality,
quantity, effectiveness and promptness of the flow of
information between the Company’s management
and the Board. They periodically meet with the
Statutory Auditors and the Internal auditors without
the presence of the management to understand
the overall quality of audit, quality of financials, key
financial matters and corrective actions to be taken for
strengthening the internal controls of the Company
and their general feedback.

Performance Evaluation of Independent Director:

The Board of Directors of the Company carried out
an annual evaluation of its own performance, of
committees, of the Board and individual directors
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Listing Regulations. The performance
evaluation is conducted through structured
questionnaires which cover various aspects such as
the Board composition and structure, effectiveness
and contribution to Board processes, adequacy,
appropriateness and timeliness of information and
the overall functioning of the Board etc. The Individual
Director’s response to the questionnaire on the

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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performance of the Board, Committee(s), Directors, and
Chairman, were analyzed. The Directors were satisfied
with the evaluation process and have expressed
their satisfaction with the evaluation process. In
compliance with Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors has formulated criteria for evaluation of the
Company’s Independent Directors’ performance. The
performance evaluation of Independent Directors is
carried out based on their role and responsibilities,
effective participation in the Board and Committee
meetings, expertise, skills and exercise of independent
judgment in major decisions of the Company.

Code of Conduct for Director and Senior
Management:

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics
(the “Code”) for all the Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company. All Board Members
and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance of the Code of Conduct. A declaration
signed by Chief Executive Officer to this effect is
attached to this report. The Board has also adopted
separate code of conduct with respect to duties of
Independent Directors as per the provisions of the Act.
The Code is available on the website of the Company
https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/
Remedy-Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-and-Senior-

Management.pdf.
The Committees of the Board:

The Board is having five committees i.e Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee,
Risk Management Committee and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee. During the year, all
recommendations of the committees of the Board
have been accepted by Board.

Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee has been constituted in terms
of Section 177 of the Act, read with Regulation 18 of
the Listing Regulations. The scope and function of
the Audit Committee is in accordance with Section
177 of the Act, read with Regulation 18 and Part C of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations. The broad terms
of reference are as under:

1. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process and disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that its financial statements are correct,
sufficient and credible;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements/ Half Yearly/ Quartely and
auditor’s report thereon before submission to the
Board for approval.



3.
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Recommending to the Board the appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of the
auditor of the Company; reviewing and monitoring
the statutory auditor’s independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
and approving payments to statutory auditors for
any other services rendered by them;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement
of uses / application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or
rights issue or preferential issue or qualified
institutions placement, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps
in this matter; Considering and commenting on
rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes
involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc.,
on the Company and its shareholders.

. Approval or any subsequent modifications of

transactions of the Company with related parties;

Composition of Audit Committee:

6. Scrutinizing of inter-corporate loans and

investments; Reviewing the utilization of loans
and/ or advances from/investment by the holding
company in any subsidiary exceeding rupees 100
crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans /
advances / investments existing as per applicable
law; and

Evaluating of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Establishing a vigil mechanism for Director and
employees to report their genuine concerns or
grievances

Discussing with and reviewing the internal
auditors on any significant findings and follow up
thereon;

10. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in

the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
any other terms of reference as may be decided
by the Board and/or specified/provided under the
Companies Act, the Listing Regulations or by any
other regulatory authority;

The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance are as given below:

Date of meetings and attendance

3 8 '3 2 3
Sr. o <) =] P =)
Name Category Designation ° N N N N S
No. =) =) - S I I}
m - - - o °
1111 1
= < 2 g 4
1 Mr. Murali Sivaraman Non- Executive Chairman N N N N, Vv 100%
Independent Director
2 Mr.Madhavan Ganesan Non- Executive Member N N v v Vv 100%
Independent Director
3 Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani Non- Executive Member N N, N, N v 100%
Independent Director
4 Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf Non-Executive Director Member N v N N v 100%

*Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy were invited and attended all the meetings.
* The audit committee invited the CFO and all other stakeholder as may be required.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 2. Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has performance of the independent directors and the
been constituted in terms of Section 178 of the Act, Board;

read with Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. 3 |dentifying persons who qualify to become
The scope and function of the Nomination and directors or who may be appointed in senior
Remuneration Committee is in accordance with management in accordance with the criteria
Section 178 of the Act, read with Regulation 19 and laid down, recommending to the Board their
Part D of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations. The appointment and removal, and carrying out
broad terms of reference are as under: evaluations of every director’s performance;

1.

Formulating the criteria for determining 4 Analyzing, monitoring and reviewing various

qualifications, positive attributes and human resource and compensation matters;
independence of a director and recommending to

the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

5. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management..

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance are given below:

Date of meetings and Attendance

(2]
(]
=t ; ; 8§ 4 N o R o
No Name Category Designation a 8_ S S § 8. g
2@ € ¢ - ¢ £ °
> (=)] - > c ]
= 2 8 2 5 =
1 Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani ~ Non- Executive Chairperson v v v v v 4 100%
Independent Director
2 Mr. Madhavan Ganesan Non- Executive Member v NN N A 100%
Independent Director
3 Mr. Murali Sivaraman Non- Executive Member v NN A A 100%
Independent Director
4 Mr. Atul Gupta Non-Executive Director Member v NN N A 100%

*Mr.Gangadi Madhukar Reddy was invited and attended all the meeting. The Company Secretary acted as a secretary to all the committee
Meetings.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted in terms of Section 178 of the Act read with
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The scope and function of the Committee is in accordance with the
Act and SEBI Regulation. The broad terms of reference are as under:

1.

To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. and assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints;

To review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

. To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being

rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

. Toreview the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed

dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company: and

Carrying out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or specified/provided
under the Companies Act, 2013 or the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, each as amended or by any other regulatory authority.
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Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

The Composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee and attendance are as given below.

- Date and Attendance
No Name Category Designation of meeting

Jan 10, 2023 %age
1 Mr. Madhavan Ganesan Non- Executive Independent Director ~ Chairman J 100%
2 Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani Non- Executive Independent Director Member v 100%
3 Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy Managing Director & CEO Member - -

Mr. Manoj Kumar Srivastava is designated as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company.

Shareholder’s Complaint Statement:
The details of investor complaints received / redressed during the financial year 2022-23 is as under:

Complaint as on

01/04/2022 Received during year Resolved during year Pending as on 31/03/2023
NIL 122 122 NIL

Risk Management Committee:

The Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
broad terms of reference are as under:

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy for identification of internal and external risk and measures
for risk mitigation.

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

2. Tomonitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems;

3. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations
and actions to be taken; and

4. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to
review by the Committee.

Composition of Risk Management Committee:

The composition of the Risk Management Committee and attendance are as given below.
Date and Attendance

Sr. . . of the Meeting
Name Category Designation "

No. April 29, October %age
2022 10,2022 9

1 Mr. Madhavan Ganesan Non- Executive Independent Director ~ Chairman N v 100%

2 Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani Non- Executive Independent Director Member V N 100%

3 Mr. Hemanth Kundavaran*  Chief Financial Officer Member V - 50%

4 Mr. Venu Gopal Siripuram  Chief Technology Officer Member V N 100%

*Hemanth Kundvaran resigned w.e.f June 5, 2022
**The committee invited Mr. Murali Sivaraman (Chairman of Audit Commitee).
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted under the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
and the rules and guidelines framed thereunder. The scope and functions of the Committee is framed as per
the said provisions. The broad terms of reference are as under:

1. Formulation of a corporate social responsibility policy to the Board, indicating the activities to be undertaken
by the Company in areas or subjects specified in the Companies Act, 2013. The activities should be within
the list of permitted activities specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder;

2. Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred, amount to be at least 2% of the average net
profit of the Company in the three immediately preceding financial years or where the Company has not
completed the period of three financial years since its incorporation, during such immediately preceding
financial years;

3. Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the corporate social responsibility
projects or programs or activities undertaken by the Company;

4. Monitoring the corporate social responsibility policy from time to time and issuing necessary directions as
required for proper implementation and timely completion of corporate social responsibility programmes;

5. ldentifying corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy
programmes;

6. ldentifying and appointing the corporate social responsibility team of the Company including corporate
social responsibility manager, wherever required; and

7. Performing such other duties and functions as the Board may require the corporate social responsibility
committee to undertake to promote the corporate social responsibility activities of the Company or as may
be required under applicable laws.

Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
The composition of the CSR Committee and attendance are as given below.

Sr.No Name Category Designation
1 Ms. Hiroo Mirchandani Non- Executive Independent Director Chairperson
2 Mr. Madhavan Ganesan Non- Executive Independent Director Member

3 Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy Managing Director & CEO Member

During the year under review, no CSR Committee meetings held in view of no statutory requirement/no
obligation for the expenditure as required under the act.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

All subsidiary companies are managed by the independent Boards having the rights and obligations to manage
such Companies in the best interest of their stakeholders. Presently the Company is having twelve subsidiary
companies out of that three material unlisted subsidiary companies along with four other subsidiaries and five
step-down subsidiaries. The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements of the unlisted subsidiary. The
minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and a statement of all significant transactions and arrangements
entered into by the unlisted subsidiary companies are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the
Company for their review. The Company has a Policy for determining material subsidiaries which is uploaded on the
website of the Company at https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Material-Subsidiary.pdf

General Body Meeting:
Annual General Meeting:
The Annual General Meetings of previous three years are as given below:

FY Date & Time Venue Special Resolution
19-20 Dec 31,2020 at 3:00 Registered Office : 707, 7" Floor, 5-9-13 No special resolution was passed
PM Taramandal Commercial Complex, Saifabad
20-21 Sep 30,2021 at 3:00 Hyderabad - 500004, Telangana, India
PM
21-22  Sep 26,2022 at 4.00 Registered Office : H. No: 11-6-56, Survey 1. Alteration in Articles of Association
PM No: 257 & 258/1 Opp: IDPL Railway Siding 2. Ratification of MedPlus Employees
Road,Moosapet, Kukatpally Hyderabad TG Stock Option and Shares Plan 2009
500037 through Video Conferencing/ other 3. Ratification of MedPlus Employees
Audio Video Means facility. Stock Option and Shares Plan 2021.
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Postal Ballot:

During the year under review, no resolution was passed through postal ballot. However during FY’'23-24,
following special resolution was passed and voting pattern proposed/ passed through Postal Ballot are as under:

Item No. Type of Resolution Result
1 Extending benefits of Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 to the employees Passed with requisite majority
of Subsidiary Company(ies)
2 Alteration of Articles of Association by insertion of new Article 102-A Not received requisite majority
3 Alteration of Articles of Association by insertion of new Article 102-B Passed with requisite majority
4 Alteration of Articles of Association by insertion of new Article 102-C Passed with requisite majority
5 Alteration of Articles of Association by insertion of new Article 102-D Not received requisite majority

Procedure for postal ballot:

The postal ballot notice through e-mail was circulated to all the members. The remote e-voting period
commenced on 20.05.2023 and ended on 18.06.2023. Total five resolution was proposed for approval. The
result was announced on 20.06.2023. KFin Technologies Limited, Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company,
has provided facility for voting through e-voting, and Ms. Rashida Adenwala, PCS worked as scrutinizer for
conducting the Postal Ballot.

Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil Mechanism:

MedPlus believes in the conduct of affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior and is committed to developing a culture where it
is safe for all employees to raise concerns about any unacceptable practice or any event of misconduct. The
employees are encouraged to voice their concerns by way of Whistle Blowing. The Policy provides an avenue to
every employee and every person as defined therein to report concerns directly to the Management or to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary and HR Head is the designated officer for effective
implementation of the Policy and dealing with the complaints registered under the Policy. All cases, registered
under the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company, are reported to the Chairperson of Audit Committee and are
subject to the review of the Audit Committee. The Company affirms that no personnel has been denied access
to the Audit Committee. During the year under review, there were no qualified whistle blower complaint. The
Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/
content/Whistleblower-Policies.pdf.

Policies of the Company:

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to adhere to the ethical and governance standards, the Company, has
inter-alia, the following polices and codes. All of them are available on the website — www.medplusindia.com

Name of the policy Website link

Policy on Materiality https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Materiality.pdf

Policy on Material Subsidary https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Material-
Subsidiary.pdf

Policy on Board Diversity https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Board-Diversity.
pdf

Policy on succession planning https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Succession-Plan.pdf

Nomination and Remuneration Policy ~ https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Nomination-and-
Remuneration-Policy.pdf
Policy on Dividend Distribution https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Dividend-

Distribution.pdf
Code of Conduct - Prohibition of Insider https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Code%200f%20Conduct

Trading Prohibition%200f%20Insider%20Trading.pdf

Fair Disclosure code https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Fair-Disclosure-Code.pdf

Business Responsibility Policy https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Business _Responsibility
Policy.pdf

Archival Policy https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Archival-Policy.pdf

Policy for preservation of documents https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-for-Preservation-of-
Documents.pdf

Risk Management Policy https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
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Name of the policy Website link

Policy on Materiality of and dealing with https.//www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Materiality-of-and-

Related Party Transaction Dealing-with-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf

Policy on Related Party Transaction https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Related-Party-Transaction-
Policy.pdf

Policy on Evaluation of Performance https://www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Policy-on-Evaluation-of-
Performance.pdf

Means of Communication:

i. Quarterly financial results
The quarterly financial results are generally published in national newspaper i.e. Business Standard (English)
and Nava Telangana (Regional Language) and are also displayed on Company’s website.

ii. News Releases, Presentations
Official news/press releases are disclosed to both the Stock Exchanges i.e. NSE and BSE from time to time
and are also displayed on the Company’s website at www.medplusindia.com

iii. Analysts/Investors presentations/Official news releases
The detailed presentations made before the analysts/investors are disseminated to stock exchanges and as
well displayed on the Company’s website at https://www.medplusindia.com/corporate.jsp.

The management participates in the analyst/earnings call every quarter, after the announcement of results.
The audio recording of analyst calls and transcripts are posted on the Company’s website

Circulation of Annual Report:

Annual Report containing audited standalone and consolidated financial statements together with Board’s
Report, Auditors’ Report and other reports/information are circulated to members entitled thereto and
is also made available on the Company Website at https://www.medplusindia.com/financial-reporting.
jsp#annual-return-year-wise.

General Shareholder information:

Company Registration Details:
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN), allotted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India is
L85110TG2006PLC051845 and The Company Registration Number is 051845.

Annual General Meeting:
The Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 is scheduled to be
held as under:

Date Friday, September 29, 2023

Venue (Registered Office) Video conferencing / facilitated at H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1, Opp: IDPL Railway
Siding Road, (Moosapet) ,Kukatpally, Hyderabad - 500 037, Telangana, India.

Time 15.30 Hrs (1.S.T)

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

M/S KFin Technologies Limited is acting as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent(R&TA) of the Company. They have
adequate infrastructure and VSAT connectivity with both the depositories, which facilitate better and faster
services to the investors.

Address for correspondence:

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,

Gachibowli Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana, India.
Ph.No: (+91) 040 6716 2222

Ph.No: (+91) 040 2300 1153

Email: einward (dot) ris (at) kfintech (dot) com

Website: www.kfintech.com

Android Mobile App: KPRISM
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Company Secretary and Compliance Officer:

Mr. Manoj Kumar Srivastava

Address for correspondence:

Corporate and Regd Office: H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,

Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road,(Moosapet),

Kukatpally, Hyderabad - 500 037, Telangana, India.

Email: cs (at) medplusindia (dot) com

Listing Information:

(a) Stock Exchanges:

National Stock Exchange (“NSE”) Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE”)
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Fort, Mumbai-400001
Mumbai-400051.

Website: www.nseindia.com Website: www.bseindia.com
Stock Code: MEDPLUS Scrip Code: 543427

Annual listing fees for the year 2022-23 have been paid by the Company to NSE & BSE.

(b) Depositories:

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
Trade World, 4" Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati PhirozeJeejebhoy Towers, 28" Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai -
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013. 400023.

Plant Locations:
The details of Plant Locations are given below:

1. Kallakal 2. Shamirpet 3. Pashamylaram 4. Pashamylaram 5. Moosapet
Factory Factory Factory Factory Factory

Survey No. 394,402,  Ground Floor and Plot No. 110, Phase Plot No. 221/B, Municipal No. 12-7-
412 and 413, Kallakal  First Floor, Door No. Ill, Industrial Park, Survey No. 171, Ph- 20/64/2, Survey No.
Village, Toopran 6-9, Survey No.323, Pashamylaram Village, Il Pashamylaram 793, Goods Shed Road,
Mandal, Tupran, Babaguda Village, Patancheru Mandal,  Village, Sanga Reddy = Moosapet, Kukat pally,
Medak, Telangana, Shamirpet Mandal, Medak, Telangana, District, Sangareddy, = Rangareddy, Telangana,
502334 Hyderabad, Medchal 502307 Telangana, 500050 500018

Malkajgiri, Telangana,

500078
Market Price Data:

a) Market Price Data

BSE NSE
Month - Year
High (%) Low (%) Close () High (%) Low (%) Close ()

April'22 1,047.00 961.65 995.65 1,013.86 985.2868 995.8263
May'22 995.95 778.85 860.95 915.6429 870.7405 889.6214
June’22 910.30 706.10 762.35 793.0318 761.8636 7754955
July’22 777.95 709.70 740.05 762.2857 741.8643 748.8071
August’22 777.40 690.45 735.05 750.795 730.2875 739.1
September'22 772.00 600.00 618.40 702.4295 679.3227 685.8432
October'22 629.90 582.00 592.35 609.6605 595.5158 601.1079
November'22 694.20 570.00 684.80 637.3214 612.381 623.7738
December’22 757.70 610.00 615.35 692.9591 655.6205 672.2
January’23 663.00 599.10 635.65 630.4071 613.6262 622.631
February'23 700.00 605.15 665.35 662.0375 634.6725 648.2525
March’23 792.70 614.50 651.15 712.8405 673.7548 693.0619
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b) Movement of the Company’s Share Price on NSE Nifty/ BSE Sensex during the period under review
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Share Transfer System: National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 40(1) of
SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities can
be transferred only in dematerialized form w.ef.
April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for
transmission or transposition of securities. Further,
SEBI has fixed March 31,2021 as the cutoff date for
re-lodgment of transfer deeds and the shares that are
re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in demat
mode. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to consider converting their holdings to
dematerialized form. Transfers of equity shares in
electronic form are effected through the depositories
with no involvement of the Company.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The Equity Shares of the Company are tradable in
compulsory dematerialized segment of the Stock
Exchanges and are available in depository system of

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
The demat security (ISIN) code for the Equity Share
is INEB04L01014. As on March 31,2023, 11,92,56,536
Equity Shares (constituting 99.95% of the total
paid up share capital) were in dematerialized form.
The Company’s Equity Shares are regularly traded on
the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

Credit Ratings:

The Company has not taken any services from credit
agencies during the year under review.

Other Disclosures:

Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment:

The Company is committed to ensure that all the
employees work in an environment that is inclusive
and provides an opportunity to bring their best selves
at workplace. The Company is also committed to
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provide a work environment that ensures every person
is treated with dignity, respect and fair treatment.
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment
Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act).
The objective of this policy is to lay clear guidelines
and provide right direction in case of any reported
incidence of sexual harassment across the Company’s
office and take appropriate decision in resolving such
issues.To build awareness in this area, the Company
has been conducting induction/ refresher programs
in the organization on a continuous basis. During the
year, your Company organized for all employees.

As per the requirement of the POSH Act, the Company
has constituted an Internal Complaints Committees
(ICQC). While maintaining the highest governance
norms, the Company has appointed external
independent persons who have prior experience in
the areas of women empowerment and prevention
of sexual harassment. During the year under review,
no complaint received, and thus no compliant is
pending.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) referred to in Section 133 of the
Act. The significant accounting policies which are
consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Compliance with the Code of Conduct:

Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V of
the Listing Regulations, all Directors and Senior
Management personnel of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023. The same forms
part of this report as ANNEXURE H.

CEO / CFO Certificate:

Mr. Gangadi Madhukar Reddy, Managing Director
and CEO and Mr. Sujit Kumar Mahato, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company have certified to the Board
with regard to the compliance in terms of Regulation
17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The same forms
part of this report as Annexure I.

Certification of Non-Disqualification of Directors:

A certificate from Rashida Adenwala, (C.P. NO.:2224;
M.No. 4020), R & A Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, has been obtained under Regulation 34(3)
of SEBI Listing Regulations — confirming that none
of the Directors on the Board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as Director of a Company by the
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Securities and Exchange Board of India and Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority
and accordingly the same forms part of this report as
Annexure J.

Certificate on Corporate Governance:

The M/s. R & A Associates, Company Secretary in
practice and Secretarial Auditors issued a certificate
confirming that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to
the ‘Report of the Board of Directors & Management
Discussion and Analysis, forming part of the Report
and Accounts under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of
the Listing Regulations. forms part of this report as
Annexure K.

Disclosure of materially significant Related Party
Transactions:

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company has
not entered into any materially significant related
party transaction, which could have a potential
conflict of interest between the Company and its
Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives
other than the transactions carried out in the normal
course of business. The related party transactions are
disclosed in Notes to Accounts. A copy of the policy on
dealing with related party transactions is available on
the Company’s website i.e. www.medplusindia.com

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report
Trading by Insiders:

In compliance with SEBI regulations on prevention
of insider trading, the company has implemented
a comprehensive code of conduct for promoters,
directors, designated employees, and theirimmediate
relatives called Code of Conduct - Prohibition of
Insider Trading. This code provides guidelines on
procedures, disclosures, and the consequences of
violations when dealing with the company’s shares.
Additionally, the company has adopted an automated
tracking system to monitor insider trading, generating
reports and sending reminders to employees about
prohibited transactions. The company has also
established policies for handling leaks of unpublished
price-sensitive information (UPSI) and determining
legitimate purposes. The Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information are readily available on the
company’s website. To ensure compliance, the
company maintains a structured digital database (SDD)
internally, capturing all relevant details pertaining to
UPSI. Furthermore, the Company has proactively taken
measures to strengthen its insider trading prohibition
framework and meet regulatory requirements. These
efforts demonstrate the company’s commitment to
maintaining a robust system that prevents insider
trading in its securities.
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Senior Management Personnel and Key Managerial
Personnel (SMP and KMP)

During the year Mr. Sujit Kumar Mahato joined as
Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Manoj Kumar Srivastava
joined as Head Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer and key Managerial Personnel of the Company.
Mr. Hemanth Kundavaram Chief Financial Officer,
resigned & relieved and Ms. Shilpi Keswani demitted
the office of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
of the Company. Other than as mentioned above,
there was no changes in the SMP and KMP of the
Company. All the SMP's of the Company has made
disclosures to the Board confirming that there is no
material, financial and commercial transactions where
they have personal interest that may have a potential
conflict of interest with the Company at large.

Fees paid to Statutory Auditors:

During the year under review, the Company has paid
%99,14,166 (Ninety Nine Lakhs, Fourteen thousand,
one hundered and sixty six only), which includes fee
for all services paid/payable by the Company and its
Subsidiaries to M/s. BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company.
Please refer to the Notes to accounts, for the details
fees paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors
for the financial year 2022-23.

Policy for determining Material Subsidiary:

The Company has adopted a policy for determining
a material subsidiary, in terms of which a subsidiary
shall be considered as Material, if, the income or net
worth exceeds ten percent of the consolidated income
or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its
subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting
year. In terms of the said policy, your Company is
having three material subsidiary company i.e. Optival
Health Solutions Private Limited (“OHSPL"), Sai Sridhar
Pharma Private Limited(“SSPPL"), and Venkata Krishna
Enterprises Private Limited (“VKEPL"). Necessary
compliances w.r.t. material subsidiaries have been
duly carried out. For the purpose of appointing an
Independent Director on the Board of the material
non-listed subsidiary Company, “material subsidiary”
shall mean a subsidiary, whose income or net worth
exceeds 10% of the consolidated income or net worth
of the holding Company in the immediately preceding
accounting year. The income or net worth of Venkata
Krishna Enterprises Private Limited does not exceed
10% of the consolidated income or net worth of the
holding Company. However, Optival Health Solutions
Private Limited being our unlisted material subsidiary
company one independent director of our Board
have been duly appointed on Board of Optival Health
Solutions Private Limited.

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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Details of non-compliance by the Company,
penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company
by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years:

The Company has submitted quarterly compliance
report on Corporate Governance with the Stock
Exchanges, in accordance with the requirements
of Regulation 27(2)(a) of the Listing Regulations.
Compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance The certificate issued by M/S
R & A Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries
confirming compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing
Regulations, is annexed. The Company has complied
with all the requirements of the Stock Exchange, SEBI
and other statutory authorities on the matters related
to Capital Markets, as applicable except as mentioned
in the Secretarial Audit Report which forms the part of
the Annual report as Annexure-K.

Fund raising and utilization :

The Company has not raised any funds through
preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement hence requirement specified under
Regulation 32(7A) of listing regulation is not applicable
to the Company.

Disclosure of Loans and Advances:

Please refer the note no. 8 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and note no. 6 of the Standalone
financial statements of the Company.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments:

During the year under review, the Company does not
have any outstanding GDRs /ADRs / Warrants or any
other convertible instruments.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities:

During the year under review no commodity price risk
or foreign risk and hedging activities were carried out.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report:

Pursuant to Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and
Participants) Regulation, 2018, a Practicing Company
Secretary has been carried out a Secretarial Audit to
reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and
CDSL and the total issued and listed capital. This audit
is carried out every quarter and the report thereon
is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the
Company’s shares are listed. The Secretarial auditors
confirms that the total listed and paid-up capital is in
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agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL)
and total number of shares in physical form.

Disclosure of information under Regulation 30 of SEBI Listing Regulations:

Pursuant to Regulation 30 read with Clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule Ill of SEBI Listing Regulations,
the information required is provided in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus(DRHP) and also available on the
Company’s website: https.//www.medplusindia.com/uploads/content/Disclosure%20under%20Req.%2030(2).pdf

Compliance with mandatory and discretionary requirements:

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements prescribed by SEBI Listing Regulations and the
Company is in the process of adopt with discretionary requirements as stated under Part E of Schedule Il to
the SEBI Listing Regulations. During the year under review, there is no audit qualification in the Company’s
financial statements. The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unqualified financial
statements. M/s. Ernst & Young LLP, the Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account:

The Company does not have any unclaimed shares and hence the disclosure pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations
is not applicable.

Details of Material Subsidiary including date and place of incorporation and name and date of
appointment of Statutory Auditors:

si Name of Material Date of Place of Name and date of appointment
*  subsidiary Incorporation Incorporation of Statutory Auditor
1 Optival Health Solutions 11/07/2005 Hyderabad M/S BSR & Associates LLP, The
Private Limited Statutory Auditors was appointed
on September 30,2018
2 Venkata Krishna 01/11/2010 Hyderabad M/S GPHK &Associates, The
Enterprises Private Limited Statutory Auditors was appointed
on September 30,2019
3 Sai Sridhar Pharma Private  12/10/2007 Hyderabad M/S GPHK & Associates, The
Limited Statutory Auditors was appointed on

September 30,2019

Secretarial Audit

The secretarial audit report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, issued by Rashida Adenwala,
(C.P.NO.:2224; M.No. 4020), Founder Partner of R & A Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries forms part of
the Board’s Report as Annexure C. As on March 31, 2023, none of the subsidiaries of the Company except OHSPL,
SSPPL, and VKEPL qualified to be material unlisted subsidiaries.

Agreement on compensation of profit sharing in connection with dealings in securities of the Company

During the financial year under review, no employee including Key Managerial Personnel or Director or Promoter
of the Company had entered into any agreement, either for themselves or on behalf of any other person, with
any shareholder or any other third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with
dealings in securities of the Company.

Declaration on Code of Conduct

The Company is committed to conducting its business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations and with the highest standards of business ethics. The Company has adopted a“Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct” which is applicable to all Directors, officers and employees.

| hereby certify that the Board Members and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Ethics and Business conduct for the financial year 2022-23.

For MedPlus Health Services Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Madhukar Gangadi Reddy
Date: August 7, 2023 Chairman, MD & CEO

81 ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



Corporate Governance Report (Contd.)

9€S'9S°T6'LL %ES'0S S66'LL'EV'T %LV'6V OVL'L9'8E'T %00L %00°00L 9£9'S0’€6'LL 0 9£9'S0’€6°LL %001 9£9'S0'€6'LL 0 0 9£9'S0’€6'LL  TLS'EL (2T
sysnu|
oafojdw3 Aq
796'LT'T %000 0 %000 0 %61°0 %61°0 796'LT'T 0 796'LT'T %61°0 796'LT'C 0 0 796'LT'T L plRYysateys  a
dlqnd UoN
-19j0Wo01d
0 %000 0 %000 0 %000 %000 0 0 0 %000 0 0 0 0 0 UoN p]
6€V'S6'L0'L %000 0 %000 0 %8€'6S %8E'6S  6L5VY'80°L 0 6LS'VY'80°L  %8E6S 6LS'v¥'80°L O 0 6/S'v1'80'L 80S'€L 19nd 4
dnoun
J1910Wo01d
SEL'EET8Y  %ES0S S66'LL'EV'T %LV'6y OVLL9'8ET  %EV OV %EYOr SEL'EET8Y O SEL'EET8Y  %EV OV GEL'EET8Y 0 0 SEL'EET8Y € 73 Jajowold v
(Z>+9+v)
jJo%pesy
(@) (X)+(1A)
PI3Yy _...A_Mv; =(Ix) (lesdes ~ (O+ A . ANUe+m+<v
saueys X . aieys g+v) |ejol sssep X:sse|d jJoo% esy
(n1x) (e)'oN  sateys  (e)‘oN o (IA) (£S61
wiogpezy o [e303 Jo panjipjo  30%E rhieed an) an (N pPIRY "
: jo a9 abejuad sejejol sydiaday saleys (AI) PIRY (] o
-leHjeWap o 'y oy % esy 19d se +(A)+(AD e =
o -13d e se) Lioyisodag Aynba saseys Ayinba siapjoy H
utpiey pajendjed) = (JIA) PI3Y -Ployateys g
saaeys S91311N>3S 5 5 seueys saueys Buifpapun  yo-pied dn pied -aJeys jo kioBarer 2
e el s1an s3yb1y (AIX) bunnop jo oN [ saieys Apaed AlINJ0°ON 30 °SON .\M,
y (1x) pa13q -19AU0D JO J0'ON Jo°ON =
Rquiny Joo,ese
-wnoua UOISI9AUO0D
) Buipjoy
asimiay3o (11X) s2aeys 1ny (X1) s21314n23s jo —ore
10 pabpajd ul paypoqjosaquinN Bulwnsseo, ssepd yoes ui pjay siybiy Bunop jo ;aqunN us
saleys ese‘buipjoy
Jo 13quinN -aleys

:SMOJ|0} Se S| €70 ‘LE Yd4e| uo se Buipjoyaieys yo uonnquisig ayL

82

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED



® Corporate Overview @ Statutory Reports ® Financial Statements

ANNEXURE H
DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT
To,
The Members,
MedPlus Health Services Limited
H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,
Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, Moosapet,
Kukatpally Hyderabad — 500037, Telangana, India
I, Gangadi Madhukar Reddy, Chief Executive Officer of MedPlus Health Services Limited hereby confirm that all
the Members of the Board and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed Compliance with the Code of
Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2023 in accordance with the Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Sd/
Gangadi Madhukar Reddy,
Chairman, MD & CEO
DIN: 00098097
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ANNEXURE |

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER UNDER REGULATION 17(8)
OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,

The Board Of Directors,

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1

Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, Moosapet,

Kukatpally, Hyderabad - 500037, Telangana, India

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015,
we hereby certify that:

Subject: Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

A. We have reviewed financial statement and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 and
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company'’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year ended March 31, 2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting
and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify
these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:
(1) No significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2)  Nosignificant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 25, 2023

Sd/- Sd/-
Gangadi Madhukar Reddy Sujit Kumar Mahato
Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEXURE J

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with PARA-C Clause 10 (i) of
Schedule V)

To
The Members of

MedPlus Health Services Limited,

H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1,

Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, (Moosapet),
Kukatpally, Hyderabad — 500037, Telangana, India

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
MedPlus Health Services Limited, bearing CIN: L85110TG2006PLC051845 and having registered office at H. No:
11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1 Opp: IDPL Railway Siding Road, Moosapet, Kukatpally Hyderabad Telangana
500037 (herein after referred to as ‘the Company’), and produced before us by the Company for the purpose
of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para - C clause 10 (i) of
the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify as on date that, none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31st March 2023, have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of Company by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authorities.

S.No Name of Director DIN
1 Madhukar Reddy Gangadi 00098097
2 Anish Kumar Saraf 00322784
3 Murali Sivaraman 01461231
4 Madhavan Ganesan 01674529
5 Atul Gupta 06940578
6 Hiroo Mirchandani 06992518

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on our verification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023
For R&A Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner

M. No: F4020 C. P. No: 2224
UDIN: FO04020E000764505
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ANNEXURE K

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATE ON
COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with in Part E of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR), 2015]

To
The Members of
MedPlus Health Services Limited,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by MedPlus Health Services Limited
for the year ended 31st March 2023 as stipulated in Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) as per the Listing
Agreement entered into the by the said Company with stock exchange.

The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above listing Regulation, except,
for the prior approval of the audit committee for the related party transactions for the months April, 2022 to June,
2022 and delay in filing of the disclosures with the stock exchanges relating to the related party transactions for
the six months ended March, 2023.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended March 31, 2023, no investor
grievances are pending against the Company, as per the records maintained by the Company and presented to
the Investors/Shareholders Grievance Committee. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 7, 2023 For R&A Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Rashida Adenwala
Founder Partner

M. No: F4020 C. P. No: 2224
UDIN: FO04020E000765627
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Annexure L

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY &
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I.  Details of the listed entity
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity
Name of the Listed Entity

—_

Year of incorporation

> wN

Registered office address

Corporate address
E-mail

Telephone
Website

W o N W

Financial year for which reporting is being done

10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed

11. Paid-up Capital

12.  Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the
person who may be contacted in case of any queries on the
BRSR report

13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report
made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on a
consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities which
form a part of its consolidated financial statements, taken
together).*

L85110TG2006PLC051845
Medplus Health Services Limited
30" November 2006

H. No: 11-6-56, Survey No: 257 & 258/1 Opp:
IDPL Railway Siding Road, Moosapet, Kukatpally
Hyderabad TG 500037 IN

Same as above

cs@medplusindia.com

040-62746274

www.medplusindia.com

15 April 2022 to 31 March2023

BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India
Ltd.

3238.61 Mn

Manoj Kumar Srivastava
manoj.srivastava@medplusindia.com;

040-62746274

Disclosures made in this report are on a
standalone basis.

*MedPlus Health Services Limited (‘'MHSL’ or ‘MedPlus’) being a retail pharmacy Company, has various retail
outlets and other operations under Optival Health Solutions Private Limited (‘'OHSPL or Optival’). As ~80% of
the operations are carried out through OHSPL, it has been included in the reporting boundary.

Il. Products/services
14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover)

S.No. Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of the entity

1 Hospital and Medical Care Pharmaceutical products, Medical and 99%
orthopaedic goods
2 Hospital and Medical Care Diagnostic-imaging services 1%

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

S.No. Product/Service NICCode % of total Turnover contributed
1 Retail Trade services:
Pharmaceutical products 9962273 99%
Medical and orthopaedic goods 9962274
2 Other human health services: Diagnostic-imaging services 9993196 1%
lll. Operations
16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:
Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National 5 3936 3941
International 0 0 0
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17. Markets served by the entity:
a. Number of locations

Locations Number

National (No. of States/Union Territory) 8

International (No. of Countries) 0

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total 0

turnover of the entity?

c. A brief on types of customers Our customers are end consumers of

pharmaceutical products and fast-moving
consumer goods. MedPlus is one of the largest
pharmacy retailer in India. We offer a wide
range of products, including (i) pharmaceutical
and wellness products, including medicines,
vitamins, medical devices and test kits, and (ii)
fast-moving consumer goods, such as home
and personal care products, including toiletries,
baby care products, soaps and detergents, and
sanitizers.

MedPlus has adopted and omnichannel
approach to better serve the Company’s

customers.
IV. Employees
18. Details as at the end of Financial Year:
a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):
. Male Female
S.No. Particulars Total (A)
No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A)
EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 19,626 14,306 72.89% 5,320 27.11%
2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0 0 0
3. Total employees (D + E) 19,626 14,306 72.89% 5,320 27.11%
WORKERS
4, Permanent (F) 0 0 0 0 0
5. Other than Permanent (G) 0 0 0 0
6. Total workers (F + G) 0 0 0 0
b. Differently abled Employees and workers:
S- Particulars Rotal Male Female
No (A) No. (B) % (B /A) No. (C) % (C/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 0 0 0 0 0
2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0 0 0
3. Total differently abled employees 0 0 0 0 0
(D+E)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4, Permanent (F) 0 0 0 0 0
5. Other than permanent (G) 0 0 0 0 0
6. Total differently abled workers 0 0 0 0
(F+G)
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19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women

No. and percentage of Females

Total (A
(A No. (B) % (B/A)
Board of Directors 16.67%
Key Management Personnel 3 0 0%

20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers (Disclose trends for the past 3 years)

2021-22 2020-21
2022-23 . . o
(Turnover rate in current FY) (Turnover rate in previous  (Turnover rate in the year
FY) prior to the previous FY)
Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Permanent Employees 43.60% 42.10% 43.21% 34.02% 38.84% 3528% 37.10% 42.89% 38.71%
Permanent Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)
21. (a) Names of holding/subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures

Does the entity indicated

Indicate whether % of e
. . . . holding/ shares 2! co!umn A, p?rtlupate
S. Name of the holding /subsidiary/ associate .. in the Business
No. companies/ joint ventures (A) Sub's|d|ary{ hgld oY Responsibility initiatives
Associate/ Joint listed . o
A of the listed entity? (Yes/
Venture entity No)
1 Optival Health Solutions Private Limited (‘OHSPL)  Subsidiary Company  99.99% Yes
2 Wynclark Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (‘WPPL) Subsidiary Company  100% No
3 MHS Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (‘MHS') Subsidiary Company  100% No
4 Nova Sud Pharmaceuticals Private Limited ('NPPL’) Subsidiary Company  100% No
5 Sai Sridhar Pharma Private Limited (‘'SSPPL) Subsidiary Company  100% No
6 Venkata Krishna Enterprises Private Limited Subsidiary Company  100% No
('VKEPL)
7 Deccan Medisales Private Limited (‘(DMPL’) Subsidiary Company  100% No
8 Shri Banashankari Pharma Private Limited ('SBPPL) Subsidiary Company  100% No
9 Sidson Pharma Distributors Private Limited Subsidiary Company  100% No
(‘'SPDPL)
10  Kalyani Meditimes Private Limited (‘KMT’) Subsidiary Company  88.04% No
11 Clearancekart Private Limited Subsidiary Company  100% No
12 MedPlus Insurance Brokers Private Limited Subsidiary Company ~ 100% No
("MIBPL")
VI. CSR Details
22. (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: (Yes/No) Yes
(i) Turnover (in ) 32,301.65 Mn

(iii) Net worth (in %)

¥11,412.78 Mn
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VIl. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on Responsible

Business Conduct:

Grievance FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Redressal
Mechanism in Numbe.r of Numbe.r of
Stakeholder group Place (Yes/No) Numberof |complaints | » ETTULITEIERST HETLTS
from whom complaint (If Yes, then complaints L MMl complaints pending "
is received provide \:veb-link filed during resolution 5 filed during resolution E
for grievance the year at close of theyear atclose of 5
redress policy) the year the year &
Communities* Yes 0 0
Investors (other than Yes 0 0 0 0
shareholders)
Shareholders Yes 122 0 7,714 0
Employees and workers Yes 0 0 0 0
Customers Yes 16,872 0 10,200 0
Value Chain Partners Yes 0 0 0 0

Other (please specify)

*The Policies of the Company are placed on the Company’s website under investors tab and the same can be accessed through
the corporate governance section of the company's website: https://www.medplusindia.com/corporate.jsp . Further, there are
some internal policies placed on the intranet of the Company

24. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and social
matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or
mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format

Financial
. implications
Indicate imprical
S Lk AT In case of risk, approach gfth;::‘s'l‘(i:r
) issue risk or Rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity +app ppor y
No. . . . to adapt or mitigate (Indicate
identified opportunity o
(R/O) posmv'e or
negative
implications)
1 Data Risk Safeguarding personal and health information The Company safeguards Negative
Protection & holds paramount significance for an the data using sufficient
Privacy omnichannel healthcare pharmaceutical retail firewalls against external

Company. As a pharma retailer, companies threats
receive personal information from individuals
through various means, such as purchasing
and filling prescriptions, enrolling in
promotional and loyalty programs, registering
on websites, or engaging in communication
with the Company. It is essential for companies
to prioritize the protection of patient and
customer privacy, as well as their data.

The Company regularly
inspects its  internal
IT systems to prevent
data loss or unexpected
breakdown
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In case of risk, approach

Rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity to adapt or mitigate

Financial
implications
of therisk or
opportunity

(Indicate

positive or
negative
implications)

2 Corporate Risk
Governance

3 Accessto Opportunity
affordable
and quality
healthcare

4 Employee Risk
health,
safety and
wellbeing

Effective corporate governance relies on the The ~ Company  has
presence of accessible and impartial policies,ascomprehensive
well as well-defined behavioural expectations governance policies
that are uniformly applied across the entire in  place viz;  Risk
organization. By  conducting  business management,  related
operations with transparency and integrity, party transactions,
companies can successfully attain their long- whistleblower  policy,
term financial and strategic goals. Companies dividend  distribution
are evaluated based on their performance policy etc. these policies
in various essential governance areas, are accessible on the
encompassing ownership and control, board Company’s website.
compensation, accounting practices, business

ethics, and tax transparency. The  Company — has

an independent and
diverse Board with vast
experience and expertise
across industries and
retail business as well.

Improving patients’ access to quality health The Company constantly
care can help counter public health challenges. strives to provide quality
Affordable access to quality healthcare is a medicines at affordable
top concern to customers across our markets prices to its customers by
along with employee safety, particularly due expanding its network
to the COVID-19 pandemic. As one of the and building efficiencies
largest companies in the nation dispensing in its supply chain.
medications, and through our delivery of

other healthcare services, MedPlus is uniquely

positioned to make an impact on healthcare

access and affordability.

The safety, health, and well-being of employees The Company constantly
are of utmost importance to MedPlus as a strives to provide a safe
health care service Company. There is a clear environment to all its
connection between employee well-being and employees and  has
the overall vitality of a business. By prioritizing policies in place like
the welfare of workforce, the Company can POSH,equal opportunity,
enhance employee morale and decrease disciplinary action, leave,
expenses associated with onboarding new whistleblower policy etc.
employees. Companies are assessed based on

several factors, including the composition of

their workforce (such as size, labor intensity,

and operational regions), the relationship

between management and labour, the extent

of worker protections, and their initiatives to

promote employee engagement.
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Indicate
Material whether
issue risk or
identified opportunity
(R/0)

In case of risk, approach

Rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity to adapt or mitigate

Financial
implications
of therisk or
opportunity

(Indicate

positive or
negative
implications)

5  Product Risk
Safety &
Quality

6  Responsible Risk
Marketing

7 Responsible Risk
and ethical
supply chains

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

Our utmost priority is the health and well-being The Company
of our patients. We prioritize rigorous safety sources most of the
standards to ensure that the products we sell, products directly from
including their ingredients, meet the highest manufacturers of the
safety requirements. We also strive to maximize pharmaceutical products
safety in pharmacy dispensing. The value of or  their  authorised
our brand relies on our ability to guarantee distributors and ensures
the safety and quality of pharmaceutical that genuine medicines
and healthcare products. Customers have are offered to the
the expectation of feeling confident in the customers.

transparency and safety of the products they

choose to purchase. The Company ensures

that the products which
are sold under the
Company’s label are
manufactured at reputed
companies having a very
strong quality system.
Marketing is a critical part of the industry’s The Company tries to
business strategy, as it allows them to promote maintain transparent
their products and services to potential communication to its
customers and build brand awareness. customers and follows all
Responsible  marketing means avoiding regulatory compliances.
misleading claims, exaggerated promises, and The ~ Company  has
other tactics that could deceive or mislead a robust process of
customers. It also includes avoiding any screening all marketing
content that is offensive or discriminatory, material internally and
and ensuring that marketing materials are where required using
respectful and inclusive of all audiences. By external expertise. The
prioritizing ethical and transparent marketing Company has a customer
practices, the industry can establish a positive helpline and monitors
reputation and build long-term relationships customer feedback
with customers who value honesty, integrity, constantly.

and social responsibility.

Pharmacists have a responsibility to ensure that The Company procures
products are procured through a licensed and medicines directly from
lawful supply chain. Pharmacy systems should manufacturers or their
be specifically designed to ensure the secure distributor this ensures
dispensing of medications. Implementing less chances of pilferage
sustainable  supply chain  management or counterfeit medicines.
practices can aid in identifying potential areas
of high risk or sustainability concerns within
the supply chain. This includes pinpointing
greenhouse gas emissions and human rights
r!sks, prowdlng detalled'|n5|ghts. into where outlets. This is enabled
risks may exist. Such information enables

companies to effectively focus their efforts and Py arobust IT system put
address these issues more efficiently in place by the Company.

The Company ensures
availability of medicines
and secure dispensing
through its pharmacy
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Financial
Indicate inf'lpl:ica't i;: ns
S el In case of risk, approach gptpoer::lsni:;
issue risk or Rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity e o
identified  opportunity to adapt or mitigate (Inf:h'cate
(R/O) pOSItIV.e or
negative
implications)
8 Patient Opportunity MedPlus, a leading pharmaceutical retailer, The Company ensure Positive
Health caters to millions of customers and patients availability of healthcare
Outcomes on a daily basis. As an esteemed and and genuine medicines
innovative presence in the retail pharmacy through its wide network
sector, the Company operates approximately and online presence and
[ 1 locations nationwide, playing a vital role continues its mission of
in the healthcare ecosystem. Through their providing/ or making
business operations, pharma retail companies available affordable
can promote medication adherence, thereby healthcare and other
enhancing health outcomes and empowering products to all.
patients to actively manage their well-being.
Moreover, by strengthening their commitment
to social justice and equity, pharma retail
companies can work towards improving access
to healthcare, ensuring that cost does not act
as a barrier to essential preventive services.
9 Human Risk Our dedication lies in safeguarding the inherent The Company believes Negative
Rights rights and freedoms of all individuals, enabling in  providing  equal

them to lead lives characterized by dignity, opportunity  to  all
freedom, equality, justice, and peace. We firmly irrespective  of  their
commit to respecting and upholding the gender, caste  and
dignity, wellbeing, and human rights of every physical challenges.
person impacted by our business activities, The Company has put
including our patients, customers, employees, in place policies and

suppliers, and local communities. Human rights ensure adherence
encompass essential rights and freedoms that while recruiting. The
are universal and should be granted to all Company provides

individuals, regardless of their race, colour, safe environment to all
religion, language, pregnancy, ancestry, age, employees, especially to
gender, national origin, sexual orientation, allfemale employeesand
gender identity, gender expression, mental has policies like POSH in
or physical disability, genetic information, place to safeguard their
marital status, or veteran status. It is imperative interests.

that all colleagues and suppliers recognize

this commitment and regularly evaluate their

policies accordingly. Companies focussing on

respecting human rights demonstrate their

commitment to building sustainable and

mutually beneficial relationships.
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Indicate
Material whether
issue risk or
identified opportunity
(R/0)

In case of risk, approach

Rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity to adapt or mitigate

Financial
implications
of therisk or
opportunity

(Indicate

positive or
negative
implications)

10 Community Opportunity
engagement
and
partnerships

11 Waste Risk
management

12 Energyuse Risk
and climate
impacts in
Retail

Thriving businesses are built upon the The Company constantly
foundation of local communities. By actively endeavours to improve
engaging with these vital stakeholders, its offering to the
businesses aim to remove obstacles to access customers by providing
and address community needs, such as various schemes which
affordable prescription drugs. Recognizing provide for affordability
and collaborating with these stakeholders without compromising
is essential for business success and making on the quality of the
a significant impact. Developing strong medication.
relationships  with communities enables

companies to minimize potential operational

disruptions, mitigate regulatory risks, and

maintain a solid social license to operate.

Stakeholders place significant importance The Companyensure safe
on waste management and anticipate the disposal of all hazardous
Company to take reasonable measures to waste through third
prevent operational waste and mitigate its party vendors who
negative consequences through responsible specialize in hazardous
management and the promotion of circular waste disposal. The
economies. It is crucial to responsibly and Company has been
sustainably handle waste in retail stores, offices, finding ways to minimize
and other facilities, embracing principles waste generation in the
of the circular economy such as reduction, entire supply chain by
reuse, recycling, and composting. This is encouraging staff to
essential in mitigating the harmful effects shift to reusable packing
of plastic and other waste in retail stores and material like plastic
distribution operations. Failure to comply with crates in place of carton
waste management regulations can result in box etc.

substantial fines being imposed

Climate change is caused by human activities The Company ensure it
and poses an imminent threat to human health procure energy efficient
and the health of our planet. With thousands of electrical ~ equipments
retail pharmacies, distribution centers, offices, and has embarked on
and other facilities across the country, chain replacing all the lighting
drug retailers run numerous establishments to energy efficient LED
that consume substantial amounts of energy, lights. The Company
mainly for lighting and refrigeration. The constantly monitors
constant operation of many retail locations and is looking for ways
further escalates energy demand. Byto minimize energy
improving operational energy efficiency and consumption across its
adopting diverse energy sources, companies network.

can reduce their vulnerability to escalating

energy expenses and minimize their indirect

greenhouse gas emissions. Each business unit

is accountable for recognizing, evaluating, and

handling potential opportunities resulting

from climate change.

Positive

Negative

Negative

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards
adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure P P P P P P P P P
Questions 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Policy and management processes

1.a.Whether your entity’s Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
policy/policies cover each

principle and its core

elements of the NGRBCs.

(Yes/No)

b. Has the policy been Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
approved by the Board?

(Yes/No)

¢. Web Link of the Policies, https://www.medplusindia.com/corporate.jsp

if available

2. Whether the entity has Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
translated the policy into

procedures. (Yes / No)

3. Do the enlisted policies No No No No No No No No No
extend to your value chain

partners? (Yes/No)

4. Name of the national NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
and international codes/

certifications/labels/

standards (e.g. Forest

Stewardship Council,

Fairtrade, Rainforest

Alliance, Trustea) standards

(e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS,

ISO, BIS) adopted by your
entity and mapped to each
principle.
5. Specific commitments, We Weare We We're We Weare We We Our com-
goals and targets set by pledge under- remain currently pledgeto currently pledge pledgeto mitment
the entity with defined tostand taking commit- imple- uphold engaged toensure allocate to main-
timelines, if any. firmin  numer- tedto menting our firm in nu- that our our Cor- taininga
ourad- ousini- ensuring avariety stand merous actions porate  custom-
herence tiatives, thatour ofinitia- against initiatives and Social er-fo-
to ethical andin employ- tivesand discrimi- and plan engage- Respon- cused
practices, the near eesand planning nation, as to un- ments  sibility  approach
uphold  future, workers tocarry directed dertakea alignre- (CSR) will per-
transpar- we plan persis- outa byour  compre- sponsibly funds sist.
encyin tocon- tently detailed existing hensive withthe towards
allour  ducta receive  study, policies. study guide-  fostering
dealings, compre- benefits which that will linesset societal
and hensive related  will assist helpus forthin develop-
guar- study to totheir wusin establish our Code ment.
antee establish health  setting measura- of Con-
account- specific and clear and ble goals duct.
ability  goals safety.  concrete and
forour and goals. targets.
actions, targets.
as delin-
eated by
our es-
tablished
policies.
6. Performance of the No No No No No No No No No

entity against the specific
commitments, goals

and targets along-with
reasons in case the same
are not met.
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Governance, leadership and oversight
7. Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related
challenges, targets and achievements

At MedPlus, we are deeply committed to ensuring that our operations and practices are sustainable, inclusive,
and responsible. We firmly believe that businesses must serve a purpose beyond profit, encompassing
responsibilities to the environment and society. This belief is the foundation of our commitment to
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles, which guide us in creating sustainable value for
our stakeholders.

We are aware of the challenges our industry faces in terms of sustainability, particularly in relation to energy
consumption, waste generation, and emissions. However, we see these challenges as opportunities to
innovate, improve, and inspire change, not just within our organization, but across the industry and society
at large.

To this end, we have taken numerous steps to mitigate our impact on the environment. A key initiative
has been optimizing energy efficiency across our operations. We have commenced the conversion of our
conventional lighting to LED alternatives, and continue to invest in highly energy-efficient equipment. We
have also improved the management of our air conditioning systems to ensure they are turned off in areas
not in use. These measures have already led to significant energy savings.

Our commitment to sustainability extends to our approach to waste management and reduction. We have
established systems to responsibly collect, manage, and recycle waste, partnering with authorized agencies
for this purpose. We have also taken steps to reduce plastic waste, with a shift to paper bags in our stores
and reusable cloth bags at our warehouses. Our initiatives in waste reduction are making a positive impact.

Further, we have restructured our supply chain to be more efficient and localized. By sourcing goods from
authorized local producers and strategically locating our warehouses, we have successfully minimized the
distance goods need to be transported, thereby reducing fuel consumption and associated emissions.

As we continue our sustainable journey, we've engaged with stakeholders for material topic identification,
initiated emission calculations, and embedded Environment, Health, and Safety Standards across the
organization. Our commitment to the well-being of our workforce remains unwavering, with rigorous
health and safety systems across our operations.

In the future, we aim to deepen our market penetration, expand omnichannel presence, increase private
offerings, provide adjacent services to customers, and automate back-end operations. All these initiatives
ensure our alignment with sustainability while delivering genuine medicines at better value to customers.
Our recent investment in diagnostics further enhances our service spectrum, helping us build a strong
foundation for sustainable development.

While we are proud of these accomplishments, we understand that there is still much work to be done.
Sustainability is a journey, not a destination. We are steadfast in our commitment to continuously improving
our practices, setting more ambitious targets, and leading the way in sustainable and responsible business.

Thank you for your continued support and trust in MedPlus as we journey towards a sustainable future.
8. Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation and oversight of the Business Responsibility
policy (ies).

Bhaskar Reddy Cherukupalli Chief Operating Officer
9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/Director responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide details.

Gangadi Madhukar Reddy Managing Directors and Chief Executive Officer

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED 96



® Corporate Overview @ Statutory Reports ® Financial Statements

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Indicate whether review was undertaken Frequency
Subject for Review by Director/Committee of the Board/ (Annually/Half yearly/Quarterly/
Any other Committee Any other - please specify)

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Performance against Committee of the Board Annually
above policies and
follow up action*

Compliance with Committee of the Board Quarterly
statutory requirements

of relevance to the

principles, and,

rectification of any

non-compliances**

*The Committee of the Board periodically assesses the effectiveness of these policies and make any necessary
amendments to the policies and procedures.

All the Policies are reviewed at least once annually and performance against some of these policies are re-
viewed usually on annual basis. Policies are reviewed considering various parameters like statutory require-
ments and the frequency as stated in the policy document or need basis.

**The Company is in compliance with applicable laws. A Compliance report across all statutory requirements
is submitted to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/
evaluation of the working of its policies by an external P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the agency.*

No No No No No No No No No

*The procedures and compliances are regularly examined by internal auditors, and the Board is kept abreast
of the compliance status. Both from the standpoint of best practices and risk analysis, policies are routinely re-
viewed and revised by respective department or business heads, with approvals granted by the management,
Board Committees, or the Board itself. An internal evaluation of the effectiveness of the BR policies has been
conducted. We do not have any external agency which has reviewed our policy

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:
Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
The entity does not consider the Principles material toits NA  NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
business (Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a positon to NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
formulate and implement the policies on specified

principles (Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial or/human and NA  NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
technical resources available for the task (Yes/No)

Itis planned to be done in the next financial year (Yess/No) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Any other reason (please specify) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
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SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a
manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Total
number of
training and Topics/ principles covered under the training and its

%age of persons
in respective

Segment . category covered
awareness impact
D by the awareness
held programmes
Board of Directors 1 SEBI and regulatory amendments 100%
Key Managerial 1 SEBI and regulatory amendments 100%
Personnel
Employees other 732 1. Skill Upgradation Trainings- 74%
than BoD and * Training in Drugs, POS, SOP & Soft skills and POSH.
KMPs e Aptitude, Basic Math, Logical reasoning & SOP modules for
upskilling
e -Training for the new process update
* Training on Retail Management, Behavioral Skills, Team
Management Skills, General Aptitude & Maths, Excel & Data
Management, MedPlus Process & SOP.
e Training for upskilling the training delivery skills of the newly
recruited trainers.
* Training program including OJT comprised of
Communication, Customer Handling Skills & Process
Training.
2. Health and Safety Trainings
* ProcessTrainings
* Training in drugs, POS and Soft skills
3. Other Trainings
* Human Rights
* MedPlus Processes and SOP
Workers 0 0 0

2. Details of fines/penalties/punishment/award/compounding fees/settlement amount paid in proceedings (by the
entity or by directors /KMPs) with regulators/law enforcement agencies/judicial institutions, in the financial year, in
the following format

NGRBC I::::;:::;i:z%l:::;:z/ Amount Briefof Has an appeal been
s =

Principle judicial institutions (InX) the Case preferred? (Yes/No)
Penalty/ Fine Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Settlement Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding fee Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Non-Monetary
NGRBC Name of the regulatory/ enforcement Briefof Hasanappeal been

Principle agencies/ judicial institutions the Case preferred? (Yes/No)
Imprisonment NA
Punishment NA
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3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/Revision preferred in cases where monetary or
non-monetary action has been appealed.

Case Details Name of the regulatory/ enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions
NA

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, provide
a web-link to the policy.

The Business Responsibility Policy (BR Policy) as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company prohibits practices
that are abusive, corrupt, or anti-competitive. Copy of the BR Policy is available at https://www.medplusindia.com/

corporate.jsp

5.Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law enforcement
agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Directors NIL NIL
KMPs NIL NIL
Employees NIL NIL
Workers NIL NIL

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Number Remarks Number Remarks
Number of complaints received in relation to NIL NIL
issues of Conflict of Interest of the Directors
Number of complaints received in relation to NIL NIL

issues of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action taken by
regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest.
Not Applicable
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Principle 2 Businesses Should Provide Goods and Services In A Manner That Is Sustainable And Safe

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the
environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R & D and capex investments made by the entity,
respectively.

Details of improvements in

Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year . ..
environmental and social impacts

R&D Nil Nil
Capex Nil Nil

2a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No) No

2b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?
The Company is engaged in the procurement and storage of pharmaceutical and FMCG products from suppliers
for retail and e-commerce distribution. Its Business Responsibility Policy serves as a foundational guide for the
continuous review and enhancement of its technology development, integrating social, ethical, and environmental
factors.

The Company is committed to compliance with all applicable laws to ensure the safety and sustainability of its
products, and it continually seeks ways to improve the lifecycle of these products. While there are not yet established
procedures for sustainable sourcing, the Company actively strives to minimize waste in product sourcing (finished
goods), based on what pharmaceutical and FMCG companies supply.

The procurement process mostly involves bulk purchasing from vendors, using their original packaging with
minimal need for additional materials. The Company operates an optimized end-to-end supply chain that reduces
waste of fuel and resources.

The Company is committed to developing a comprehensive sustainable sourcing procedure in the future and aims
to further refine its overall operations. Currently, goods are procured from producers who are certified manufacturers
of FMCG and Pharmaceutical products (finished goods).

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end of
life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.
Waste management in a safe and responsible manner is a crucial priority at MedPlus.

1. Plastics (including packaging) - Not Material to Medplus's operation. All the plastic waste is disposed through third
parties.

2. E-waste - Not Material to Medplus'’s operation. All the e-waste is disposed through third-party agencies as per
e-waste management and handling requirements.

3. Hazardous waste - The Company takes necessary steps to collect, manage, and waste disposed through
authorised companies. These authorised companies abide by applicable laws and regulations.

4. Other waste - Other non-hazardous wastes are sent for recycling, disposal, through third parties.
4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether

the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution
Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same. No
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PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses Should Respect And Promote The Well-Being Of All Employees, Including Those In
Their Value Chains

Essential Indicators

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Category % of employees covered by

) Health .Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care facilities
Total insurance insurance benefits Benefits
(R) Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(B) (B/A) (@ (C/A) (D) (D/A) (E) (E/R) (F) (F/A)
Permanent employees
Male 14,306 1,249 873% 14306 100% NA NA 0 0 0 0
Female 5,320 178 3.35% 5320 100% 5,320 100% NA NA 0 0
Total 19,626 1,427 7.27%* 19,626 100% 5320 100% 0 0 0 0
Other than Permanent employees
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Total NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

* All other employees are covered under ESI.
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

% of workers covered by

o Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
Health insurance . benefit Benefit faciliti
Category Total insurance enefits enefits acilities

(A) Number % Number % Number % Number %  Number %
(B) (B/A) (C) (C/R) (D) (D/A) (E) (E/A) (F) (F/R)

Permanent workers

Male Not Applicable
Female Not Applicable
Total

Other than Permanent workers

Male Not Applicable

Female Not Applicable
Total

2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year.

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

No. of No. of No. of No. of Deducted and
employees workers UG G RLE employees workers deposited
Benefits ploy deposited with ploy p
covered as covered as the authorit covered as covered as with the
a % of total a % of total (Y/N/N.A.) y a % of total a % of total authority
employees workers o employees workers (Y/N/N.A.)
PF 100% 0 Yes 100% 0 Yes
Gratuity 100% 0 Yes 100% 0 Yes
ESI* 100% 0 Yes 100% 0 Yes

Others - Please - - - - - R
Specify

* 18,199 employees are covered under ESI.
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3.  Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises/offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by
the entity in this regard.

We ensure that our office is accessible to individuals with disabilities, and we strive to enhance the infrastructure
continuously to remove accessibility barriers.

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If so,
provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes. Our Employees Code of Conduct highlights our policy to provide equal opportunity in all aspects of employment
and to ensure that there is no illegal discrimination or harassment of any kind including but not limited to derogatory
comments based on racial or ethnic characteristics and unwelcome sexual advances.

The code of conduct can be accessed at https://www.medplusindia.com/corporate.jsp

5.  Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

Permanent employees Permanent workers
Gender Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 62% 62% 0 0
Total 62% 62% 0 0

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and
worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Workers NA
Other than Permanent Workers NA
Permanent Employees Yes
Other than Permanent Employees Yes

Medplus has Grievance Mechanism which is accessible to internal stakeholders and is available on Company’s
intranet and brief under code of business conduct that can be accessible on website: https://www.medplusindia.
com/corporate.jsp

In case of any unethical matter, all employees are encouraged to report the concern to their supervisor or
reporting manager. For Organisational issues, performance and appraisal related concerns, they are directed
towards Human Resource Manager. Employees should reach out to the Audit Committee if complaint is of the
nature as described in the whistle blower policy which can be accessed via link: https://www.medplusindia.
com/corporate.jsp

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Total AL employees Total No. of employees/
/ workers in .
employees/ respective employees/ workers in
Category workers in P workers respective %
. category, who .
respective are part of in category, whoare (D/C)
category p . respective part of association
(A) LML LRI category (C) (s) or Union(D)
or Union (B) gory
Total Permanent Employees 19,626 0 0% 16,351 0 0%
- Male 14,306 0 0% 12,232 0 0%
- Female 5,320 0 0% 4,119 0 0%
Total Permanent Workers 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
- Male 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
- Female 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
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8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
On Health and On Skill On Health and On Skill
Category safety measures upgradation Total _ Safety measures upgradation
Total (A) % ©  No. %  No. %
(B/A) (C/A) (E) (E/D) (F) (F/D)

Employees
Male 14,306 6,711 47% 4,527 32% 12,232 5,261 43% 2,283 19%
Female 5,320 2,084 39% 1,272 24% 4,119 1,371 33% 368 9%
Total 19,626 8,795 45% 5,799 30% 16,351 6,632 41% 2,651 16%
Workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:
e FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Total(A) | No.B) [ %((B/A) RIS No. (D) % (D /C)
Employees*
Male 14,306 14,306 100% 12,232 12,232 100%
Female 5,320 5,320 100% 4,119 4,119 100%
Total 19,626 19,626 100% 16,351 16,351 100%
Workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

*The employees who have completed atleast six months on rolls as on 31t March are eligible for the perfor-
mance review, the objective being to assess the overall performance/KRA achievements, provide feedback

and identify training needs.
10. Health and safety management system:

a. Whether an occupational health and safety management
system has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/ No).
If yes, the coverage such system?

What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards
and assess risks on a routine and non-routine basis by the
entity?

Whether you have processes for workers to report the work
related hazards and to remove themselves from such risks.
(Y/N)

Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-
occupational medical and healthcare services? (Yes/ No)

No

The Company has embedded Environment, Health
and Safety Standards throughout the Organisation
and across its value chain. The Company’s
Environment, Health and Safety practices confirms
to applicable local laws as well as ethical business
standards.

The Company has invested and will continue to
invest in the safety of all its employees and human
resource surrounding it.

NA

Yes. We have Mediclaim in place for our employees
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11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident/Number Category FY 2021-22

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) (per one million-person Employees Nil Nil

hours worked) Workers Nil Nil

Total recordable work-related injuries Employees Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil

No. of fatalities Employees Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil

High consequence work-related injury Employees Nil Nil

or ill-health (excluding fatalities) Workers Nil Nil

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy workplace.

At Medplus, the health, safety, and well-being of our workforce is of paramount importance. We are committed
to maintaining a working environment that is devoid of occupational hazards, irrespective of the geographical
location or job nature of our staff. Rigorous Health and Safety systems are in place across stores, warehouses,
diagnostic centres, collection centres, and business operations, governed and motivated by our set policies
and procedures. If any employee was not informed of these standards or procedures during their induction, it's
crucial they promptly seek the necessary details from their direct manager. We consistently implement effective
strategies to consistently enhance our health and safety performance.

13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
. . Pending . . Pending
F'It‘:‘ded:ra':‘g resolution at Fllte:ed:::'g resolution at the | Remarks
y the end of year y end of year
Working Conditions 0 0
Health & Safety 0 0 0 0

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or
statutory authorities or third parties)
Health and safety practices 100%
Working Conditions 100%

Regular evaluations are carried out to determine the effectiveness of the health and safety systems, and suit-
able actions are initiated to consistently enhance our performance in health and safety.

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and on
significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working conditions.
Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses Should Respect The Interests Of And Be Responsive To All Its Stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.
A ‘stakeholder’ for your Company is defined as an individual, a group of individuals, or institutions that either influence
our business or are influenced by it. The inclusivity and prioritization of stakeholders are determined based on their
interest, impact and influence on Medplus. Addressing the needs, interests, and expectations of our stakeholders is vital
to our operations. To ensure this, we have established a well-organized stakeholder engagement process that allows us to
maintain open and reliable communication with our prioritized stakeholder groups.

2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder

group.
Whether Channels of Frequency of
identified communication engagement Purpose and scope of engagement
as Vulnerable| (Email, SMS, Newspaper, (Annually/ . X .
Stakeholder . including key topics and concerns
FrenTs & o Pamphle?s, Adver.tlsement, Half yearly/ raised
Marginalized | Community Meetings, Quarterly/ during such engagement
Group Notice Board, Website), others - please
(Yes/No) Other specify)
Patientsand |No - Retail Pharmacy interactions |[Regular - Valuable insight to foster trust
Customers - Social Media - Focus on healthcare and service
- Printand Electronic Media needs
- Front of-store products
- Payment options
- input on partnerships to
healthcare accessibility and
product transparency
Employees  [No A full range of communications | Regular - Improving health and well-being
channels, both digital and of employees
in-person - Training and upskilling
- Human Resources - Modification of benefit offerings
Management System - Financial and mental health
(HRMS) support
- Performance Reviews and - Express insights to management
Development Programs - Compensation practices
- Whatsapp Groups
- Website and Public reports
- POS pop-ups
- Regular emails
- Workplace surveys
- Corporate communications
- Meetings
- Bulletin Board / Notice
Board communications
Suppliers No - training/events regular assess- |- Responsible sourcing

- Business Review

ments, policies
and communi-
cations

- Plastics and waste management

- Operating as a responsible
materials consumer

- Respect and maintain human
rights

- Prioritise operational sustainability

- Ensure Product and Procedure
safety
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Whether Channels of Frequency of
identified communication engagement
as Vulnerable| (Email, SMS, Newspaper, (Annually/ !‘»‘urpo§e and scop'e of engagement
Stakeholder . including key topics and concerns
Gioun & o Pamphle?s, Adver'tlsement, Half yearly/ raised
Marginalized | Community Meetings, Quarterly/ during such engagement
Group Notice Board, Website), others - please
(Yes/No) Other specify)
Channel No Site/ Market Visits Periodic - Toimprove availability of
Partners Meetings medications across different
regions
- To establish a robust collaboration
to ensure a continuous provision
of essential medications
- To achieve higher market share
- Toraise awareness regarding new
initiatives
- To collaborate with partners who
demonstrate creditworthiness and
adhere to fair business practices
- Torespond to any inquiries or
feedback from channel partners.
Government |No Engagement with Industry Need based - Toactively participate and
and Associations / subcommittees advocate on diverse regulatory
Regulators Meetings and policy matters
- Toenhance the healthcare
ecosystem through policy
interventions
- Access to affordable and quality
healthcare
Shareholders [No - Frequent dialogue - Annual/ |- Understanding shareholder’s
and investors - Shareholders Meeting Event based expectations, soliciting inputs and
- Quarterly Earnings Calls - Quarterly communicating their perspective
- Website to the management
- Emails - Conveying the Company’s business
- Stock Exchange and other achievements, financial results,
communications and comprehensive strategic
- Annual Report direction.
Communities |No - Website Periodic - Evaluating social issues or

- CSRInitiatives

developmental needs faced by the
local communities.
Community welfare
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PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses Should Respect and Promote Human Rights

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, in

the following format:
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

coteseny Total () | oricers covered @) | ®/) [l IoRra by LI
Employees
Permanent 19,626 8,795 45% 16,351 6,632 41%
Other than permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Employees 19,626 8,795 45% 16,351 6,632 41%
Workers
Permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other than permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
FY 2021-22
Equal to Minimum A e More than

Categor Wage Minimum Minimum
gory 9 Wage Total Wage

(A) % (D)
Noe) | so@m | No.(E) % (E/D) No.(F) %(F/D)

Minimum Wage

Employees
Permanent 19,626 0 0 19,626 100% 16,351 0 0 16,351 100%
Male 14,306 0 0 14,306 100% 12,232 O 0 12,232 100%
Female 5,320 0 0 5320 100% 4,119 0 0 4,119 100%
Other than permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Workers
Permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other than permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:
Male Female
Number Median remuneraftion/ salary/ Number Median remunera?tion/ salary/
wages of respective category wages of respective category
Board of Directors (BoD)* 5 % 17,00,000/- 1 % 17,00,000/-
Key Managerial Personnel*# 3 340,00,000/- 0 -
Employees other than BoD 14,303 ¥ 1,56,000/- 5,320 ¥1,53,432/-
and KMP**
Workers 0 0 0 0

* Board of Directors (BoD) and KMP includes Directors and KMP of MedPlus only

*Includes 1 Executive Director (ED) and 5 Non-Executive Director (NED)/Sitting fees paid to NED has been
annualised for the purpose of median remuneration

#KMP includes 1 ED included in BOD

** Employees other than BoD and KMP includes MedPlus and Optival

Note: All Median salaries mentioned above are on annual basis
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4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues
caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)
Yes

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

At Medplus, issues concerning human rights matters are encapsulated within the Company’s Code of
Conduct.

The Company is dedicated to fostering a work environment that prioritizes health and wellbeing, free from
prejudice, gender bias, and sexual harassment. The goal is to cultivate and uphold a secure workplace
where courtesy, dignity, and respect are the norm, irrespective of one’s gender, race, caste, creed, religion,
origin, sexual orientation, disability, economic status or hierarchy position.

The Company has a Whistle Blower and Prevention and Resolution of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
Policy that allows and encourages its stakeholders to raise concerns about the violations against any
victimization of the employee who is complaining or the alleged harasser that may result from a complaint.

The Management has established an Internal Complaints Committee to address and resolve harassment
grievances. The grievances are duly addressed and corrective measures deemed fit are taken.

6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Filed sl Filed il
during resolution during resolution Remarks
at the end of at the end of
the year the year
year year

Sexual Harassment 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil
Discrimination at workplace 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil
Child Labour 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil
Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil
Wages 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil
Other human rights related issues 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.

The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been established to address issues of sexual harassment.
It comprises a diverse blend of both internal and external members hailing from relevant backgrounds.
Established criteria are already in place for handling instances of sexual harassment. The Company’s Code
of Conduct sets the groundwork for all employees to foster a productive, positive, enjoyable, and safe
working environment free from harassment and discrimination. Any form of discrimination is deemed
unacceptable within MedPlus, and all reported incidents are subject to thorough investigation.

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)

No

9. Assessments for the year:

%age of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory
authorities or third parties)

Child labour 100%
Forced/involuntary labour 100%
Sexual harassment 100%
Discrimination at workplace 100%
Wages 100%

Others - please specify -

The Company is conducting assessment at regular intervals of all its places of business.

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/concerns arising from the
assessments at Question 9 above.

Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses Should Respect and Make Efforts To Protect And Restore The Environment

Essential Indicators

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Giga Joules) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Total electricity consumption (A) 1,25,753.96 68,905.83
Total fuel consumption (B) 1,788.19 1,276.83
Energy consumption through other sources (C)

Total energy consumption (A+B+C) 1,27,542.15 70,182.66
Energy intensity per rupee of turnover (Total energy consumption/turnover in 267GJ/ZinMn  1.79GJ/Xin Mn

rupees)( GJ/Z in Mn)
Energy intensity (optional) - the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an No
external
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve
and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme
have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

Not Applicable

3.Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following
format:

Parameter FY 2021-22
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water

(ii) Groundwater

(iii) Third party water 2,818.22 2,320.93
(

(

iv) Seawater / desalinated water

v) Others
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + V)
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 2,818.22 2,320.93
Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water consumed / turnover) (KL/ X in Mn) 0.059 KL/ inMn 0.059 KL/ in Mn
Water intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been No
carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

4. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and
implementation.
NA

5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter Please specify unit FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Nox - -

Sox - -
Particulate matter (PM) - -
Persistent organic pollutants (POP) - -
Volatile organic compounds (VOC) - -
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) - -
Others- please specify - -

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an No
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.
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6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following

format:
Parameter Unit A @l rIvkd FY 2021-22
Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the  Metric tonnes of CO2 307.79 79.31

GHG into CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, equivalent
NF3, if available)

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the  Metric tonnes of CO2

GHG vinto CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, equivalent 28,294.64 15,503.81
SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per 0.60 Metric tonnes of  0.40 Metric tonnes of CO2
rupee of turnover (Metric tonnes of CO2 co2 equivalent/ T in Mn
equivalent/ ¥ in Mn) equivalent/ T in Mn

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission
intensity (optional)- the relevant metric
may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by No
an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

7.Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details.

At MedPlus, our continuous goal is to enhance energy efficiency, curtail waste, and minimize fuel consumption
throughout our extensive network of retail outlets. We're steadfast in our commitment to lessening our carbon
footprint through various measures, including:

Optimizing Energy Efficiency: We have embarked on an initiative to replace conventional lighting with LED
alternatives and to invest in equipment that is highly energy-efficient. Additionally, we are actively managing
our air conditioning systems, specifically ensuring they are turned off in areas not in use.

We have strategically positioned our warehouses in major metropolitan areas. These decentralized facilities
independently handle procurement and use public vehicles to service the stores in surrounding Tier 1 and Tier
Il cities or towns. This approach promotes reduced energy consumption by minimizing the distance goods
need to be transported.

Waste Management and Reduction: We have implemented measures to collect, manage, and recycle waste
responsibly, partnering with authorized agencies for this purpose. Our focus extends to the minimization of
plastic waste as we use paper bags at our stores and reusable cloth bags at our warehouse facilities. Moreover,
we dispose of pharmaceutical waste responsibly to keep emissions at bay.

Efficient and Localized Supply Chain: We source our goods from authorized local producers of FMCG and
Pharmaceutical products. Our procurement strategy includes sourcing from seven strategic locations close to
vendor points, which aids us in efficiently distributing products to our retail outlets. Our end-to-end supply
chain, running from our central warehouse to the retail shops, has been streamlined to ensure maximum
efficiency. This optimized system enables us to reduce fuel usage and resource wastage significantly.

8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Plastic waste (A) 12.67 6.10
E-waste (B) 40.50 5.81
Bio-medical waste (C) 199.89 140.10
Construction and demolition waste (D) - -
Battery waste (E) 4.09 4.60

Radioactive waste (F) - -
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (G) - -

Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any. 318.33 210.37
Paper other waste Scrap 192.44 89.83
Total (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) 767.92 456.81
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Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through
recycling, re-using or other recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Recycled 568.03 315.80
(ii) Re-used -
(iii) Other recovery operations -
Total 568.03 315.80

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of
disposal method (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Incineration 199.89 140.10
(ii) Landfilling -

(i) Other disposal operations -

Total 199.89 140.10

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has No
been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external
agency.

9. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted
by your Company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices
adopted to manage such wastes.

The Company follows the necessary procedures to collect, manage, and recycle waste, partnering with authorized
companies, who periodically collects and disposes of the waste as mandated.

10. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife
sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where
environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

Whether the conditions of environmental approval /
clearance are being complied with? (Y/N) If no, the
reasons thereof and corrective action taken, if any.

Location of operations/  Type of

S-No. offices operations

Not Applicable

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in
the current financial year:

. EIA Whether con . A
Name and brief . . . UL S 7 Results communicatedin  Relevant
A . Notification Date independent external R . .
details of project public domain (Yes / No) Web link
No. agency (Yes / No)

Not Applicable

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water
(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act
and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format: Yes

Any fines / penalties
/action taken by regulatory Corrective action
agencies such as pollution control taken, if any
boards or by courts

Specify the law/ regulation/ Provide details
guidelines which was not of the non-
complied with compliance

Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, When Engaging in Influencing Public and Regulatory Policy, Should Do So In A
Manner That Is Responsible And Transparent

Essential Indicators
1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations. No

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of such body)
the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S.N Name of the trade and industry Reach of trade and industry chambers/ associations (State/
chambers/ associations National)
1 Not Applicable

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti- competitive conduct by the
entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

Name of authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken

Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 8 Businesses Should Promote Inclusive Growth and Equitable Development

Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the
current financial year.

Whether
SIA conducted LS
Name and brief details of . . Date of . communicated .
. Notification . . by independent . . . Relevant Web link
project notification in public domain
No. external agency (Yes / No)
(Yes /No)
NA

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being undertaken by
your entity, in the following format:

No. of Project
State District Affected Families
(PAFs)

NA

S. Name of Project for
No. which R&Ris ongoing

% of PAFs Amounts paid to
covered by R&R PAFs in the FY (In3)

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.
We aim to ensure that all grievances are addressed efficiently and effectively, thus upholding our commitment
to maintaining a strong and positive relationship with our community.

Our primary modes of communication are as follows:

It is integral to our operations to have a transparent and efficient grievance redressal mechanism. The goal is
to ensure that any concerns or complaints raised by the community are heard, understood, and resolved in a
timely manner. Our primary modes of communication are as follows:

1. Toll-Free Number: A toll-free number is clearly displayed on your Company website and all our promotional
materials. This number is manned by a dedicated team of customer care representatives, who are trained to
handle inquiries, complaints, and concerns. They ensure that all calls are answered promptly, and necessary
actions are taken to address the grievances raised.

2. Call Centre/Customer Care: Our call centre operates around the clock to provide immediate assistance to
anyone reaching out.

3. Common Email ID: In addition to the toll-free number, we provide a common email ID for the community
to send in their grievances. This email ID is monitored regularly, and all messages are acknowledged within
a specified timeframe. The emails are categorized based on the nature of the query or complaint and
forwarded to the relevant department for resolution.

4. Feedback Form on Website: We also have a user-friendly feedback form on our website where customers
can share their concerns, suggestions or complaints.

5. Social Media Channels: We monitor our social media channels and take note of any comments or messages
related to grievances. Our team promptly responds to these messages and directs them to the appropriate
department for redressal.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers 3.21% 0.22%
Sourced directly from within the district and neighbouring districts* 96.79% 99.78%

*Qur procurement is made mostly from within the district and neighbouring districts where our warehouses/
branch offices are located.
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PRINCIPLE 9 Businesses Should Engage With and Provide Value To Their Consumers In A Responsible
Manner

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

The Company employs an effective system to accumulate and address all consumer complaints promptly. Our Complaint
Management System (CMS) is a dedicated dashboard that funnels consumer complaints to our Customer Service
Department (CSD). Based on the nature of the complaint, the CSD channels it to the appropriate departments. We adhere
to specific turnaround timelines (TAT) for different types of complaints across various departments.

Issues relating to topics such as online exchange procedures and online delivery complaints are addressed by our
Mart Operations Team. Customers can submit their grievances through phone calls or emails. Once a complaint ticket
is generated in our Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system, it becomes visible to both the customer and
relevant employees within the department.

Moreover, our customer care team is also receptive to feedback from customers, which is essential to our constant
improvement and ensures we uphold our commitment to excellent customer service.

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information

about:
As a percentage to total turnover
Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 100%
Safe and responsible usage 100%
Recycling and/or safe disposal 100%

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Reseived Pend.ing Remarks Ref:eived r::(:‘lﬂlt'i]gn Remarks
during the J resolution at during the
year end of year year CUCE ]
year

Data privacy 0 0 0 0
Advertising 0 0 0 0
Cyber-security 0 0 0 0
Delivery of essential services 0 0 0 0
Restrictive Trade 0 0 0 0
Practices

Unfair Trade Practices 0 0 0 0
Other 16,872 0 10,200 0

4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Number Reasons for recall
Voluntary recalls 0 NA
Forced recalls 0 NA

5. Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy?
(Yes/No) If available, provide a web-link of the policy.

Yes.

The policy can be accessed at -

https://www.medplusindia.com/privacy-policy.jsp

Potential information loss and IT system failures, particularly cyber-attacks, might possibly impair how well shops, centres,
warehouses, and distribution networks operate.

e To avoid unexpected system breakdowns, the Company regularly inspects its internal IT security systems

* The Company also safeguards these systems using a range of backup plans and sufficient firewalls

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery
of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls;

penalty / action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.
No Instances reported.
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Independent

Auditor’s Report

To the Members of MedPlus Health Services Limited

(Formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements
of MedPlus Health Services Limited (Formerly
known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)
(the “Company”), its employee benefit trust which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the standalone statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), standalone
statement of changes in equity and standalone
statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit and
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period. We have determined that there are no
key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors
are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in
the Company's Annual report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.
The Company's Annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements
does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance as required under SA 720
"The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other
Information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

Management's and Board of Directors'/Trustees
Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors
are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The
respective Management and Board of Directors of
the company/ Trustees of the employee benefit trust
(“Trust”) are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of company/
trust and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements,
the respective Management and Board of Directors/
Trustees are responsible for assessing the ability
of Company/Trust to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors/
Trustees either intends to liquidate the company/trust
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors/Trustees are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the company/trust.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone financial statements as
awhole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
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that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material

misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
Management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting in preparation
of standalone financial statements and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
of the Company regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other

Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11)
of the Act, we give in the"Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

Legal and Regulatory

a. We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books, except
that the back-up of key Microsoft

Excel Spreadsheets related to financial
reporting and Payroll Software which
form part of the books of account and
other relevant books and papers in
electronic mode has not been kept on
servers physically located in India on
a daily basis during the period from 11
August 2022 till 31 March 2023.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the
standalone statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income),
the standalone statement of changes in
equity and the standalone statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthebasis of the written representations
received from the directors between
1 April 2023 to 26 April 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Reportin accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations as at 31 March 2023
on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the
standalone financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor
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d

Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

(i)

The management of the Company
has represented to us that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 46 to the
standalone financial statements,
no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium
orany other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management of the Company has
represented to us that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 46 to the standalone
financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2023

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Parties
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures
performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (i) and
(ii) above, contain any material
misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor
paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for
the Company only with effect from 1
April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

With respect to the matter to be included in the
Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the
current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid
to any director by the Company is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Arpan Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 125710

ICAI UDIN:23125710BGYBQV8047
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of
MedPlus Health Services Limited (Formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over
a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies was noticed on such
verification.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company, except for the
following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Gross Whether promoter, . Reason for not being
. . . R Period held- X
Description carrying Held in the director or o held in the name of the
: R . indicate range, .
of property value R in name of their relative or . Company. Also indicate
s where appropriate I
millions) employee if in dispute
Free hold 5.51 Natco Pharma No 20-Dec 2020 Note 1 below
Land Limited

Note 1: The aforesaid land has been transferred to the company vide agreement of sale dated 20 December 2020.
However, the Company is in the process of completing the registration. Also refer Note: 3a to the Standalone
financial statements.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (@) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management
were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the
book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year. The Company has made investments in and granted loan to companies, in respect of which the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of MedPlus
Health Services Limited (Formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Contd.)

requisite information are as below. The Company has not made any investments in or granted loan to firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to
us the Company has provided loans to other company as below:

Particulars . .L?ans

(X in millions)
Aggregate amount during the year Subsidiaries* 2.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date Subsidiaries* 17.82**

*As per the Companies Act, 2013.
** Qutstanding balances of ¥17.82 millions has been fully provided for.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year and the terms and conditions
of the grant of loans to its subsidiary during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company. Further, the company has not provided gurantees and advances in nature of loans and
gurantees during the year.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated except for the loan of ¥4.5 millions given to it's subsidiary,
Kalyani Meditimes Private Limited which is repayable on demand. As informed to us, the company
has not demanded repayment of loan during the year. Further, in respect of other loans, repayment of
principal and payment of interest have been regular except for the following

BameloftheS oty (3 i?\Tn‘:Il:in:ns) (in r:\l;ee?):tt:leates) EX:::;: :)?::x;)(m TIERG T
Kalyani Meditimes 6 6 April 2022 - 10 May-22 51-85 Delay in repayment of
Private Limited Principal.

Kalyani Meditimes 11.32 30 September 2022 - 27 Not repaid Overdue principal
Private Limited February 2023 amounts. Note 1 below.
Kalyani Meditimes 1.14 6 April 2022 - 10 May-22 51-85 Delay in repayment of
Private Limited Interest.

Kalyani Meditimes 3.16 30 September 2022 - 27 Not repaid Overdue interest
Private Limited February 2023 amounts. Note 1 below.

Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year.
Note 1: These overdues have been fully provied for.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans (and
advance in the nature of loan) given except an amount of ¥11.32 millions (principal amount) and ?3.16
millions (interest) overdue for more than ninety days as at 31 March 2023. In our opinion, reasonable
steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and interest. Further, the Company
has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during
the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
except for the following loans to its subsidiary, being related parties as defined in Clause (76) of Section
2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)..
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of MedPlus
Health Services Limited (Formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Contd.)

Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan (% in millions) 4.5
- Repayable on demand

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to the total loans 25.25%

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security given by the Company,
in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been
complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products manufactured and services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value added
tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to which the Forum where disputeis Remarks,
statute dues (X in millions) amount relates pending if any
Income-tax Act,  Income-tax 34.86 FY 2020-21 Commissioner of Income-

1961 tax (Appeals), Telangana

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.
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(e)

(xi) (a)

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the
Company, we report that the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries as defined under the Act.

According to theinformation and explanations
given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries (as defined
under the Act).

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
the Company has utilised the money raised by
way of initial public offer for the purposes for
which they were raised though idle/surplus
funds which were not required forimmediate
utilisation have been invested in fixed
deposits with Banks. The Company has not
raised any moneys by way of further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the
year.

According to the information and explanations
givento usand on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

Based on examination of the books and
records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of
the audit.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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(9

As represented to us by the management,
there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii)

(xiv)

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
the transactions with related parties are in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable, and the details
of the related party transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(@) Based on information and explanations
provided to us and our audit procedures,
in our opinion, the Company has an
internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports
of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)

(@) The Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered

under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment

Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of MedPlus
Health Services Limited (Formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Contd.)

(d) Based on the information and explanations

(xvii)

provided by the management of the
Company, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) do not have any Core
Investment Company as detailed in note 46
(x) to the standalone financial statements. For
reporting on this clause / sub clause, while we
have performed audit procedures set out in
the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, we have
relied on and not been able to independently
validate the information provided to us by the
management of the Company with respect to
entities outside the consolidated Group but
covered in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory

(xix)

auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2023
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and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

Also refer to the Other Information paragraph
of our main audit report which explains that the
other information comprising the information
included in Annual Report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions
of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the
Order are not applicable.

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Arpan Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 125710

ICAI UDIN:23125710BGYBQV8047
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of
MedPlus Health Services Limited (Formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with
reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under‘Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of MedPlus Health
Services Limited (Formerly known as MedPlus Health
Services Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of 31
March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of such internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the“Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’
Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management and the Board of
Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence tothe company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section

MEDPLUS HEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

124

143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Arpan Jain

Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership No.: 125710
Date: May 25, 2023 ICAI UDIN:23125710BGYBQV8047
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions except for share data or otherwise stated)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3a 935.58 389.17
Capital work-in-progress 3b 179.09 155.20
Other Intangible assets 3c 34.14 28.24
Right-of-use assets 4 824.40 432.74
Financial assets
Investments 5 9,171.58 4,184.50
Other financial assets 7 25.75 19.15
Non-current tax assets (net) 8 24.68 26.99
Other non-current assets 9 18.36 65.16
11,213.58 5,301.15
Current Assets
Inventories 10 66.87 39.00
Financial assets
Trade receivables 13 376.11 212.88
Cash and cash equivalents 11 357.03 9.38
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 544.60 65.00
Loans 6 - 27.82
Other financial assets 7 55.62 6,167.90
Other current assets 9 105.61 51.41
1,505.84 6,573.39
Total Assets 12,719.42 11,874.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 238.61 238.60
Other equity 15 11,174.17 10,889.21
Total Equity 11,412.78 11,127.81
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 808.15 416.84
Provisions 19 18.35 7.14
826.50 423.98
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 49.89 27.32
Trade payables 16
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 3.61 0.43
- Total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 124.28 54.87
Other financial liabilities 18 229.61 204.78
Other current liabilities 20 21.02 22.40
Contract liabilities 21 41.40 5.59
Provisions 19 10.33 7.36
480.14 322.75
Total Liabilities 1,306.64 746.73
Total Equity and Liabilities 12,719.42 11,874.54
Summary of significant accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants MedPlus Health Services Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number 116231W/W-100024 (formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)
Arpan Jain G. Madhukar Reddy

Partner Chairman and Managing Director
Membership Number: 125710 DIN: 00098097

Sujit Kumar Mahato
Chief Financial Officer
Hyderabad, May 25, 2023

Manoj Kumar Srivastava
Company Secretary

Hyderabad, May 25, 2023 Hyderabad, May 25, 2023
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions except for share data or otherwise stated)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

INCOME

Revenue from operations 22 2,139.26 1,457.14
Other income 23 162.39 95.41
Total income (1) 2,301.65 1,552.55
EXPENSES

Purchases of stock-in-trade 24 1,314.91 972.12
Cost of materials consumed 25 257.77 193.56
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 26 (3.96) 20.00
stock-in-trade

Employee benefits expense 27 281.45 137.32
Finance costs 29 65.45 26.31
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 153.07 46.32
Impairment reversals (net) 5 (69.44) -
Other expenses 30 226.54 101.13
Total expenses (Il) 2,225.79 1,496.76
Profit before tax (I11) = (1)-(11) 75.86 55.79
Tax expense

- Current tax 20.42 -
Total tax expense (1V) 20.42 -
Profit for the year (V) = (Ill)-(IV) 55.44 55.79
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss:

Re-measurement (Loss)/Gain on employee defined benefit plans 33 (3.56) 1.17
(V1)

Income tax effect on the above (VII) - -
Other comprehensive (Loss)/Gain for the year (VIII) = (VI)+(VII) (3.56) 1.17
Total comprehensive income for the year (IX) = (V)+(VIII) 51.88 56.96
Earnings per equity share (EPES) (In absolute X terms) 31

Basic 0.46 0.50
Diluted 0.46 0.50
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants MedPlus Health Services Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number 116231W/W-100024 (formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)

Arpan Jain G. Madhukar Reddy

Partner Chairman and Managing Director

Membership Number: 125710 DIN: 00098097

Sujit Kumar Mahato Manoj Kumar Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Hyderabad, May 25, 2023 Hyderabad, May 25, 2023 Hyderabad, May 25, 2023
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Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2023

(Contd)

(All amoiint< in Indian Riineec in millinns exrent for chare data or ntherwise <tated)

Equity component of compound financial instruments includes the As at As at
following: March 31, 2022

(i) Par value of the instruments issued:
0.001% Series A CCPS of 220/- each

At the beginning of the year - 56.72
Less: Conversion of 0.001% Series A CCPS into equity shares - (56.72)
At the end of the year - -
0.001% Series B CCPS of 320/- each

At the beginning of the year - 239.03
Less: Conversion of 0.001% Series B CCPS into equity shares - (239.03)
At the end of the year - -
0.001% Series B1 CCPS of 320/- each

At the beginning of the year 61.07
Less: Conversion of 0.001% Series B1 CCPS in to equity shares - (61.07)
At the end of the year - -
0.001% Series B2 CCPS of 320/- each

At the beginning of the year 66.62
Less: Conversion of 0.001% Series B2 CCPS in to equity shares - (66.62)
At the end of the year - -
0.001% Series C1 CCPS of 320/- each

At the beginning of the year 11.22
Less: Conversion of 0.001% Series C1 CCPS in to equity shares - (11.22)
At the end of the year - -
0.001% Series C2 CCPS of 320/- each

At the beginning of the year 3.20
Less: Conversion of 0.001% Series C2 CCPS in to equity shares - (3.20)
At the end of the year - -
(ii) Securities premium on CCPS issued

Opening balance - 3,270.20
Less: Transfer of CCPS securities premium in to securities premium account - (2,947.23)
Less: Fair value movement in the value of the CCPS transfer to general reserve - (322.97)

Closing balance - -

Amount included in 'Equity component of compound financial instruments' - -
above

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants MedPlus Health Services Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number 116231W/W-100024 (formerly known as MedPlus Health Services Private Limited)
Arpan Jain G. Madhukar Reddy
Partner Chairman and Managing Director
Membership Number: 125710 DIN: 00098097
Sujit Kumar Mahato Manoj Kumar Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Hyderabad, May 25, 2023 Hyderabad, May 25, 2023 Hyderabad, May 25, 2023
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Standalone Statement of Cash FIOWsS for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions except for share data or otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and Amortisation of
Intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Provision for gratuity and leave benefits
Provision for doubtful debts
Advances/debts written off
Provision for doubtful loans and advances
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest income
Financial guarantee income
Liabilities no longer required written back
Impairment Provision reversals
Gain on de-recognition of right-of-use assets
Employees stock option compensation expenses
Operating profit before working capital changes
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Increase in non-current financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in current financial assets
Increase in other assets
Increase in current financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease in provisions
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (A)
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles including

capital work-in-progress and capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Business Purchase consideration paid
Proceeds from Investment in subsidiaries
Loan given to Subsidiaires
Repayment of loan from Subsidiaires
Proceeds / (Investment) in bank deposits, net
Interest received
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Proceeds from issue of equity shares under ESOP's (refer to note 34)
Share Issue expenses (refer note 47)
Interest Payment on Lease liabilities (refer note b)
Principal Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C)

TR TRTEIH LN For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

75.86 55.79
77.02 14.23
76.06 32.09
11.05 3.60
0.43 0.35
0.13 -
3.51 -
65.45 25.85
(142.15) (75.85)
(1.47) (9.29)
(2.69) (0.02)
(69.44) -
(2.03) (1.76)
18.07 17.28
109.80 62.27
(27.87) 8.85
(25.01) (27.01)
7.71) (237.84)
(49.10) (29.78)
133.86 4262
(1.38) 20.61
(0.43) (3.33)
132.16 (163.61)
(18.11) (20.13)
114.05 (183.74)
(617.42) (406.28)
7.87 33.78
(4,691.70) (0.10)
- (13.50)

(2.00) (23.32)
12.00 -
5,432.95 (5,988.07)
175.49 37.57
317.19 (6,359.92)
- 5,936.36

11.89 5.86

- (217.27)
(65.45) (25.85)
(30.03) (12.85)
(83.59) 5,686.25
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Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 (contd.)

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions except for share data or otherwise stated)
TR TRTEIH LN For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 347.65 (857.41)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.38 866.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 357.03 9.38
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.55 0.28
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 345.60 -
Balance with banks in current accounts 10.88 9.10
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note no.11) 357.03 9.38
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

Notes:

a. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of cash flows.

b. Refer note 35 for change in lease li